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Paul Orchard-Lisle, Interim Non-Executive Chairman

Revenue £m

572.4
PBT £m

32.5
EPS pence

9.0
2012 491.7 2012 35.4 2012 59.0 2012 8.5

Operating
Cashflow £m

41.4
Operating Cashflow
From continuing operations.

Profit Before Tax
Normalised comprising the
underlying operating profit of
£44.9m (2012: £40.1m) less share
based payments of £1.2m 
(2012: £0.4m) less finance costs of
£12.0m (2012: £6.3m) plus finance
income of £0.8m (2012: £2.0m).

Earnings Per Ordinary Share
Basic earnings per share from
continuing operations.

Revenue
Comparative figures restated to
exclude discontinued chilled
transport operation for consistency. 

2013 Financial Highlights
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Trading Results

Group turnover rose from £491.7m to £572.4m and the
underlying profit before tax was £32.5m compared with
£35.4m in the previous year. Group profit before tax before
discontinued operations for the year was £36.0m compared
with £29.2m in the previous year. The discontinuation of the
chilled transport network led to a loss after tax of £13.4m
(2012: £0.3m) in the year. A more detailed analysis of the
Group and Divisional trading results follows in the Chief
Executive’s Report and the Operational & Financial Review.

The Board

There have been a number of Board changes over the past year
including Jesper Kjaedegaard stepping down at last year’s AGM,
William Stobart’s reappointment to the Board in September 2012
and in January 2013, David Beever resigned from the Board to
devote time to his other interests. Following the acquisition of the
Autologic business in August 2012, Avril Palmer-Baunack was
appointed an Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive. On
21 January 2013 she was appointed Executive Chairman,
replacing Rodney Baker-Bates. Mr Baker-Bates remains a Non-
Executive Director of the Group. Ms Palmer-Baunack resigned
as Executive Chairman on 2 April 2013 and left the Group on 15
May 2013. Alan Kelsey resigned as a Non-Executive Director on
23 April 2013. I was appointed Interim Non-Executive Chairman
on 15 May 2013 following Ms Palmer-Baunack’s departure from
the Group on that date. In April, the Board initiated a search,
supported by consultants, for a new Non-Executive Chairman.
We have been pleased by the interest shown in the appointment
and expect to make an announcement in the near future. We also
anticipate the appointment of one or more new Non-Executive
Directors to support in the next stage of our strategy.

The Board recognises fully that it has been tasked with
delivering enhanced shareholder value in accordance with the
strategy that we outlined at the time of the capital raising in May
2011. Our operating divisions are all performing well and are on
track to deliver returns in line with the overall strategic plan. 

Our Board continuously reviews divisional performance
alongside market conditions to make sure that we make the
right strategic decisions for each of our businesses.

Dividend

An interim dividend of 2.0p was paid on 7 December 2012. The
Board is proposing a final dividend of 4.0p per ordinary share,
giving a total dividend for the year of 6.0p.

Outlook

The Group continues to respond robustly to the ongoing and
challenging economic conditions. Whilst issues in the Chilled
Transport network and the absence of disposals in Estates
marginally held back the performance at the half year, at the end
of the year Transport & Distribution and Biomass were ahead of
last year. This was matched with the maturing of investments at
London Southend Airport and the continued internal value
delivered by our Infrastructure & Civil Engineering division.

Our underlying core Transport & Distribution business is strong
and Biomass is growing year on year within a relatively new
sector whose speed of growth has been arguably hindered by
the slow pace of Government Renewable Obligation legislation.
Stobart Air has made great headway in establishing its initial key
user base, predominantly through our excellent partnership with
easyJet. Our strong and diverse property portfolio, already
delivers an attractive income return. We will however take market
led opportunities to realise its capital value. 

With the investment phase of our four year strategy substantially
complete our focus now moves to optimising performance and
delivering maximum value for shareholders from the excellent
base that we have built.

Paul Orchard-Lisle
Interim Non-Executive Chairman I 16 May 2013

Interim Chairman’s Statement I Paul Orchard-Lisle

The Group’s trading performance over the last year enables me
to present a positive report. We remain focussed on delivering
substantial shareholder value in accordance with the development
plans agreed in 2011, and the ongoing proper governance of the
business. 
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Our stated strategy of investment in businesses with high future
growth potential followed by a two to three year period of value
maximisation is on track. We understand fully that there are a
number of ways that we can deliver return on our investment.
Furthermore, we know that a critical factor in maximising returns
will be to get the timing of our actions right. Earlier this year, the
Executive team, together with certain Board members, reviewed
our strategy and confirmed that it is the right one for the Group.
Matched with our commitment to sound governance, we will not
be diverted from our long-term plan to maximise returns by short-
term distractions. As we discussed last year, key in our ability to
achieve this for shareholders will be our ability to continue to have
the right people, in the right place with the right skills – and at the
right time. We are making sure we have that team in place and
we will continue to invest in our people through the year to keep
them focussed and on track. 

It has been a busy year. The discontinuance of the Chilled pallet
consolidation business was complex in some ways for us, but
overall our Transport & Distribution business has had a hugely
positive year, further enhanced by the acquisition of Autologic in
August.

This performance was matched with exciting and rewarding
developments at London Southend Airport where we welcomed
over 700,000 travellers through the airport during the period. This
has been predominantly as a result of our burgeoning and highly
successful partnership with easyJet. While costs have been slightly
higher than expected as we took on more staff costs at start-up,
we are very pleased with the development of the airport and our
position in the London marketplace, with passengers recently
voting us best performing airport for customer satisfaction.

As a result of our specialised offering of renewable fuel supply
and transportation, our Biomass business is now in pole position
to secure a significant proportion of this quickly developing
market as the legislative approvals come through. 

The Estates division has had an active year and has delivered
strong results with the Moneypenny investment property portfolio
now fully integrated into the Group and with a plan for each
property. Going forward we will be looking to realise value in the
most mature assets which will both contribute cash and reduce
Group debt sooner than expected. 

Overall the Group is well underway with the implementation of
our four year plan. All the building blocks are in place and the
investment phase is largely complete. We now move into the
optimisation and delivery phase to unlock the inherent value in
our business portfolio for the benefit of our shareholders.

Stobart Transport & Distribution

Transport & Distribution remains our largest operating division.
Our ability to continue to develop and implement leading
systems and processes has enabled us to remain competitive
in a challenging environment and we continue to work to
increase our already sector-leading fleet utilisation rates. We
constantly strive to improve performance, increase our levels of
customer service excellence and stay alert to opportunities to
help our customers improve efficiency levels through
implementing multimodal solutions.

In last year’s Annual Report & Accounts we explained the
benefits of our Time Based Planning system. As we use the
system more we are better able to exploit its capabilities and
thereby improve its effectiveness in our business and the
efficiency of our operations. 

Our ability to track each delivery and the elapsed time for each
stage of that delivery enables us to monitor the factors driving
our costs in detail, highlighting areas where we can, and do,
improve efficiencies. We collaborate with our customers as
partners in a business operation to improve performance and
drive efficiencies for the benefit of both their business and ours.

It is through our deployment of powerful analytical tools across
the business that we were able to spot firstly the opportunity to
reorganise the Ambient transport network and, secondly, establish
the need to restructure the Chilled business, which has led to the
discontinuance of the Chilled pallet consolidation business.

A year ago, we outlined our plans to restructure the Chilled
business that was originally acquired through the acquisition of
Innovate in 2008 at low cost out of administration. We envisaged
the closure of two depots and a total restructuring charge in the
28 February 2013 Accounts of some £8.0m. As we began to
implement the proposed restructuring following our detailed and
ongoing analysis, it became apparent that this small load,
multiple pick and drop business, which was principally
undertaken for producers rather than retailers, was too
unpredictable for a large scale operation.

We are at a pivotal moment in the delivery of our four year strategic
plan that we set out in March 2011. With the investment phase
now largely complete we are moving into the optimisation phase,
realising the value in our divisions and delivering strong returns for
our shareholders.

Chief Executive’s Report I Andrew Tinkler
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Andrew Tinkler, Chief Executive Officer
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We carefully considered whether there was a way in which we
could re-engineer the business processes to reduce the
imbalance in part-loaded running and the incidence of small
drops. Unfortunately our analysis showed that we simply could
not make this business profitable at the rates that our customers
were prepared to pay. As a consequence, we decided to close
the Chilled pallet consolidation business. The loss in the year
including closure costs was £13.4m. This closure has not affected
the chilled movements we undertake for our supermarket
customers which continue to operate as part of the main Transport
& Distribution business, or within the warehousing operation that
we acquired from Innovate, which continues to perform well.

Stobart Rail Freight and Ports continue to operate well with
steady growth in both areas. This is demonstrated by the
increasing use of rail for our FMCG grocery traffic, creating cost
savings for customers whilst helping them to achieve carbon
reduction targets. Our expertise in road-to-rail modal shift
enables us to intelligently assist customers, providing innovative
solutions for their logistical requirements. A typical example is
the supply of stock to central London convenience stores
through a rail facility at Euston Station.

In August 2012 we acquired Autologic Holdings plc for a cash
consideration of £12.4m. Autologic operated two distinct
businesses, Vehicle Distribution (transport) and Vehicle Services
(workshops and storage) in the UK, Benelux and Czech
Republic. In January 2013  we disposed of the non-core Vehicle
Services business for £11.0m. However, we retain the freehold
site at Portbury, which is used in this division, and currently lease
it to the purchasers. The Vehicle Distribution business has been
re-branded Stobart Automotive, forming a new business unit
within our Transport & Distribution division. During the new
financial year we expect to deliver savings and synergies from
aligning this business unit with others in the division.

We plan to bring the Autologic transporter fleet up to the
standards of the rest of our fleet. The reaction of customers to
this acquisition has been extremely positive and we are now
rolling-out the re-branding of the transporter fleet alongside the
introduction of new systems and technologies.

As ever, the sustainability of any one of our transport or
distribution operations is critical both to our customers and to
us. To that end, we work tirelessly to reduce the environmental
impact of our activities, not only by adopting the latest low
emission trucks, but also by optimising their driven miles.

Stobart Estates

The Estates division has had a busy year and has delivered
strong results against the backdrop of a very challenging
property market. The Moneypenny investment property portfolio
acquired in 2012 has now been fully integrated into the Group
and a strategy is being implemented to maximise the exit value
of each property. A number of asset management initiatives, 

including lease and rent review negotiations, have been
undertaken in the year. These have been the key factors in the
uplift in value of the portfolio in the year of £5.2m.

The development of 37 Soho Square into high-end residential
units is due for completion in June 2013. The first two sales at
this property are contracted off-plan for a total of £5.7m which
is extremely encouraging. Although the challenging market has
meant that disposals have been slightly slower than anticipated,
the division has nevertheless achieved three sales to date at a
higher than expected profit. It is also worth noting that the
division achieves a high income return, pending sales.

Key milestones have also been achieved elsewhere, including
the completion of the Holiday Inn development at London
Southend Airport and the gaining of planning consent for the
redevelopment of Carlisle Airport and a biomass plant at Widnes.

With the management structure and strategy currently in place,
the Board is confident that the Estates division will continue to
deliver strong results in the medium term.

Infrastructure & Civil Engineering

The Infrastructure & Civil Engineering division has played a
significant role in the development of London Southend Airport.
It will continue to do so with the extension to the passenger
terminal and other projects where we can use this division to
drive value. This will also be the case with the development
programme at Carlisle Airport which is expected to commence
in 2013. Planning consent has been obtained for the biomass
plant at Widnes and this too will be a project undertaken by the
division. We are considering a number of different funding
options for these developments.

External work, principally in the rail sector, continues and looking
forward, a number of significant infrastructure projects have been
announced by Network Rail and by Government. With our well
known and well proven ability to find creative and highly cost-
effective civil engineering solutions, we are ideally placed to
competitively tender and secure new contracts. 

Stobart Air

It has been a landmark year for London Southend Airport (‘LSA’),
which is now officially recognised as London’s sixth airport. We
extended our partnership with easyJet and by the end of the year
we expect to serve 15 easyJet destinations. It is our aim to
increase further the number of destinations available in response
to the recognition by both passengers and carriers of LSA’s
convenient location and the benefits offered by its rail link to
central London.

Our relationship with Aer Arann, trading as Aer Lingus Regional
under a ten year franchise agreement, provides us with an
unrivalled opportunity to capitalise swiftly and highly cost-
effectively on the London to North America routes via Dublin. We
increased our holding in Aer Arann to 45% to drive volume into
LSA. This should deliver significant revenue and profit through the
airport helping to improve its value. Our next phase is to use the
airline to start new routes out of LSA with focus on Spring 2014.

Opposite: London Southend Airport’s successful relationship with easyJet is
moving forward apace; the leading airline will site a fourth aircraft at the Stobart
Air facility in June, some 12 months ahead of the original schedule.



The current passenger terminal extension is the last phase of our
significant investment in this operating asset. With the investment
phase now completed we move to the optimisation phase to
realise the inherent value in the airport. This will enable us to
continue to offer an excellent passenger experience and build
route numbers and volumes up towards our maximum capacity
of around five million per annum.

I am pleased to report that easyJet has settled in well and that
they have now taken the decision to bring the planned siting of
their fourth aircraft at Southend forward to June this year, 12
months ahead of schedule.

After a fairly lengthy process, we have finally secured planning
consent for the development of Carlisle Airport. The consented
development includes warehousing and distribution infrastructure,
runway refurbishment and associated developments. We are
currently studying route and carrier planning for Carlisle Airport
and we aim to capitalise on the business potential for London-
bound traffic, as well as provide an exclusive new in-bound route
for some of the Lake District’s 40 million visitors each year.

Stobart Biomass

Demand for Biomass products is set to increase over the next
two years as Biomass-fuelled power plants, which are currently
in the confirmed planning or building phase, become operational.
Robust industry intelligence informs us that the Biomass product
market for existing and planned power plants totals 3.1m tonnes
per annum. This volume is split between those plants currently
operational at 0.2m tonnes, in-build at 0.4m tonnes and 2.5m
tonnes for plants in pre-build phase. These predicted volumes
evidence the opportunity for growth. 

This year we have already commenced supply on a number of
significant contracts, with several additional contacts confirmed
for the coming year. Our comprehensive business offering of fuel 

source and supply, matched with premier logistics capability,
means that we are well placed to increase our rate of growth
through 2013.

The strategic fit with the Group is strong with transport being
such a vital ingredient in the Biomass business. This has the
added benefit of expected margins in excess of our standard
transport business.

The Brand

The Stobart brand is an important asset to the Group and we
think it essential to reinforce the levels of quality and service that
our brand stands for and underlines. Its status reassures our
customers and partners that they are working with a business
that takes time to understand their needs, a business that
develops innovative and cost-effective solutions and delivers the
highest quality. Our positive brand image also plays an extremely
important role in building employee loyalty. Our team are happy
and proud to work as part of Stobart Group; we recognise their
support and reward it by helping every one of them to reach their
full potential within the business. 

More recently we have leveraged the brand to make big savings
on insurance and legal costs by taking these functions in-house
and we are now offering these services externally under the
Stobart name.

We are on track. We know how important it is to deliver strong
return and this is now our focus. We will continue to communicate
with you through the year and look forward to sharing further
good news.

Andrew Tinkler I Chief Executive Officer I 16 May 2013
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Key Performance Indicators

Chief Executive’s Report 

Financial* 2013 2012 Change

Revenue £572.4m £491.7m +16.4%

PBT**   £32.5m £35.4m -8.2%

Earnings Per Ordinary Share 9.0p 8.5p +5.9%

Environmental

Fleet Utilisation 86% 84% +2.4%

Euro 4/5 Compliance 88% 99% -11.1%

CO2 Per Loaded Mile 1.61kg 1.67kg -3.6%

People

Accident/Incident rate (RIDDOR) 0.17 0.16 +6.3%

* Comparative figures restated to exclude discontinued chilled transport operation for consistency.

**Comprising the underlying operating profit of £44.9m (2012: £40.1m) less share based payment of £1.2m (2012: £0.4m) less finance costs of £12.0m (2012: £6.3m) plus finance
income of £0.8m (2012: £2.0m).
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Brands develop and evolve over many years and the Stobart
brand is no exception. In the reception area of our Crick offices a
1975 Atkinson Borderer sits side by side with a 2013 Volvo FH12.
The first thing that is apparent is the size and scale and complexity
of today’s tractor units compared to those of the 1970s. A closer
look shows that whilst today’s Stobart livery is very different to that
of the 1970s it is recognisably a derivative of the first 1970s truck.
The distinctive Stobart lettering is readily transferable and
identifiable from the distinctive red, green and white trucks to the
fascia or signage at London Southend Airport or to the elevations
of a warehouse; the sign of a strong and effective brand.

Eddie Stobart has been officially recognised as a ‘Business
Superbrand’ for the last seven years, and in 2013 was nominated
as the leading brand in the ‘Supply Chain, Distribution & Freight
Services’ category. An accredited Superbrand is considered to
have established the best reputation in its market, providing its
customers with both tangible and intangible advantages over its
competitors. Stobart has the highest reputation for quality, service,
performance and sustainability; clearly marking it out from the
competition for Superbrand status.

The unrivalled reputation of the Stobart brand adds significant
value to an already market-leading service offering. The market
recognises Stobart as an innovator in its sectors, both customers
and partners benefit from participating in that innovation. 

The iconic Eddie Stobart brand is instantly recognisable; it is a mark
of quality, service, cleanliness and, more recently, sustainability and
a concern for the environment. It is a reassuring name that both the
business community and the public trust to deliver in accordance
with its core values.

Building the Brand I William Stobart, COO
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William Stobart, Chief Operating Officer
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This cycle of leadership means that Stobart is more prepared to
think outside the box and that our customers value Stobart as a
trusted partner in breaking new ground; introducing new
processes and challenging outdated methods. As a result, free
thinking new prospects see the Company as the partner of
choice, and so it continues, onward and upward.

Brand Management and Performance

We go to great lengths to manage the Stobart brand effectively.
Company brand names, trademarks and designs are fully
protected and we rigorously monitor their reproduction and use,
both internally and by third parties. The brands’ value is classified
as an Intangible Asset in the Balance Sheet at a value of £60.0m.
Last year independent third party experts certified their value at
around three times that amount. 

The Stobart brand is exceptional in that, despite being a business-
to-business brand, it commands huge levels of public awareness
and recognition. Indeed, with the exception of our landside
operations at London Southend Airport, we have virtually no retail
or consumer facing activities. 

Once again this has become a self-supporting cycle; from the
earliest days our trucks were famed for being exceptionally
clean and well presented and their drivers were known to be
smart and polite. A reputation for great service developed
alongside and our fleet started to be noticed on the roads. As
a result many families became proud ‘spotters’ of our trucks,
forming the basis of a members club that now numbers in
excess of 18,000 and drives the substantial and highly profitable
Stobart Promotions merchandising business.

Brands must be carefully nurtured, it is easy to over leverage them,
polluting the image and ultimately eroding their status. Whilst we 

remain conscious of these issues, we will continue to seek new
platforms through which we can grow the brand in accordance
with Stobart values.

Eddie Stobart: Trucks & Trailers

The fifth series of ‘Eddie Stobart: Trucks & Trailers’, now showing
on Channel 5, regularly attracts over two million viewers, giving
the Eddie Stobart logistics brand unique exposure, whilst at the
same time increasing public awareness of the Group’s other
activities. Public recognition of London Southend Airport and our
partnership with easyJet has significantly increased as a result
of the exposure.

Over 15,000 people attended the ‘Stobart Fest’ event in 2012 and
membership of the official ‘Stobart Members’ Club’ continues to
grow; matched by rising sales of Stobart merchandise.

Sporting Associations

Over the years the Group has used strategic sponsorship of sport
and marketing partnerships to assist in increasing brand
awareness. 

We currently have a partnership arrangement with the Professional
Jockeys’ Association. The association provides excellent weekly
television exposure for the brand on Jockeys’ breeches in return
for the Stobart funding of a compensation scheme for jockeys
who suffer career-ending injuries, which we manage through our
FSA-approved Stobart Business Services.

William Stobart I Chief Operating Officer I 16 May 2013

The Brand ports effectively across the businesses. All airside handling
equipment at London Southend Airport, ranging from de-icing vehicles
through to baggage tugs features the Eddie Stobart branding, capturing the
imagination of the almost three quarters of a million passengers travelling
through the airport in the last financial year.

About to enter its sixth series, ‘Eddie Stobart: Trucks and Trailers’ remains a
hugely popular programme for Channel 5, providing an excellent vehicle for
taking the business-to-business brand into the public domain.
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Operations

UK & International Road Transport

Contract Logistics and Warehousing

Port and Rail Terminal Operations

Rail Freight Services

Stobart 
Estates

Stobart Estates owns a diverse portfolio of
properties, ranging from prestige retail sites
through light industrial buildings and distribution
centres to premium office spaces. Stobart Group-
occupied property held under the Estates division
includes airports and a waterway port in addition to
a network of offices, warehouse sites and depots
utilised by Eddie Stobart.

Estates is also responsible for the management,
development and realisation of all Stobart Group
land and building assets. Performance of this
division is monitored by regular independent third
party valuations of investment properties in the
same way that any stand-alone property/asset
company would be valued.

Stobart 
Transport & Distribution

This division includes all of the forms of transport, storage and handling services provided by the Group in the
UK, Ireland and Europe, encompassing multimodal services provided through road, rail and ports. Stobart
Transport & Distribution includes the operations of Eddie Stobart, the UK’s leading logistics brand.

With 2,300 units, more than 3,200 trailers and over six million square feet of warehousing, Stobart Transport &
Distribution meets ambient distribution and warehousing requirements, as well as controlling the Group’s inland
ports operation and the long running and successful Rail Freight services. It is the largest FMCG rail freight
operation in the UK and has been extended into Europe.

A recent acquisition, Autologic is now being integrated into the Transport & Distribution division under the ‘Stobart
Automotive’ brand.

Operations

Industrial Assets

Office Property

Retail Assets

Development/Specialist

Stobart Group I Divisional Structure
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Stobart Infrastructure 
& Civil Engineering

This division delivers both the internal and external
infrastructure and development projects carried out
by the Group. 

Stobart Infrastructure is one of the UK’s leading
names in rail network maintenance, repair and
improvement.

The division’s Civil Engineering operation is
responsible for the development and improvement
of Stobart Group’s property holdings.

Stobart 
Air

Stobart Air is the operator of two complementary
facilities, London Southend Airport (LSA) and Carlisle
Lake District Airport. The Group intends to grow
Stobart Air significantly following the completion of
development at London Southend Airport. LSA has
developed new routes with major operators including
easyJet with the ultimate aim of servicing over two
million passengers annually. 

The Group is also pursuing air freight, maintenance
and airport service opportunities at LSA, including
airport retail, private facilities, lounges and fees
generated from the rail terminal, which provides up
to eight services an hour direct to London Liverpool
Street. 

Stobart 
Biomass

The launch of Stobart Biomass has represented a
pivotal move into a rapidly developing new business
sector for the Group. 

Stobart Biomass sources, processes and transports
sustainable biomass, primarily life-expired timber
and low-grade softwood for the generation of
minimum-carbon power plants utilised both in large-
scale electricity generation and smaller, on-site
industrial power plants. 

Operations

Material Sourcing

Material Processing

Biomass Logistics

Biomass Exports

Operations

Airport Operations

Private Handling

Airport Retail

Airside Services

Operations

Rail Engineering

Civil Engineering

Infrastructure Development

Plant Hire
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Ben Whawell, Chief Financial Officer
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Group revenue from continuing operations increased to £572.4m
from £491.7m in the previous year. Underlying profit before tax was
£32.5m compared with £35.4m in 2012 and recorded profit before
tax and discontinued operations rose to £36.0m from £29.2m in
2012. A breakdown of the divisional profit before tax is set out below.
Divisional underlying profit summary

             2013 2013 2012 2012
             £m £m £m £m

Underlying operating profit 44.9 40.1

Finance costs, finance income 
and share-based payments (12.4) (4.7)

Operation-based divisions
Transport & Distribution 29.7 27.7
Biomass 4.0 1.2
Infrastructure & Civil Engineering 3.2 4.4

Asset-based divisions
Air           (0.7) (0.4)
Estates   6.5 12.4

Central costs and eliminations (10.2) (9.9)

Underlying profit before tax 32.5 35.4

Separately disclosed items 3.5 (6.2)

Profit before tax and 
discontinued operations 36.0 29.2

The prior year figures have been restated to classify the Chilled
transport pallet network business as discontinued and for
completion of the accounting for the acquisition of WADI
Properties Limited in accordance with accounting standards. 

Autologic Holdings plc

The Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Autologic
Holdings plc on 10 August 2012 for £13.0m including fees. This
business contributed revenue of £69.4m and underlying profit
before tax of £1.4m since acquisition. 

On 21 January 2013 the Group disposed of the non-core UK
Vehicle Services business for cash proceeds of £11.0m realising
a profit on disposal of £8.5m.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations increased to
9.0p (2012: 8.5p) and total basic earnings per share were 5.1p
(2012: 8.4p).

Taxation

The tax charge on continuing operations of £5.1m (2012: £1.4m)
is at an effective rate of 14.2% (2012: 4.9%). The effective rate
has been reduced by £2.3m due to the impact of the change in
corporation tax rate on the deferred tax balances and by £2.2m
due to the impact of the profit on disposal of the Vehicle Services
division being non-taxable. 

Discontinued Operation

During the second half of the year the Group decided to
discontinue the chilled transport pallet network business. The
revenue from this discontinued activity was £45.0m (2012:
£60.2m) and the loss after tax was £13.4m (2012: £0.3m). This
has been shown separately in the consolidated income
statement and the prior year figures have been restated for
consistency. We do not expect further significant costs in relation
to this business in the current year.

Statement of Financial Position

We have a strong balance sheet with net assets of £462.1m
(2012: £471.0m). The net asset position was reduced by £9.5m
through the purchase of treasury shares during the year.

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment increased to £312.2m (2012:
£280.6m) principally due to the capital developments at
London Southend Airport and at our Widnes site along with
inclusion of the Autologic assets.

Investments in associates and joint ventures has increased to
£16.1m (2012: £1.1m) following the additional investment in the
restructured Aer Arann business and related aircraft financing
company as well as increases in the value of property interests
held. £7.1m of this investment is yet to be paid in cash.

Investment properties were carried at £89.5m (2012: £98.5m)
after sales of three properties in the year whilst there were
valuation uplifts of £5.2m on others.

Intangible assets increased to £286.2m (2012: £281.5m)
following the acquisition of Autologic Holdings plc in the year.
Included in intangible assets are our valuable brand names,
trademarks and designs.
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Operational & Financial Review I Ben Whawell, CFO
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Funding

The net debt of the Group has increased to £216.4m (2012:
£166.0m). This is principally due to capital expenditure at
London Southend Airport of £23.0m, the acquisition of Autologic
Holdings plc of £15.4m including fees and overdraft acquired,
the purchase of treasury shares of £9.5m and joint venture
investments totaling £7.0m. The net debt includes a new three
year £20.0m committed revolving credit facility (drawn at
£10.0m), and a new twelve month rolling £90.0m invoice
discounting facility (drawn at £16.4m). There is also a new two
year £3.2m property loan acquired on the Autologic transaction. 

These new facilities further diversify the Group’s funding base
and provide additional standby liquidity and a balance of
maturities complementing the existing 2020 facility with M&G
UK Companies Financing Fund (drawn at £100.0m) and the
2017 Moneypenny bank loan (drawn at £77.3m).

The finance lease liabilities have increased to £39.0m (2012:
£28.8m) largely due to finance leases acquired with Autologic.

The gearing ratio* is 46.8% (2012: 35.3%) and the gearing ratio
ignoring fleet financing* is 38.4% (2012: 29.1%).

The Group tracks cash flow headroom and covenants on a
rolling 12 month basis to ensure any issues are identified at an
early stage.

Cashflow

Cash generated from continuing operations was £41.4m (2012:
£59.0m). The decrease is due to timing of working capital
movements, in particular the late payment of a single supplier
payment of £6.6m in the prior year but paid on time in the
current year. Operating cash outflow from discontinued
operations was £9.5m.

Cash outflow for capital expenditure in the year totalled £45.2m
(2012: £93.4m). This includes development expenditure at
London Southend Airport of £23.0m mainly for the new hotel
and terminal extension. Other capex includes £10.6m for
commercial vehicles, £5.8m further development at the Widnes
multimodal site, which was partly funded by a Grant, and £3.1m
for development of 37 Soho Square.

Cash received from disposal of property, plant and equipment
was £23.4m (2012: £44.8m). This principally relates to disposals
of commercial vehicles and a property at 22 Soho Square,
London. Cash inflow from disposal of assets held for sale of
£11.7m relates mainly to the disposal of the units held in One
Plantation Place Unit Trust.

Interest paid in cash totalled £12.9m (2012: £4.4m). The increase
from the prior year is due to the interest on the loan against the
Moneypenny portfolio and also in the prior year interest was
capitalised during the significant building period at London
Southend Airport. Interest received totalled £0.7m (2012: £2.0m).

Dividends paid totalled £20.9m (2012: £17.6m) reflecting an
increased number of shares but the same annual dividend rate
of 6.0p (2012: 6.0p).

Dividends

The Board proposes a final dividend of 4.0p (2012: 4.0p)
bringing the total dividend for the year to 6.0p (2012: 6.0p).
Subject to approval of shareholders the final dividend will be
payable to investors on record on 24 May 2013 with an ex-
dividend date of 22 May 2013 and will be paid on 5 July 2013.
A scrip dividend alternative will also be made available.

Ben Whawell I Chief Financial Officer I 16 May 2013

Operational & Financial Review 

* Gearing ratio: The gearing ratio is calculated as a percentage of net debt to net
assets. The gearing ratio ignoring fleet financing is a percentage of net debt (excluding
obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts) to net assets.

Revenue £m

572.4
PBT £m

32.5
EPS pence

9.0
2012 491.7 2012 35.4 2012 59.0 2012 8.5

Operating
Cashflow £m

41.4
Operating Cashflow
From continuing operations.

Profit Before Tax
Normalised comprising the
underlying operating profit of
£44.9m (2012: £40.1m) less share
based payments of £1.2m 
(2012: £0.4m) less finance costs of
£12.0m (2012: £6.3m) plus finance
income of £0.8m (2012: £2.0m).

Earnings Per Ordinary Share
Basic earnings per share from
continuing operations.

Revenue
Comparative figures restated to
exclude discontinued chilled
transport operation for consistency. 

2013 Financial Highlights



Case Study I Stobart Automotive

As part of Stobart Group’s ongoing plan to evaluate and invest
in methods of improving customer service and operating

efficiency, an opportunity has been identified to develop a semi-
trailer car transporter for use on certain operations. We have worked

with several manufacturers to contribute to the design of a trailer that
can be pulled by any Stobart tractor unit. Key advantages include:

� The improved aerodynamic characteristics of the semi-trailer gives 
improved fuel efficiency compared to more traditional car transporter

designs, not only reducing operating costs but also cutting carbon emissions.

� The loading process is greatly simplified and speeded up so, despite a 
reduced load from 11 cars to around 6-8, the operational efficiencies result in

greater overall capacity of the transporter fleet, allowing us to meet the peaks
of customer demand.

� The ability to easily switch the transporter tractor units allows us to replace
them within our usual three year tractor life, enabling this fleet to benefit from
the reliability and efficiency that the rest of the Stobart fleet enjoys.
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Stobart Transport & Distribution performed well in the year with
underlying profit before tax from continuing operations improving
by 7.2%. The growth in revenues in the year was predominantly
driven by the acquisition of Autologic in August 2012. We
continue to drive competitive advantage through the exploitation
of our unique systems and processes and, under constant
review and improvement, these provide us with detailed and
sound management information on which we can make the best
possible business decisions. This has enabled the business to
return a profit before tax margin (before the impact of the
Autologic acquisition) of 6.3% (2012: 6.0%).

In August we took operational control of Tesco’s Distribution
Centre in Doncaster. This move was reflective of our strong and
symbiotic partnership with Tesco and the scale of operations that
they entrust to us. The move was not without its challenges but
from January 2013 the Centre has operated as a highly successful
network solution.

In last year’s Annual Report and Accounts, reference was made
to a restructuring of the Chilled transport network. The objective of
the restructuring exercise was to enhance the profitability of this
business by responding to our customers’ demand for a full load
service. To enable this, the depots at Alcester and Corby were
closed in May 2012 and the business was restructured. However,
through our robust and ongoing analysis that was a key feature of
this process, it became clear that even with restructuring, the

business would not be viable. We therefore made the decision to
discontinue these operations. Discontinuation meant the closure
of both the Heywood and Newark cross dock operation sites. We
have retained, where appropriate, a modest volume of specific and
self contained chilled traffic operating on the full load basis.

Within the core operating units, operational performance continues
to improve through the collation of data through our Time Based
Planning system and the subsequent business decisions that this
data enables us to make. We have also optimised our subcontract
arrangements and improved the profitability of this aspect of the
business. At the heart of these operations, we continuously work in
close collaboration and partnership with our customers to improve
the service levels and through this have achieved more incentive
payments than we had anticipated. 

We have achieved fuel savings, not only as a consequence of our
planning systems, but also through updating the vehicle fleet and
applying fuel monitoring technology. We were also awarded
funding from the Technology Strategy Board to further explore
dual fuel for our trucks, this being an acknowledgement from
Government of our success in the commercial exploitation of
innovation. We will also be focussing attention on vehicle
maintenance costs as we believe that we can achieve further
improvements in this area.
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Stobart Transport & Distribution

Financial Highlights

Revenue £m

517.2 2012 459.2

EBITDA £m

40.9 2012 44.3

PBT £m

29.7 2012 27.7

2013 Operational Highlights

Tesco three year contract awarded for both primary and
secondary distribution.

Closure of un-viable Chilled transport network.

Acquisition of Autologic Holdings plc.

Extension and renewal of key contracts.

Looking Forward, Driving Value

Further enhance systems. 

Increase and improve sustainable solutions for our customers. 

Strengthen our links with key customers.

Secure new customers.

Revenue: Comparative figures restated to exclude discontinued chilled transport operation for
consistency. 

EBITDA: EBITDA is normalised comprising the underlying operating profit before depreciation
and amortisation.

PBT: PBT is normalised comprising the underlying operating profit, less finance costs plus
finance income.



In March 2013 we were delighted to formally announce the signing
of a three year contract with Tesco. This provides us with an
unrivalled opportunity to continue to grow and improve this
business relationship within a structured and secure partnership.
In addition to this, we renewed and extended some key parts of
our Tesco operations and also secured a number of new contracts
with other food and non-food suppliers and retailers. 

The inland port business performed well following a positive
management refresh in the summer. There are currently five
trains a day; four from Felixstowe and one from Southampton,
and plans are well advanced to increase the number of rail
containers carried on trains which further displays our
commitment to providing our customers with smooth and
commercially sound rail freight opportunities. 

We now control a second container terminal at the Tesco Daventry
site which handles over half of its grocery volume. Our rail freight
business is working with its customers on a number of innovative
pilot projects to deliver affordable road to rail modal shift thereby
reducing emissions and providing smart delivery solutions,
particularly in highly congested areas.

Our warehousing operations continue to perform well, expanding
the customer base with the inclusion of new contracts for Dobbies
Garden Centres and Greencore. The Lutterworth warehouse,
opened in early 2012, has now been successfully and fully
integrated within the network.

The Autologic business was acquired in August 2012 and was
re-branded ‘Stobart Automotive’. This acquisition gave us a
market leading position in automotive logistics in the UK along
with a business in Benelux and the Czech Republic. In January
2013 we took the opportunity to dispose of the non-core UK
vehicle services business, leaving us with the UK transport
business. This was our primary target for the acquisition and is
a good fit for our structure. We have started the process of
alignment and are targeting synergies and savings to be
achieved in the forthcoming year.
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It has been a very busy and successful year for the division.
Integration of the ‘Moneypenny’ portfolio acquired in February
2012 has been a key focus. As part of this process, we have
determined a strategy for each property aimed at maximising the
exit value, the benefits of which are already showing in the results
for the year:

� Several properties have been earmarked for short-term
disposal, and although disposals have been slower than
anticipated due to market conditions, we successfully
disposed of three properties in the year at a combined profit
of £0.4m (after previously recognising a £1.05m revaluation
gain), which was ahead of expectations. If these conditions
continue, we will retain these assets for income return rather
than sell cheaply.

� We have undertaken a number of asset management
initiatives, including negotiation of rent increases, extension
of lease terms and improving the tenant base. These initiatives
have been the key driver in increasing the portfolio value by
£5.17m (of which £1.05m has been realised on the disposal
of 22 Soho Square) which we consider an exceptional result
in the current economic climate.

� The prestigious residential redevelopment of 37 Soho Square
(see case study opposite) is scheduled for completion in June
2013. The off-plan sale of two apartments has been agreed,
and the strength of the London residential market gives us
confidence of a hugely successful outcome for this project. 

Elsewhere, the Estates division has achieved a number of
milestones. In October 2012 the Holiday Inn development at
London Southend Airport became operational, a flagship
development of which we are justifiably proud. 

We have also secured planning consent for the construction of a
new distribution centre and other redevelopments at Carlisle
Airport. We cannot rule out there being continued local opposition
to our plans but significant progress has been made.

In addition, we have secured planning consent for a 20MW
biomass plant at our Widnes development site, and agreed
development terms with a JV partner. We have also made a 25%
equity investment into a JV for the development and operation of
an anaerobic digestion plant in Teeside. Development has now
commenced and the plant is expected to become operational in
Summer 2014. Both of these investments also provide the
potential for our Biomass division to secure fuel supply contracts.

We have also invested in the development of the management
structure of the division and our reporting and control procedures.
This process has resulted in the establishment of the Property
Operating Board and the selective appointment of asset
managers to manage different elements of the portfolio. 

With strong results achieved in 2012-13 against the backdrop of
a difficult economic environment, particularly in the property
sector, we are already seeing the benefit of the increased level
of expertise these appointments have brought to the
management team.

Financial Highlights
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Revenue £m

16.8 2012 6.7

EBITDA £m

17.1 2012 13.6

PBT £m

6.5 2012 12.4

Operational Highlights

Asset management initiatives driving up the value of the
property portfolio. 

Development of 37 Soho Square, London commenced.

Planning consent obtained for Biomass Plant at Widnes.

Autologic properties integrated within the portfolio.

Benefits of actively managing the portfolio apparent. 

Looking Forward, Driving Value

Realise value inherent in the properties listed for disposal.

Final development phase at London Southend Airport.

Re-gear investment properties and enhance disposal values.

Commence works at the sites scheduled for development.

Operational & Financial Review 

Stobart Estates

EBITDA: EBITDA is normalised comprising the underlying operating profit before
depreciation and amortisation.

PBT: PBT is normalised comprising the underlying operating profit, less finance
costs plus finance income.
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Case Study I 37 Soho Square 

Previously the home of Bloomsbury Publishing, birthplace of Harry
Potter, 37 Soho Square is located perfectly in one of London’s most
beautiful garden squares and a prime site for residential development.
Soho is set to become an even more desirable London location over the
next few years, with regeneration centred on Tottenham Court Road Station,
and the completion of Crossrail. 

Built in the seventeenth century, 37 Soho Square, which is Grade II Listed, is
steeped in history, and was the residence of various nobles, a general, and even
the Swedish envoy, before its life as a commercial premises. 

In June 2012 a renovation project started to convert the premises back into
residential dwellings. The project, due to complete in the summer of 2013, will see
the building transformed by Stobart Estates into five large, lavishly specified two and
three-bedroom apartments ranging in size from 1,646 sq ft to 1,937 sq ft.

A first class professional team was put in place to deliver the project with reputable
local London firms taking on project management, architectural and interior design
roles. Due to the nature of the building and the exceptional standard of finish required
the construction contractor was selected via a procurement process that focussed
on evidencing the ability to achieve such a finish. 

The appointed marketing agents provide an in-depth knowledge and understanding
of the Soho property market and have achieved two off plan sales to date, setting
new price per square foot sales records for the location in the process. The enquiry
list for the remaining apartments is strong and with the project now nearing
completion interest is expected to peak as the quality of finish becomes apparent.



Our Infrastructure and Civil Engineering division is a critical part
of the overall value engineering that we are able to deliver as an
integrated Group. This division has two distinct functions; the
securing of external contracts and the delivery of in-house
projects. The securing of external contracts has been subject to
the same challenging economic and market pressures felt by
businesses across this sector but this has enabled the division
to focus on maximising on our investments at, for example,
London Southend Airport through delivering a development
which was cost-effective, on time and of the highest quality. 

Despite lower external sales than in the previous year, the rail
infrastructure operating unit delivered a good result, in part
through the highly efficient plant utilisation, despite the lower
activity levels. The team was successful in winning contracts with
Birse Rail and AMCO Rail and continues to provide the highest
levels of service and safety to all clients. As usual we were
awarded maintenance work over the Christmas period. We
successfully completed these sometimes challenging contracts
on time at what for the division is their busiest time of the year. 

We continue to seek third party rail services contracts and
although opportunities in this market are not myriad in the
immediate future, we are confident of future growth as more
government funded significant projects come on line. During the
year the division won the coveted ‘Rail Team of the Year Award’ at
the Rail Staff Awards 2012 for work undertaken on the Manchester 

Metrolink. The rail team’s dedication, innovative approach,
customer service and rigorous health and safety standards
ensures its place as a highly respected operator in this field. 

The division also leads on the major remediation and development
project at the 3MG site in Widnes. In recognition of the importance
of the project it was awarded £4.5 million under the Government’s
Regional Growth Fund. As the year closes, work continues on the
extension of the passenger terminal at London Southend Airport.
Following the construction of the Railway Station and the
successful application the the ORR to license and operate the
mainline station we now operate this asset enabling an additional
important revenue stream at the airport.

We never underestimate the huge value that this division brings
to the Group. Through them, we are able to manage projects
more closely with greater control and visibility and deliver them
on time to the required quality and price. 

Overall, Group projects underway and pending include the
Widnes 3MG distribution centres and biomass plant, Carlisle
Airport, 37 Soho Square and London Southend Airport terminal
extension. Rail infrastructure work is forecast to increase as
significantly as we target securing contracts in Thames Link.
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Stobart Infrastructure & Civil Engineering

Financial Highlights

Revenue £m

30.9 2012 57.2

EBITDA £m

4.9 2012 5.6

PBT £m

3.2 2012 4.4

2013 Operational Highlights

Opening of London Southend Airport Hotel.

Successful bid for Thames Link bridge strengthening project.

Success at Rail Staff Awards 2012.

Continued unblemished safety record.

Looking Forward, Driving Value

Secure engagement in renewal of the UK rail network.

Commence development at Carlisle Airport.

Complete development of LSA for the Group.

EBITDA: EBITDA is normalised comprising the underlying operating profit before
depreciation and amortisation. 

PBT: PBT is normalised comprising the underlying operating profit, less finance
costs plus finance income.
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The last year has seen further major developments at London
Southend Airport (LSA), with the capacity and passenger
numbers growing in line with our plan. In the last financial year
some 723,000 passengers travelled through the airport. This
represents a 16-fold increase year-on-year and exceeds the
697,000 passengers achieved in 1967 when Southend was the
UK’s third busiest airport. 

In April 2012, following the opening of the runway extension and
new passenger terminal, easyJet joined Aer Lingus Regional in
operating scheduled services with aircraft based in Southend.
Later in the year we also obtained planning consent for a major
extension to the passenger terminal, the first phase of which is
scheduled for completion in June 2013 with completion
programmed for December 2013. This should increase capacity
to between five and six million passengers per annum.

During the year new services were added by both Aer Lingus and
easyJet and further services are commencing in summer 2013.
Flights, destinations and passenger numbers grew, with new
services commencing to Alicante, Amsterdam, Barcelona,
Belfast, Faro, Ibiza, Malaga, and Mallorca. During the year
destinations added included services to Jersey, Dublin, Venice
and Geneva. easyJet has announced that they would be basing
a fourth aircraft at LSA in June 2013 and with it, new services to
Edinburgh, Berlin, Krakow and Newquay. TUI will commence
services from London Southend in the summer of 2013 and
discussions are underway with a number of carriers over
additional services for the future. This summer, LSA will offer over
110 passenger flights a week to 15 destinations. 

Southend has now been formally designated as London’s sixth
airport by IATA. The airport is engaged with the Davis
Commission as it seeks to ensure that best use can be made of
the existing runways in the London area over the next 20 years.
In September the airport won the prestigious airport achievement
award from the European Regional Airlines Association (ERA) for
2012-13, the second time in three years the airport has won this
award. Over the last year, LSA has been the top performing
airport on the easyJet network for customer satisfaction in
surveys carried out by easyJet.

Other revenue streams connected to the airport are increasing.
The new Holiday Inn hotel opened at the airport in October and
business is building steadily. New revenue streams commenced
during the year from taxi and car rental companies, foreign
exchange services and other retail concessions. With the terminal
extension coming on line during 2013, further opportunities exist
to develop the potential for retail income at the airport. 

New facilities have now been introduced for the handling of
business jets. These have been well received and we have seen
significant growth in this area over the past year. 

At Carlisle Airport we have secured planning consent for a
major distribution centre and associated airport works. Whilst
there remains the possibility of a challenge to the consent, we
are scheduling a phased build of the infrastructure and other
developments at the airport.

Operational & Financial Review 

Stobart Air
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Financial Highlights

Revenue £m

14.9 2012 8.8

EBITDA £m

0.4 2012 (0.2)

PBT £m

(0.7) 2012 (0.4)

2013 Operational Highlights

Runway extension and new passenger terminal opened at LSA.

Commencement of easyJet flights.

Southend has been the top performing easyJet airport for
customer satisfaction.

Opening of Holiday Inn hotel.

Designation of LSA as a London airport by IATA.

Planning consent secured for major LSA terminal extension.

Additional easyJet services and destinations announced.

Granting of planning permission at Carlisle Airport.

Looking Forward, Driving Value

Introduction of a second ‘anchor’ carrier at LSA.

300% growth in business jet movements.

Over 2m passengers annually through LSA.

Continued development of Carlisle Airport.

EBITDA: EBITDA is normalised comprising the underlying operating profit before
depreciation and amortisation. 

PBT: PBT is normalised comprising the underlying operating profit, less finance
costs plus finance income.



Case Study I Southend Airport and easyJet 

In April 2012 after two years of preparatory work, the UK’s largest airline,
easyJet commenced operations with two aircraft from their new base,
London Southend Airport. A further aircraft joined the base in May and
during 2012 the airline operated flights to destinations including Amsterdam,
Belfast, Palma, Malaga, Barcelona, Ibiza, Jersey, Faro and Alicante. 

The airline announced a ten year partnership with the airport in 2011, partly due
to the high operational standards set at the airport. With commitments that
passengers should not wait longer than four minutes for security checks on
departures and on arrival that they should be on the railway station platform within
fifteen minutes of leaving the aircraft, easyJet believed they could offer their customers
a refreshing change to alternative London airports. 

Partly due to these high standards, easyJet passengers gave London Southend the
highest scores for customer satisfaction across the airline’s whole network over the
past year. The airport was also awarded the prestigious European Regions Airline
Association’s (ERA) award for airport achievement in 2013. 

As a result of the strong partnership that has been built at the airport, easyJet has
announced plans to accelerate its growth at the airport and will be basing a fourth
aircraft in Southend from June 2013. This additional aircraft will support increased
frequency on popular routes including Barcelona, Alicante and Faro, as well as new
services to Edinburgh, Berlin, Krakow and Newquay.

In Summer 2013 the airline will be operating more than 110 flights a week from
London Southend Airport. 
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As anticipated, the Biomass division has grown significantly over
the last year and the requisite robust foundations are also in place
for further growth over the forthcoming years. The UK business
performed ahead of budget, also benefiting Eddie Stobart Limited
through the associated increased haulage requirements. The
export market suffered from some adverse pricing and demand
and as a result these margins were under pressure. We have
worked to rebalance our exports to match the growth in UK
market and flows are now being spread across UK, which has
the double benefit again of providing transport opportunities.  We
are also still exporting over 100,000 tonnes per annum to Belgium.

In this past year, we commenced new supply contracts with
Dalkia at Chilton and Helius CoRDe. We have also
commenced commissioning for our supply contract with
Iggesund at Workington. All these contracts increased our
profitability towards the end of the year, but will show their full
benefit in the new financial year.

Our site at Pollington is now fully operational and producing
2,000 tonnes per week for onward sale to our UK customers.
In line with our plans, we continue to look for more sites to
increase our in-house production capabilities and to support
future demand.

Our prediction that the UK market would grow is proving
correct. The 2016 deadline for biomass plant developers is
approaching which means that operators will need to have
their supply contracts in place imminently. Volumes can be
volatile whilst plants are being commissioned but, as they
reach full operating capacity, the fuel flows stabilise and a
delivery cycle is established, leading to a more predictable and
more profitable supply.

The plan to have 2.5m tonnes of biomass product on long term
contracts by 2015 is achievable. Our only concern has been
that Government policy on renewable energy lacked certainty
and hence some of our customers have been experiencing
difficulties in raising project funding. The Government Response
to the consultation process published in December 2012
provided greater clarity on eligibility criteria. As a result we
believe that this is now easing, but it has nevertheless added
to both delay and uncertainty. We are now seeing a greater
push to conclude fuel supply agreements and achieve financial
close as the deadlines for completion of projects by March
2015 and March 2016 start to approach. Stobart Biomass
continues to be a preferred choice as a bankable fuel supplier.
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Stobart Biomass

Financial Highlights

Revenue £m

16.4 2012 8.4

EBITDA £m

4.1 2012 1.3

PBT £m

4.0 2012 1.2

2013 Operational Highlights

Tonnage for the year 644,000.

Significant new operational business acquired in the year.

New sectors identified and being optimised.

New power generators entering the market with big 
capital projects. 

Looking Forward, Driving Value

Lead the growth of the Biomass market.

Grow position in the supply sector.

Participate in other wood/waste sectors.

EBITDA: EBITDA is normalised comprising the underlying operating profit before
depreciation and amortisation. 

PBT: PBT is normalised comprising the underlying operating profit, less finance
costs plus finance income.



Case Study I Helius CoRDe Limited

Stobart Biomass Products Limited commenced a major new contract with Helius
CoRDe Limited in January 2013 delivering biomass material to the Helius Power

Plant in Rothes, Scotland. This project, however, started several years ago when, in
August 2009, a joint venture company was formed between Helius Energy plc and the

Combination of Rothes Distillers, comprising of the key distillers of Speyside in Scotland.
The aim of this new company, Helius CoRDe, was to progress with the production of a new

7.2 MWe Combined Heat and Power plant, known as CHP. In 2011 they received additional
investment and the construction of the plant commenced. 

At that time, SBPL were awarded the contract to supply 50,000 tonnes of biomass to fuel the
plant. This is a blended material, consisting of virgin fibre and A Grade recycled wood, which
must meet chemical composition and moisture content specifications. SBPL are delivering six
to seven loads of this material on a daily basis, equivalent to approximately 150 tonnes. Two
Stobart Biomass trucks are permanently based at the processing site at Kinnoir, near to the Helius
plant to ensure a consistent supply of product.

In addition to this type of material, when the Helius plant is fully operational, it will also take delivery
of a material called distilling draff, which is the spent waste left from the production of whisky, a
fact not known by many whisky lovers!

Pictured: April 2013, HRH Prince Charles at the opening of the Helius Power 
Plant at Rothes in Scotland. By kind courtesy of Helius CoRDe Limited.
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Key facilities at London Southend Airport are completed.
Annual passenger numbers are predicted to hit 800,000
by the end of the year.

Developing the ‘Right’ People

‘3P’ - ‘People, Performance, Progress’ is the vehicle we use to
identify and nurture our talented emerging leaders of the future.
The 3P suite of programmes is open to anyone in the business
who has the desire, drive and commitment to continuously grow
and develop within the Group. Our programmes are designed to
ensure that all of our people have every opportunity to achieve their
maximum potential within the business. 

3P has successfully developed and grown year-on-year since
its launch in 2010, with delegates being promoted into new
roles as a direct result of the programmes. Since its inception,
Stobart Group has invested in the delivery of 10,130 formal
training course hours within the 3P programmes.

Our learning and development programmes are key to driving
business activities forward, as well as forming the cornerstone
of the Group’s succession planning. Each programme ensures
that delegates are developed in line with their individual needs
and learning styles, as well as the Group’s strategy. Our
programmes have been designed with our strategy in mind,
listening and responding to the on-going needs and aspirations
of the business. We believe by delivering these programmes
in-house using our own experienced trainers - who understand
and share our mission - we enable delegates to apply learning
back in the workplace effectively.

Our formal interactive training courses place special focus on
the sharing of learning from work experiences.

Training materials are all dyslexia-friendly and we now have
seven work based dyslexia assessors throughout the Group to
support our employees.

Introduction to Management (ITM)

ITM is ideal for employees new to management who are looking
to improve their managerial skills. Delegates complete a range
of formal training courses, as well as work with other delegates
on the working with schools campaigns.

Introduction to Leadership (ITL)

The ‘Introduction to Leadership’ programme has been developed
to provide training opportunities for existing managers who are
looking to improve and enhance their leadership skills. The
programme comprises formal training courses ranging from
‘Managing and Improving Performance’ and ‘Finance for 
Non-Financial Managers’, through a university-accredited
assignment, which focuses on personal development worth 20
university CAT points, to ‘Working with Schools’, which can
range from road safety campaigns to inspirational talks.

Stobart Group believes that training and developing our people lies at
the heart of our success and ability to remain market leaders in an
increasingly competitive industry.

Leadership Development Programme

This flagship programme has been designed to identify, nurture and develop our emerging leaders. As with every Stobart
Group development programme, it combines skills development and aspirations with positive contributions towards
wider business objectives. The intensive 10 month programme requires delegates to complete the following:

� Formal Training Courses: These courses range from ‘Strategic Leadership’ to ‘Improving Performance Management’.

� Group Project: This is sponsored by an Executive Board Director, designed to meet a specific business need.

� Work Placements: Placement in a demanding new role enables delegates to gain experience and greater understanding
of another part of the Group. These placements present an opportunity for delegates to face new challenges in a different
role, whilst delivering business benefits from a fresh perspective.

� Mentor Support: Personal mentoring is carried out by a nominated Senior Manager or Director within the business. 

� Coventry University-Accredited Assignments: Assignments focus on business acumen and project management
allowing delegates to gain university CAT points and work towards gaining a Diploma in Professional Development.

Developing Our People I Investing in our Key Asset
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Our 3P graduates who would like to continue to develop can
enter a bespoke programme designed in conjunction with their
Line Manager and tailored around their personal needs and
aspirations, in line with business objectives. These programmes
may include mentoring of current delegates, special project work
as well as taking part in internal or external work placements.

As part of our on-going development of our programmes, this year
has seen the introduction of our working with schools initiative,
which engages with schools to promote awareness of the career
options within the logistics industry. Current research shows that
‘Logistics’ is misunderstood by 66% of 14-19 year olds, this
programme aims to increase awareness and improve the
knowledge levels of young people making a logistics career
choice. By 2017, the sector will need over 400,000 new recruits; 
engaging with youngsters as early as Primary School level will
help promote our industry. The working with schools initiative
also provides many benefits for 3P delegates, giving them 
the opportunity to apply the learning they have gained 
from programmes such as leadership, delegating, project
management and presentation skills to these projects.

In response to the demands of the business and the need 
to support the continuous personal development of its
employees, Stobart Group are introducing a series of one day
courses for employees who are not already on formal training
programmes during Summer 2013.

The People, Performance, Progress programme

Case Study I Jerri Byrne

LDP Delegate 2012: Jerri Byrne is a shining example of an
employee who has fully engaged with our 3P programmes over
the last three years. Joining the Company as an Adminstration
Clerk in 2006, she has moved up through the ranks to become
Tesco, Daventry Campus Transport Manager, managing a team
of 50 staff and two major Tesco transport sites.

Jerri started her 3P development journey in 2010 on our ‘First Line
Managers’ (FLM) programme (which is now called ITL), assisting
her greatly in her role, at that time, of Assistant Transport Manager
in Tesco, Teesport. During 2011 she went on to complete the FLM
Graduate programme whilst being part of the team responsible
for launching the Daventry Campus. 

By sharing her valuable 3P experience Jerri has now encouraged
some of her team to successfully apply for the 3P programmes
last year. Jerri then successfully gained a place on the flagship
Leadership Development Programme and by working extremely
hard alongside other delegates has maximised the learning
benefits of the programme.

Investing in Our Key Asset 



            Stobart Group Annual Report 2013 30

‘Your Say’ Employee Survey

The results of our employee survey carried out in Autumn 2011
established that people really DO want to work for Stobart
Group. However, communication between our people and their
managers was identified an area for development. Over the past
12 months we have been working on a number of initiatives
aimed at making Stobart Group an even better place to work. 

Survey results have been incorporated into some of our formal
training courses to help improve our communication and
management skills identified as an area for improvement in the
survey. Stobart News, now on its fifth edition, has also been
introduced to keep every employee abreast of the exciting
changes that have been happening across the divisions. 

Development of a new performance management appraisal
system, currently being trialled, involved representation from all
departments and divisions in its creation to ensure it reflects
precisely the aims and aspirations of our employees in line with
the Company’s strategy and vision. Full roll-out across the
Group is planned for Summer 2013. 

‘Ben’s Den’ has been developed as a vehicle for encouraging
our employees to communicate their ideas and suggestions for
making Stobart Group even better. We have received some
fantastic ideas that are already being implemented.

Stobart Group remains committed to achieving ‘Investors in
People’ status by the end of 2013. This key standard will assist
us in sustaining a culture in which every individual feels valued
and able to make a positive difference.

Eddie Stobart Training Academy

The Eddie Stobart Training Academy is now into its third year
and continues to build its reputation as a flagship training centre
for the transport and logistics industry. The Academy is seen
as a beacon of good practice, with customers and competitors
alike making visits to learn about the way in which the Group
has created a successful training resource for it employees.

Driver Training is managed and delivered at the Academy. Every
new Eddie Stobart driver attends a two day induction course
upon joining the Company. Additional training is provided on
specialist equipment, such as walking floor trailers, chipliner
trailers and the new fleet of Stobart Automotive car transporters.

The Academy has recently also taken responsibility for warehouse
training. A dedicated practical area has been installed for forklift
truck license assessments and training on other warehouse
equipment, complementing the theory courses provided in our
fully equipped training rooms.

All non-driving staff attend an Employee Induction at the
Academy or their own operational site. A suite of technical
courses are delivered at the Academy for non-driving
employees, including training on our in-house systems, such
as GTS and Isotrak, as well as training in the use of Microsoft
Office. First Aid and Fire Marshall courses are also delivered at
the Academy, with further courses aimed at ensuring all
employees are offered training and career development
opportunities constantly in development.

Staff Recruitment

The Training Academy manages all recruitment, from Drivers to
Directors. This service includes advertising of all roles on the
Stobart Group website and internal Gateway. The Academy
also manages external recruitment suppliers, negotiating cost-
effective rates for the best service. 

The Academy is currently developing an online recruitment
system aimed at increasing brand awareness and attracting the
most suitable candidates whilst avoiding the need for external
recruitment suppliers and their associated costs.

Driver Training

The Academy’s Driver Training Team continues to deliver the
‘Driver Certificate of Professional Competence’ (DCPC) to all
Eddie Stobart Drivers. It is currently ahead of schedule for
meeting the statutory requirement of 35 hours’ DCPC training
for every driver by September 2014. Non-Eddie Stobart drivers,
including agency and sub-contractors who drive for the
Company, as well as some external customers, also attend
DCPC courses at the Academy.

An equivalent of 10,000 drivers were trained by the Driver
Training team between 2010 and 2012 and we are on course
for 6,000 drivers to complete their annual DCPC training
requirement in 2013. This equates to over 700 courses being
delivered, totalling 42,000 training hours. The team also
continues to deliver ‘Safe and Fuel Efficient Driving’ (SAFED)
courses alongside courses covering a variety of other areas
complementary to driving activity, including Health and Safety,
Customer Care and EU Working Hours.

Eddie Stobart has seven JAUPT-accredited training rooms
where DCPC courses can be delivered around the country,
including a state-of-the-art fully IT equipped training trailer that
can be used anywhere in the UK. 

The Driver Training team now also includes a DSA-registered
instructor and LGV examiner which means employees can
undertake Advanced Driving Instruction and also complete their
Class 1 licence in-house. The Academy is a DSA registered Test
Centre. The aim is to now complete 100 driving tests during
2013, as well as launching a warehouse-to-wheels scheme that
offers staff the chance to complete their Category C and C+E
(Class 1) licence and move into driving roles within the business.

Driver Apprenticeships

Since the Driver Apprenticeship started in August 2011 we have
successfully introduced more young drivers into the business.
Our first Driver Apprentices graduated from their programme in
March 2013 and are now working within Eddie Stobart.

The Driver Apprenticeship is a two year programme which sees
each Apprentice complete their theory training during the first
six months, including Driving Theory, a Case Study and a
Hazard Perception test. The Apprentices then complete
Category C and C+E licence acquisition.



Case Study I Chris Grice

Developing our Drivers: Chris joined the business in 2003 as a
Driver following a 16 year career in the Armed Forces. Chris
progressed to become a Driver Trainer in 2006 and in 2010
became Eddie Stobart’s Driver Training Manager, responsible for
The Academy’s Driver Training team and advising customers and
competitors on Driver Training and challenges within the industry.

As Driver Training Manager, Chris designs our in-house training
material and all of our DCPC accredited courses. Chris has a real
passion for training and recognises the importance of developing
our drivers to ensure that they can perform to the highest
standards whilst driving efficiently and observing road rules and
regulations.

Chris invests a lot of time identifying new ways to deliver driver
training and designs innovative courses that meet the DCPC
regulations and engages with drivers to deliver interesting and
relevant courses.
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Eddie Stobart Apprentices have achieved an average 90%
licence pass rate, significantly higher than the national Driving
Standards Agency average of 46%. Once our Apprentices have
passed their theory and gained their licence, they are enrolled
in a ten week mentoring programme with one of our experienced
driver mentors. Upon successful completion, they are given the
opportunity to become an Eddie Stobart Driver.

Our apprentice scheme goes beyond Driver Training, as it aims
to identify our leaders of the future. Every apprentice spends
time working within different elements of the business, enabling
them to gain an indepth understanding of our brand values and
the way in which different parts of the business operate. 

Rail Training

Stobart Infrastructure & Civil Engineering plays an integral role
in the competence management of its workforce. In response
to the ever-changing demands of the rail and construction
sectors that it serves, the Division has become accredited to
deliver training and assessments, and is ISO9001, ISO14001
and ISO18001 approved. 

Network Rail have appointed the National Skills Academy for
Rail Engineering as the driving force behind up-skilling staff
working in the sector. Operating within the OFSTED framework,
Tribal Group have been appointed as inspectors responsible for 

ensuring training and development is continuously improved. In
this, its first year of inspection, Stobart Infrastructure & Civil
Engineering gained a ‘Good’ report from the inspectors. 

Some key areas were highlighted and, with the help of the 3P
programme, some exciting projects have delivered fantastic
results, helping ensure the Division’s continuing success at
attracting young people to the industry.

Construction Training

To prove competence in the workplace, the industry established 
the need for specific Diplomas/NVQs to be gained by staff
undergoing plant training.

With a wealth of training qualifications and experience within the
team, Stobart Infrastructure & Civil Engineering delivers training
and testing in 35 categories to Construction Plant Competence
Scheme (CPCS) level, providing the business and many client
companies with trained and competent workers. 

In addition to plant and rail training, in order to ensure works
were carried out in a safe and efficient manner, Stobart
Infrastructure & Civil Engineering identified the need for staff to
gain qualifications in a broad spectrum of other areas, including
Scaffold Access Tower (PASMA), Manual Handling, Abrasive
Wheels, Small Plant and Equipment and Fire Safety approvals. 
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The Group has developed a three year plan driven by its CSR
Committee (CSRC). The Committee is chaired by CFO, Ben
Whawell who, as an Executive Director, also holds main Board
level responsibility for CSR. The committee comprises a number
of Senior Executives within the Group, each of whom has a
specific area of expertise and responsibility, ensuring that every
division and every employee is represented and considered. 

One year into the plan and we have taken considerable steps
towards improving CSR reporting and the capturing of data on
activities that are taking place across the Group. The next phase
is to pilot projects that will deliver additional tangible CSR benefits
whilst positively engaging every employee in the delivery of
environmental benefits and fundraising for local communities. 

The plan has been created using the Group Mission Statement
as the driving force behind activity and has stakeholder
engagement at the heart of its delivery. We have detailed 
a number of case studies, our CSR strategy and future 
plans in depth within the ‘Stobart Group – Corporate Social

Responsibility 2013’ report, published separately and also now
available on our website, www.stobartgroup.com

Having identified the parameters of the Group’s CSR policy, we
are in the process of establishing benchmarks from which we
can chart progress. This exercise is being carried out by the 
CSRC. Its parameters encompass Environmental Responsibility,
Business Integrity, Community and Stobart People.

Environmental Responsibility

Stobart Group engaged with a variety of stakeholders and
independent bodies in formulating its environmental responsibility
commitments, including independent consultants, Defra and the
CDP, formerly the Carbon Disclosure Project. 

Working alongside our customers to ensure we deliver a cost-
effective solution is key to our business success, but we also
strive to drive home environmentally sound solutions as part of
our complete multi-modal logistics package. 

Stobart Group operates in line with its Corporate Social Responsibility
mission statement: ‘Embracing responsibility for our actions and
encouraging positive impacts through our activities.’ One year on from
the Group wide adoption of our CSR policy and the strong foundations
it provides, we are able to build on a number of positive environmental
activities we were already engaged with. In addition, we have further
developed our CSR strategy and committed to a three year plan of
data collation and improvement.

Corporate Social Responsibility I Positive About Community

Group Emissions Data

CO2e - 2009 Base Year (tonnes) UK Ireland International Group Total

Scope 1 235,300 2,830 7,270 245,400

Scope 2 8,470 16 4 8,490

Tonnes per £m Turnover 589

CO2e - 2013 Current Year (tonnes) UK Ireland International Group Total

Scope 1 256,077 17,640 6,660 280,377

Scope 2 10,910 210 1 11,121

Tonnes per £m Turnover 472

Emissions data presented for 2013 has been verified by the Carbon Trust Standard.
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Stobart Group is committed to dealing with environmental issues,
aiming to recycle paper and plastic wherever possible, conserve
water and energy resources and encourage pollution reduction.

Group Emissions Data

This information has been prepared using the ‘operational
control’ approach following guidance issued by The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol and Defra. The basic premise is that the Company
has responsibility for the day-to-day operations of the measured
assets, essentially recognising that the Company has effective
operational control over the consumption of resources resulting
from it operations.

Having set the boundary of measured emissions, we have
identified significant Scope 3 emissions. We now plan to
implement more robust capture of this data as part of our CSR
work programme in years two and three. The CSRC is currently
working on developing a relevant recalculation policy for
emissions data following stringent research into the most
appropriate significance threshold for Stobart Group. Once these
steps have been completed the CSRC will then tackle the
challenge of setting a reduction target.

This year the Group has chosen to change the way in which we
report our total CO2 emissions data and have opted for a financial
measurement. As the Group itself is diverse and has five very
different operating divisions we have now chosen to report CO2

per £m sales revenue for the Group.

Total Scope 1 and 2 emissions for Stobart Group were 291,498
tonnes CO2e, equating to 472 tonnes of CO2e per £m sales
revenue. In comparison to the 2009 base year total of 589 tonnes
CO2e per £m sales revenue this shows a 20% reduction in the
rate of Group emissions. In addition, we will continue to produce
a ‘CO2 per loaded mile’ figure that displays our performance for
our single largest emissions causing activity – our fleet of trucks.
CO2e per loaded mile was 1.61kgs, showing a reduction of 3.84%
from the 2011-12 year.

Recycling

In 2012 we entered into a contract with Biffa waste that set a
target of 50% reduction in waste to landfill for year one. We are
pleased to report that this equates to over 1,000 tonnes of waste
that would have previously been destined for landfill being
recycled in this year alone.

Water

Stobart Group’s Transport & Distribution division is the home of
the iconic Eddie Stobart brand. 

Part of what makes this brand so special is the way in which we
present ourselves. Eddie Stobart proactively encourages its
drivers to keep their trucks clean and tidy at all times. To assist
them in presenting a shining image, Eddie Stobart has ten truck
washes strategically located across the country.

Operating 24/7, in total these washes are capable of cleaning
700 trucks a day. Each truck wash utilises 100% recycled water,
helping conserve this limited resource.

Stobart Air and London Southend Airport

Leading the way to a more sustainable future, London Southend
Airport’s terminal extension takes at least 10% of energy from
renewable onsite sources. This is achieved by solar photovoltaic
panels supplying around 9% of energy needs and air source heat
pumps, which provide around a further 3% of energy needs. In
addition to these measures the airport is saving energy by:

� Extensive use of LED lighting.

� Use of concourse lighting that automatically dims in
response to daylight levels.

� Use of PIR sensors on lighting in the office spaces.

� Utilising a highly insulated building envelope.

� Selection of tinted glass and solar shading to reduce solar
gain and limit cooling requirements.

� Use of an energy saving mode on escalators.

� Rainwater harvesting that delivers an average 60%
reduction in water consumption.

� Use of waterless urinals and sensor taps.

� Integrated leak detection systems that are linked to the
Building Management System (BMS).

� Extensive monitoring of electric and water usage, recorded
within the BMS.

Stobart Biomass

Stobart Biomass is at the leading edge of the sourcing and
distribution of renewable biomass fuels, a key contributor towards
meeting the UK’s drive for more sustainable power generation. 

This operating division has performed well in 2013, transporting
some 650,000 tonnes of fuel to renewable power generation
plants. Much of the raw materials processed into biofuel would
have been destined for landfill. 

The Group has also recently secured planning permission for a
20MW biomass plant to supply heat and power to its Mersey
Multimodal Gateway site in Widnes.

Fleet Utilisation and Efficiency

Stobart Transport & Distribution division is the sole driver for the
efficiency of our fleet and our excellent utilisation statistics.

As a founding member of the Freight Transport Association’s
Logistics Carbon Reduction Scheme (LCRS), we are committed
to reducing carbon emissions throughout our operations in line
with the FTA’s targets for 2015.

At any one time around 86% of Stobart vehicles on the road are
carrying a load, compared to an industry average of 71.3% as
reported by the FTA.

The additional 13.5% utilisation equates to a saving in excess
of 38 million miles, or 56,000 tonnes of CO2. For every 1% of
increased Eddie Stobart fleet utilisation, carbon emissions are
reduced by over 1,000 tonnes.

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Stobart’s ‘Driving Fuel Efficiency’ initiative is also playing a key
role in helping to reduce Stobart Group’s carbon footprint. Unlike
most Safe and Fuel Efficient Driving (SAFED) programmes,
which merely rely on a ‘pat on the head’ to encourage best
practice, Stobart’s cash incentive scheme ensures drivers are
genuinely rewarded for their positive contribution to the
environment and the cost savings that fuel efficiency delivers. 

The system, which is based on on-board telematics, records
and transmits four key causes of increased fuel consumption
in real time. As a result drivers directly benefit from their own
driving efficiency through bonuses paid on a sliding scale that
reflects best practice.

The Group made the first ever UK delivery using its new high-
volume ‘Enviro-trailer’ in 2012. With its emphasis on achieving
sustainable distribution, Eddie Stobart has long championed
the use of high-volume trailers to realise environmental benefits.
We were granted a licence to operate 90 of the longer trailers
across our fleet under the governmental drive to boost the
economy, cut congestion and slash carbon emissions.

The Group’s rail freight operation now comprises five UK train
services each day and continues to make a major contribution to
reducing carbon emissions, pollution and road traffic. Increased
train lengths on the Barking to Magor services have also increased
capacity. This significant modal shift has taken over 12,000,000
lorry miles off our roads and reduced CO2 emissions by more than
15,000 tonnes.

Eddie Stobart has been testing a small fleet of Volvo dual-fuel
vehicles with selected clients. These vehicles utilise Liquid
Natural Gas (LNG) to replace up to 90% of the diesel fuel used
to drive the engine. The award-winning programme uses
standard Volvo engines, mated with a specialist dual-fuel
management system. In the event of the system running out of
LNG, the engine switches automatically to normal diesel mode. 

Despite the environmental benefits that this new technology
offers, Eddie Stobart’s ability to increase the vehicle fleet requires
considerable investment, not only in the vehicles themselves, but
also in increasing the limited number of specialist LNG refueling
facilities. The small number of fuelling points significantly limits
the range offered by dual-fuel vehicles and therefore the potential
carbon saving benefits. In response to this issue, Stobart Group
and BOC have been selected by the Government to receive
funding to stimulate the market for dual-fuel trucks. The funding
provided by the Technology Strategy Board (TSB) will be
matched by investment from the Group.

Business Integrity

Stobart Group’s approach to business integrity underpins our
values of transparency, mutual dependency, collaboration,
professional application, innovation and sustainable profit growth. 

The Group has long been at the forefront of new developments
and response to legislative changes, and is committed to the
implementation of robust policies that provide a foundation for
our business integrity and values. Detailed policy statements,
which include Stobart Group Quality, Whistle Blowing, Ethics and
Anti-Bribery & Corruption, are available on the company website
www.stobartgroup.com

The Group considers suppliers as partners in our success. We
engage with them to ensure our product and service delivery
expectations are met. The company is committed to working
with them to ensure products are ethically sourced and that,
once life-expired, they are disposed of in a way that minimises
environmental impact. 

More detailed information is available in the ‘Stobart Group –
Corporate Social Responsibility 2013’ report which is available
on our website www.stobartgroup.com

Case Study I Name that Truck!

When the company was set up in 1970, the first Eddie
Stobart truck was named after the supermodel Twiggy,
from this first truck to the present day, every truck in
the Stobart fleet carries a girl’s name which is
displayed on the front and side of our iconic cabs. 

Members of the Stobart fan club have the opportunity
to name a truck however the waiting list for this can be
up to three years. Realising that this is a sought after
element, Stobart Group now donate the opportunity to
name a truck to various fundraising events. 

During the reporting period these ‘name a truck’
opportunities have been donated to 11 fundraising
events, raising a total of £51,225 for charity.
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Reducing Risk

Customers are concerned about health and safety, the
environment and quality, but are also constantly driving for leaner
pricing and even better ‘on-time, in-full’ delivery standards.

Stobart Group’s business strategy is underpinned by its brand,
people, and business systems; it is the coherent development
and improvement in all these areas that will allow the business
to achieve its vision by working with our customers in a way that
works for us and them.

Extensive business management systems, which embrace all
appropriate policies, procedures and continuity planning, are
aimed at reducing risk and ensuring compliance with legal,
company and client requirements. Many of the Group’s business
management systems are also formally accredited.

The Group’s robust internal operational audit process is
supported by additional external accreditation and licensing
audits, ensuring that approvals are retained and that the business
continues its upward drive for constant improvement. In this way,
we ensure employee and public safety, maximise customer
satisfaction, increase profitability and improve the Stobart brand.

‘Stobart Gateway’ is the Group’s internal web-based information
hub which clearly communicates business management
systems to every employee. 

The annual programme of risk-based internal operational audits
is carried out by highly experienced, fully qualified auditors. This
stringent programme, comprising some 300 different internal
audits each year, ensures compliance and performance levels
are maintained.

Business risk and compliance standards are constantly tested,
measured and reviewed at Directorial level within each
operational division and sub-division with results being reported
at every Board meeting. This process encompasses the use of
a balanced scorecard that includes economic, customer, brand,
process and people parameters; providing management with
consistently reported, reliable information. 

The Fleet

Eddie Stobart holds ISO9001 quality management and ISO14001
environmental accreditation for its provision of fleet management
services.

Warehousing

Provision of warehousing and distribution services, including
customer-specific requirements within the retail trade, are all
accredited to ISO9001.

The Warehousing business is also European Food Safety
Inspection Service (EFSIS) approved for the receipt, storage,
order picking and dispatch of chilled and ambient stable food
products at Nottingham, Belshill and Lutterworth.

The Daresbury site is ISO9001 accredited for the storage,
distribution and depot handling of third party goods. Daresbury
also holds a Wholesale Dealer’s Licence from the Medicines and
Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency.

Stobart Academy

Centrally located at the Group’s Mersey Mulitmodal Gateway hub
in Widnes, Stobart Academy was originally established to provide
premium quality training for Eddie Stobart drivers. The DSA-
approved Training Centre comprises seven JAUPT-approved
multi-media training rooms and a large presentation space
containing a state-of-the-art LGV driving simulator, trailers and a
tractor unit for hands-on training. It provides induction training and
statutory Driver Certificate of Personal Competance training for all
of the Group’s professional drivers and is now an approved Class
1 LGV driving licence test centre.

The success of the Academy, which is now recognised as a
benchmark facility within the industry, has resulted in extension
of its remit to encompass a broad spectrum of other courses,
including general staff inductions, IT and safety courses and
training for warehouse personnel.

Stobart Infrastructure & Civil Engineering

Stobart Infrastructure & Civil Engineering is accredited to ISO9001
quality management standards, ISO14001 environmental
management standards and the Occupational Health and Safety
Management standard OHSAS 18001.

Committed to Communities

Stobart Group’s 6,700 staff form an important vehicle for making
a real difference to the communities in which we operate. 

We recognise that we have an important role to play in the
development and enrichment of these communities; not only as
an employer, but also through collaboration and financial and in-
kind investment. By encouraging our staff and business units to
support and develop local initiatives, Stobart Group helps drive
positive change within our surrounding communities. 

There are a broad spectrum of initiatives led by our business,
ranging from charitable giving and support for educational
projects through to road safety campaigns. The Group also
provides the opportunity for children to visit our depots, providing
an insight into career opportunities within the business. 

Working with Schools

As part of the Stobart Group internal Management Development
Programmes all delegates are required to take part in the Group’s
‘Working With Schools’ initiative. 

There are four elements to this initiative; road safety campaigns
in conjunction with Brake, ‘Young Enterprise’ mentoring, Stobart
depot visits and ‘Inspiring the Future’ careers talks. 

Road Safety Campaigns

Our employees have launched a number of campaigns around
the country aimed at making Primary School children more aware
of the dangers associated with roads and road traffic. 

As a company we have an enormous visible presence on UK
roads and it is vital that we encourage children and young people
to take care when out and about on our roads. 

Corporate Social Responsibility



            Stobart Group Annual Report 2013 36

Ad Hoc 
Donations £181,813

Working with
Schools Donations £763

In Kind Donations 
£15,579

Cash Donations 
£185,426

Employee Sponsorship 
Donations £2,850

Total Cash Donations Cash versus In Kind Donations

Young Enterprise Mentoring

Stobart Group is closely involved with the ‘Young Enterprise’
programme that provides students with a taste of employment
and equips them with useful skills for post-education success. 

Over the course of an academic year, students set up and run
their own real company, working together to elect a Board of
Directors, raising share capital, and marketing and financing a
product or service of their choice.

Stobart Group employees attend fortnightly meetings with the
students, acting as mentors and providing valuable advice and
guidance. 

Stobart Depot Visits

Enabling students to visit one of our sites offers an invaluable
insight into the operations of a large company, providing them
with the opportunity to relate their real life experiences to their
studies. 

As secondary and sixth form students are considering future
career paths, these visits also offer an opportunity to exchange
ideas with industry professionals and decide whether a career
within Stobart Group, or the wider logistics sector, is of interest
to them. 

These depot visits can also be arranged for primary school age
children, providing them with an insight into the world of logistics.

‘Inspiring the Future’ Careers Talks

Aimed at secondary, sixth form and further education students,
‘Inspiring the Future’ is an initiative that sees Stobart Group
volunteers visiting schools and colleges to talk about their
careers and the education paths they followed. We firmly
believe that engaging young people in this way can make a real
difference to their perceptions of potential within Stobart Group
and the sectors in which it operates. Our aim is to inspire them
with exciting options that they had previously not considered. 

Since September 2012, over a hundred employees have
engaged with schools through the Inspiring the Future
programme, donating a total of 400 hours. The hugely successful
and popular initiative also offers benefits to volunteers, as it
enables them to utilise the communication skills they have
developed within the Management Development Programme. 

Schools have also found the programme to be hugely
beneficial, as it offers children access that they would not have
otherwise had to an iconic business operating in their area. 

A teacher resource section has also been developed on our
Steady Eddie website to further assist and support education.
This valuable resource includes lesson plans and
accompanying information that touches on many areas of the
core curriculum, including literacy and numeracy. 

Detailed Reporting

Throughout the 2012/13 financial year, Stobart Group have
implemented a highly detailed reporting system which now
enables the business to capture all cash and in-kind donations
made by staff across all initiatives. Following any donation, the
new Group-wide process requires staff to complete a CSR Site
Activity Report which is in turn sent to the CSR Officer who is
responsible for logging it on a central database. 

We can report that a total of 1,031 staff hours were donated
during the reporting period, this equates to a total value of more
than £15,500 in-kind donations. In addition, Stobart Group itself
has contributed over £185,000 in further cash donations. 

Employee Sponsorship Scheme

Stobart operates a Group-wide employee sponsorship scheme
comprising some 12%, or £2,850, of total company donations.
This scheme which is open to every employee entitles them to a
minimum £50 donation for their chosen cause. 
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During the reporting period, 62 charitable causes received a
donation through this scheme. The broad spread of charities
benefitting included the Bobby Robson Foundation, Macmillan
Cancer Research and the Children’s Brain Tumour Research
Centre.

The Group’s programme also considers adhoc requests for
support. 23 donations were made through this initiative in 2012-
2013, totalling over £180,000.

The Future

In order to further encourage community engagement, a Group-
wide employee engagement initiative is currently in development
which will be rolled-out during 2013.

This evolving initiative will further promote and formalise Stobart
Group’s employee engagement strategy.

Case Study I Road Safety Campaigns

On Monday 16 March 2013 pupils at Warwick Bridge Primary
School near Carlisle received road safety lessons from
Stobart Group staff. Working as part of the ‘Introduction to
Leadership’ programme, Project Leader, Ruth Pratt and
colleagues, Cheri Ellis, Joanne Carson and Mark Shead,
carried out the educational visit with the assistance of Stobart
driver Ian Titterington and PC Owen of Brampton Police.

During the visit, Year 3 and Year 4 pupils learned the Green
Cross Code and the importance of wearing clothing that’s
highly visible to drivers. The pupils also took part in an
exercise involving a Stobart truck and its driver. The children
were walked around the vehicle until the driver could see
them, highlighting how hard it is for LGV drivers to see them. 

Talking of the visit teacher David Godfrey said “The whole
session has been good – really useful. The children have
listened really well to the messages and taken them on
board.”

Seven year old Olivia McPherson added “I really enjoyed it.
I’ve learned to always wear bright colours so you can be
seen.”

Eddie Stobart driver Ian Titterington commented “This visit
highlighted just how wary drivers and children need to be
on the roads. The children really engaged with the session
by asking lots of questions and making suggestions about
how they can ensure they stay safe when out on the roads
and around vehicles.”
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IOSH Training

Over 170 operational managers have now been trained to the
benchmark IOSH (the Institute of Occupational Safety and
Health) ‘Managing Safely’ standard, further bolstering the
Group’s robust record in reporting, recording and investigation
of accidents, incidents and near-misses. This four day course
provides an entry level health and safety qualification that helps
provide Managers with the skills needed in every day health and
safety management and incident recording. 

To-date 25 IOSH-trained managers responsible for incident
reporting have gone on to take the Foundation Certificate in
Accident Investigation, helping ensure incident reports are
completed correctly. Stobart have entered into a strategic
partnership with the Institute of Industrial Accident Investigators,
who moderate the course, providing a solid foundation for
standardised incident recording.

Near-Miss Reporting

Near-miss reporting continues to be a key area of focus for the
business. The provision of the near-miss cards has encouraged
their recording, assisting in the management of near-misses
and helping ensure pro-active investigation reduces the risk of
future reactive management of an unnecessary incident.

To assist in the engagement of staff in the Group’s safety
culture, a quarterly health and safety newsletter is distributed to
every Stobart Group employee. It plays a valuable role in
delivering and reinforcing the message and keeps staff updated
with accident rates, on-going health and safety developments,
and engages using safety-specific interviews with employees.

Award-winning ‘Stop, Think, Act!’ campaign

During the year, the award-winning Stop, Think, Act! campaign
was extended to encompass vehicle incident trends within
Stobart Transport & Distribution. This was particularly centred
on reminding Eddie Stobart drivers of the special risks around
the operation of Large Good Vehicles, trailers, reversing and
use of equipment. The acronym ‘SMART’ has been used
successfully in the campaign to highlight potential issues:

� Susies: Don’t forget to disconnect your susies (the
couplings between tractor and trailer) when uncoupling.

� Manoeuvres: Mirror, signal, manoeuvre.

� Awareness: Observe, anticipate and plan.

� Reversing: When reversing, “if in doubt, get out”.

� Trailers: Know your trailer height and length.

* Calculated by dividing the number of reportable accidents in the year by the number of hours
worked, multiplied by 100,000.

The Safety Pyramid

Work continued across the organisation to positively influence
health and safety performance during the year. 2012-13 saw the
re-launch of a revised ‘Positive Safety Pyramid’, which now better
encompasses the wide-ranging factors impacting health and
safety. This initiative re-focusses the process onto pro-active risk
management, rather than reactive accident management.

Drugs and Alcohol Policy

December 2012 saw the implementation of the Group’s new
Drugs & Alcohol policy in partnership with leading testing
provider, Concateno. The new policy helps provide employees
with a safe and healthy working environment, free from the risks
posed by the misuse of alcohol or drugs within the working
environment. Stobart Group currently has over 100 members
of staff trained in the collection and testing of drug and alcohol
samples. A policy of cause testing in the event of incident or
suspicion is now being implemented, with a further programme
of random testing in a sample percentage of employees being
completed in 2013. 

RIVO Safeguard

 Following procurement and successful introduction of the ‘RIVO
Safeguard’ online safety system in November 2011, a number
of additional modules have been purchased. 

One example being the ‘asset’ module that was developed in
partnership with Stobart Group’s warehouse management team
as a vehicle for the control of company assets and statutory
inspection records. Since its introduction this module has
proved highly effective and is proving invaluable. 

RIVO Safeguard continues to be rolled-out across all the Stobart
businesses, with the ‘incident’ module now adopted by Stobart
Air at Southend; further ensuring a standardised approach to
incident reporting and investigation within the business.

Health and Safety Audits

Stobart Group health and safety audits were revised and
refreshed during 2012-13. The new audit process is carried-out
at least once a year by every Stobart site.

Each audit reviews compliance with all relevant statutory health
and safety requirements, as well as internally-applied company
controls; ensuring there is a controlled approach that delivers
consistent compliance throughout the Group. Annual audits are
supplemented by six-monthly inspections at every site, which
place special focus on the major legislative requirements and re-
enforcing the policy of consistency of approach.

Health and safety remains a key consideration within the Group as
it continues its drive forward. The 2013 Accident/Incident Frequency
rate (AFR) came in at 0.17, against a recorded figure of 0.16 for 2012
and significantly improving on 2011’s rate of 0.47.*

Leading The Field I Health and Safety
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Consumer Confidence

As a key supplier to UK retailers, the Group’s revenues are not
as sensitive to general economic and consumer spending
conditions. This is because a large proportion of loads carried
are within the Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) sector. 

Where volumes fluctuate, the Group operates a fleet financing
and recruitment policy which allows it to flex its operations in
response to both increases and decreases in demand. 

Seasonality and Abnormal Weather

Supplying UK retailers, the Group’s revenue has been
seasonally linked with its customers, with demand peaking in
the summer months and the build-up to Christmas. January
and February have typically been the slowest trading months. 

The Group has grown non-seasonal business to minimise these
peaks and troughs, but revenues will still flex in response to
strong or weak retail trading; particularly in the build-up to
Christmas. The ability to flex the fleet in response as outlined
above also mitigates this risk. 

Extreme weather, such as high winds and snow, can disrupt the
Group’s business as the fleet and rail terminals can have
difficulty operating. Pre-emptive controls have been introduced
to mitigate risk during extreme weather such as stockpiling grit
for use at depots, cleaning and treating rail terminal points.

Government Legislation and Regulation

Operating in the transport and distribution sector, the Group is
subject to a number of areas of legislation and regulation. 

Legislation and regulation in areas such as working time, health
and safety, road duties, fuel costs and environment can have
an impact on a number of operational areas. The management
team has worked within these constraints through the
introduction of appropriate systems and controls.

Information Technology

The Group’s business model is dependent on certain information
systems and externally hosted databases. These are backed up
and the Group has in-house IT services. 

Documented protocols and risk assessments are in place along
with service level agreements with key suppliers. These are
supported by an IT Business Continuity Plan to ensure risk is
mitigated.

Airport Safety and Security

There are inherent safety and security risks involved in operating
an airport. The airport management and staff are well equipped
to manage fire and other safety and security related risks. London
Southend Airport and Carlisle Lake District Airport are regulated
by the Civil Aviation Authority and the Department for Transport.
Documented protocols and emergency plans are in place. 

Demand for Integrated 
and Outsourced Transport and Logistics

The transport and logistics industry in the UK has seen a general
trend towards an increased demand from customers for an
integrated transport and logistics service from suppliers with
national and international operations, as opposed to companies
providing only one service on a limited regional basis.

The Board believes that the Group is well positioned to take
advantage of this move towards integrated and outsourced
transport and logistics with both national and international
capabilities, offering a more operationally efficient service.

People

The strategic and operational management of the Group
depends on certain key management. Management is retained
by competitive performance-based remuneration and key man
insurance policies are in place.

Competition

The transport and logistics industry remains highly polarised,
with a large number of small regional operators competing for
general transport work and a small number of national and
international businesses capable of offering fully outsourced/
integrated solutions to major UK customers. 

The Group is targeting national transport and logistics contracts
worth in excess of £10m per annum. However, due to the nature
of the innovative cost model, the Group will also seek other
business to complement its traffic flows with a focus on
profitability and efficiency.

The Group operates an internal risk control system to evaluate and
manage risks as described in the section ‘Internal Control and Risk
Management’ on page 49 of this report. Besides general risk
factors, a non-exhaustive summary of specific risks affecting the
Group’s operations and industry is outlined below.
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Nature of Lease Obligations

Stobart Group has a number of warehouse and operating depot
leases which represent a significant cost commitment and
contribute to material fixed costs. 

Where possible, the Group sublets facilities in back-to-back
arrangements with end customers to minimise financial risk.
The warehouses are predominantly on standard commercial
property terms and include periodic upwards only rent reviews. 

Fuel Prices

Fuel prices represent a high cost in the Group. The impact of
fuel price movements on financial performance in 2011/12 and
2012/13 has been negligible due to the use of fuel price
escalators within all customers contracts.

Commercial Property

The Group currently holds an interest in a number of
commercial property assets. These properties are subject to
the general property market climate. Some of the values have
been substantially written down in previous years following the
downturn in the commercial property market. The Group has
seen an increase in value in the properties as a whole during
the year.

Acquisitions

The enlarged Stobart Group was formed by a merger in
September 2007 and has, since then, completed a further eight
major acquisitions. 

The synergistic benefits from the mergers and acquisitions will
be derived from successful integration of the various interests.
The Group has adopted detailed integration plans to ensure the
integrations are successful.

Capital Expenditure

The successful development of the Group’s assets at London
Southend Airport, Carlisle Lake District Airport, Widnes, the
Moneypenny portfolio of properties and the Port of Weston at
Runcorn will depend, to an extent, on securing funding for the
proposals. The Group manages its capital and debt and
believes it is in a strong position to realise the potential of these
assets.
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Paul Orchard-LisleCBE
Interim Non-Executive Chairman

Paul has spent fifty years in the property sector,
joining Healey & Baker in 1961, where he rose
to become Senior Partner, later overseeing the
Company’s merger with Cushman & Wakefield
in 1998. 

He has been President of The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and held numerous plc
positions, both in Directorial and advisory roles.
Paul has also been an adviser to The Department
of the Environment, The Ministry of Defence and
HM Treasury on real estate matters.

Michael Kayser
Non-Executive Director

Michael is a Fellow of the CIMA and has extensive
experience in corporate transactions, both in
quoted and private markets.

Michael has also held a variety of senior finance
appointments at Laporte plc, Doncasters Limited,
Amey plc, Unilever and Guinness Brewing
Worldwide. He is also currently serving as Senior
Independent Director of Biome Technologies plc.

Rodney Baker-Bates
Non-Executive Director

Rodney has had a long career in the City and
international finance sector and is a seasoned
Director of large UK plcs. In addition to his role at
Stobart Group, Rodney’s current roles also
include Chairmanship of Willis Ltd, Shropshire
Group, Ridgeons Group and Vice Chairman of
AtlasFram Group. 

He also serves as a Non-Executive Director on the
boards of several other companies, including
Bedlam Asset Management plc and Royal National
Pension Fund for Nurses. 

Richard Butcher
Company Secretary

Richard joined Eddie Stobart in 1997 after 14
years with HSBC Corporate Finance and has
been closely involved in a wide range of Stobart
business activities, holding a number of key
positions within the business including
Managing Director of Eddie Stobart.

As CEO, Stobart Estates, Richard plays a key role in
property asset development. He is also Company
Secretary.

Avril Palmer-Baunack
Non-Executive Chairman, Retired 15 May 2013

Avril was formerly CEO of Autologic plc, before the
purchase by Stobart Group. Prior to joining Autologic
Avril was CEO of Universal Salvage plc. She 
has previously held management positions with
automotive companies such as FMG support,
Europcar UK and Northgate Motor Holdings plc.
Avril is Non-Executive Chairman at Molins plc and
Non Executive Chairman at Helphire Group plc.

David Beever
Non-Executive Director, Retired 21 Janaury 2013

David is a former Vice Chairman of SG Warburg and
has been KPMG Chairman, UK & International
Corporate Finance amongst numerous other board
Directorships. He is also a member of the Board of
Trustees of the University of London.

Alan Kelsey
Non-Executive Director, Retired 23 April 2013

A Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Logistics and
Transport, Alan has forty years’ experience in the City
and industry, with a strong focus on the Transport
sector. He has been Group Corporate Development
Director at National Express Group plc, is currently
Chairman of Nord Anglia Education and also Non-
Executive Chairman of Explore Learning, a private
company owned by private equity investors.

Jesper Kjaedegaard 
Non-Executive Director, Retired 28 June 2012

Jesper has more than 30 years’ experience in
transport and logistics and was appointed CEO of
Maersk Company UK Limited in 2004. Leaving in
2008, he co-founded Mercator International, an
independent ports and infrastructure consultancy.
Jesper is also past President of the British Chamber
of Shipping and currently holds a number of other
Non-Executive roles in the UK and South America.

Andrew Tinkler
Chief Executive Officer

Andrew acquired Eddie Stobart in 2004 with
longstanding colleague William Stobart, and was
appointed CEO when the Group became listed. He
has been instrumental in developing the strategy
and vision of today’s Group. 

A past winner of the IoD North West Director of the
Year Award, Andrew’s proven risk management
experience has formed a valuable foundation for
implementing the Group’s multimodal plans and
delivering on the strategy.

Ben Whawell
Chief Financial Officer

A Qualified Chartered Accountant, Ben spent nine
years at Grant Thornton before joining Eddie
Stobart in 2004. 

Ben oversaw the merger with Westbury Property
Fund that resulted in the formation of Stobart Group
in 2007. 

He has played a key role in a number of successful
acquisitions, which have seen the business triple in
size over the last five years. 

Ben received the North West Financial Director of
the Year Award in 2009 and the Large Company
Finance Director of the Year Award in 2012.

William Stobart
Chief Operating Officer

Long-time Director of Eddie Stobart, William started
his career with the company. He carried out a broad
spectrum of roles, including HGV driver, planner and
manager within Stobart during his early career. This
comprehensive experience has given him an in-
depth understanding of every level of the business.

William left Eddie Stobart in 2001, joining Andrew
Tinkler’s business as a shareholding Director, and in
2004, following the acquisition of Eddie Stobart
Limited he returned as Managing Director. Working
closely with Andrew, William led the business
through its rapid expansion and into its floatation in
2007. William is currently CEO of the Transport &
Distribution division and sits on the Board as COO.
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Principal Activities 

Stobart Group is a national leader in multimodal logistics,
warehousing and biomass fuel sectors, as well as operating in
the property development, ports, airports and civil engineering
sectors. Details of the principal subsidiary undertakings,
associates and joint ventures of the Group are contained in the
notes to the Financial Statements. 

Emissions 

Total emissions for Stobart Group were 291,498 tonnes CO2e
(Scope 1 and 2) equating to 472 tonnes of CO2e per £m sales
revenue. In comparison to the 2009 base year total of 589 tonnes
CO2e per £m sales revenue, this shows a 20% reduction in the rate
of Group emissions. This information has been prepared using the
operational control approach based on guidance issued by The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol and Defra. This is on the basis that as
the Group has responsibility for the day to day operations of the
measured assets, the Group has effective operational control over
the resource consumption.

Results and Dividends 

A review of Group activities, analysis of revenue and profit,
indication of future developments and principal risks and
uncertainties and a review of the KPIs are included in the Chief
Executive Officer’s Report on pages 3 to 7, the Operational and
Financial Review on pages 13 to 26 and the Risk Management
section on pages 39 and 40.

An interim dividend of 2.0p per share was paid on 7 December
2012. Subject to shareholders’ approval at the AGM to be held
on Thursday 27 June 2013 at 11.30 am, at The Fermain Valley
Hotel, Fermain Lane, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1ZZ a final
dividend of 4.0p per share will be paid on 5 July 2013 to
shareholders on the register at 24 May 2013. The ex-dividend
date is 22 May 2013. A scrip dividend alternative will be made
available to shareholders.

Policy and Practice on Payment of Creditors 

The Group agrees payment terms with its suppliers when it enters
into a binding agreement. In this way, suppliers are made aware
of these terms.

Directors

Biographies of the Board of Directors are shown on page 41.
On 28 June 2012 Jesper Kjaedegaard stepped down from his
position as Non-Executive Director. On 18 September 2012 Avril
Palmer-Baunack was appointed as an Executive Director  and
Deputy CEO of Stobart Group. Also on this date  William Stobart
was re-appointed as an Executive Director.

On 21 January 2013 David Beever resigned from his position
as Non-Executive Director. Avril Palmer-Baunack was appointed
Executive Chairman also on 21 January 2013.  

Avril Palmer-Baunack stood down from her role as Executive
Chairman on 2 April 2013 and left the Group on 15 May 2013. 

Paul Orchard-Lisle has been appointed as interim Non-
Executive Chairman on 15 May 2013. A search is underway for
a new Non-Executive Chairman.

Alan Kelsey resigned from his position on 23 April 2013 and
Stobart Group are currently working to secure a replacement
Non-Executive Director/Senior Independent Director.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Group maintains an appropriate level of Directors’ and
Officers’ insurance whereby Directors are indemnified against
liabilities to third parties to the extent permitted by Guernsey
Company Law. 

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual financial
statements in accordance with applicable Guernsey Law and
International Financial Reporting Standards applicable in the
EU. Our Guernsey registration dates back to the days of the
Westbury Property Fund. We have looked at options to re-
register in the UK and have found it to be too complicated and
costly to enact at this time. Guernsey Company Law requires
the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
and Company for that period and are in accordance with
applicable laws. 

In preparing those financial statements the Directors are
required to:

� Select suitable accounting policies and apply them
consistently.

� Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent.

� Prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group
and Company will continue in business.

� State whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group and Company and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies (Guernsey) Law 2008. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Board and Senior Executives of the Group are accountable
to the shareholders and communicate with them on a regular
basis in a number of ways. These include:

� Annual general and extraordinary meetings.
� Announcements on the London Stock Exchange.
� Regular briefings on the Group’s website.
� Bi-annual presentations to institutional shareholders.

Directors’ Report



Directors’ Interests in Shares

The Directors and their immediate families had the following
beneficial interests as at 28 February 2013 and 15 April 2013 in
the Group’s ordinary shares.

Director Number of Ordinary Shares

        28 February 2013 15 April 2013

Rodney Baker-Bates 492,125 492,125

Andrew Tinkler* 33,754,245 33,754,245

Ben Whawell 144,091 144,091

Michael Kayser 114,166 114,166

Jesper Kjaedegaard 100,750 100,750

Alan Kelsey 55,500 55,500

David Beever 41,061 41,061

Paul Orchard-Lisle 39,777 39,777

William Stobart 10,435,061 10,435,061

* In addition 70,256 shares are held in the name of Laura Tinkler, 65,000 shares are held in
the name of Adam Tinkler and 82,290 shares are held in the name of Alison Schmutz.

The individual interests of the Directors in share options are
shown below with further details to be found in the Remuneration
Report on pages 50 to 53.

Director Number of Options

Andrew Tinkler 16,335,088

Ben Whawell 2,000,000

William Stobart 5,717,149

Substantial Shareholdings

At 28 February 2013 and 15 April 2013, the Directors were aware
that the following shareholders owned three per cent or more of
the issued ordinary shares of the Group.

Name Number of Number of
Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares
28 February 2013 % 15 April 2013 %

Invesco Asset 127,112,590 35.91 127,112,590 35.91
Management

M&G Investments 47,915,022 13.54 47,915,022 13.54

Directors and Related 44,456,481 12.56 44,456,481 12.56

AW Jenkinson 17,084,647 4.83 17,084,647 4.83

Share Capital

Details of the authorised and issued share capital and reserves
of the Group are shown in Note 26 to the Financial Statements.
The Share capital of Stobart Group Limited at year end was
made up of 353,960,872 ordinary shares of 10p. The ordinary
shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange. During the
year the Group purchased treasury shares of £9.5 million.

Going Concern

The Group’s business activities, together with factors likely to
affect its future performance and position, are set out in the Chief
Executive Officer’s Report on pages 3 to 7 and the financial
position of the Group, its cash flows and funding are set out in
the Operational and Financial Review on pages 14 to 26. 

In addition, Note 22 to the Financial Statements includes
details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the year end
together with the Group’s objectives, policies and processes
for managing its capital, its financial risk management
objectives, details of its financial instruments and its exposure
to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has considerable financial resources, together with
contracts with a number of customers and suppliers. The
financial forecasts show that borrowing facilities are adequate
such that the Group can operate within these facilities and meet
its obligations when they fall due for the foreseeable future. As
a consequence, the Directors believe that the Group is well
placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the
current economic climate. After making enquiries, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the Financial Statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

Responsibility Statement of the Directors in respect of the
Annual Report and Group Financial Statements 

The current Directors shown on page 41, who were in office at
the date of signature, confirm to the best of their knowledge that:

The financial statements, prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or loss of the Group. 

The Directors’ report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the balance sheet
position of the Group, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces.

Auditors 

Following a competitive tender process for the delivery of
company audit services, KPMG Audit Plc were appointed in
September 2012 and Ernst & Young LLP resigned.

The Directors who held office at the date of the approval of this
Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s
auditors are unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps
that he/she ought to have taken as Director to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and
establish that the Group’s auditors are aware of that information.

By order of the Board.

Richard Butcher I Company Secretary I 16 May 2013
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Executive Directors

Andrew Tinkler

Chief Executive Officer Appointed 01 March 2008

Ben Whawell

Chief Financial Officer Appointed 01 March 2008

William Stobart

Chief Operating Officer Appointed 18 September 2012

Non-Executive Directors

Rodney Baker-Bates Appointed 01 March 2008

Michael Kayser Appointed 01 March 2008

Paul Orchard-Lisle Appointed 23 May 2011

Alan Kelsey Appointed 23 May 2011

Resigned 23 April 2013

Avril Palmer-Baunack Appointed 18 September 2012

Resigned 15 May 2013

David Beever Appointed 23 May 2011

Resigned 21 January 2013

Jesper Kjaedegaard Appointed 01 July 2009

Resigned 28 June 2012

Company Secretary

Richard Butcher Appointed 20 April 2011

Registered Office

Old Bank Chambers, La Grande Rue, St Martin’s, Guernsey

GY4 6RT

Administrator

Morgan Sharpe Administration Limited

Old Bank Chambers, La Grande Rue, St Martin’s, 

Guernsey GY4 6RT

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc

St James Square, Manchester M2 6DS.

Bankers

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

1 Spinningfields Square, Spinningfields, Manchester M3 3AP.

M&G Investment Management Limited

Laurence Pountney Hill, London EC4R 0HH.

KBC Commercial Finance NV

Havenlaan 6, Avenue du Port, BE-1080 Bruxelles, Belgium.

GE Real Estate Finance Limited

The Ark, 201 Talgarth Road, London W6 8BJ.

Bank of London and The Middle East plc

Sherborne House, 119 Cannon Street, London EC4N 5AT.

Sponsor, Financial Adviser and Broker

Cenkos Securities Limited

6.7.8 Tokenhouse Yard, London EC2R 7AS.

Investec Securities

2 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7QP.

Directors, Officers and Advisers



Good corporate governance assists in the promotion of this growth
by ensuring that there is effective authority and accountability
throughout the organisation. The base that the Group uses for this
is the 2010 UK Corporate Governance Code (2010 Code) issued
by the Financial Reporting Council and appended to the Listing
Rules and which sets out best practice of how a company should
be run.

The purpose of this report is to show how the Group complies with
the Code and, on the rare occasions where it does not, explain the
reason for non-compliance.

The Directors believe that the Group has complied throughout the
period with the code provisions set out in the 2010 Code.

Printed copies of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
and the UK Corporate Governance Code (applicable for financial
years commencing on or after 29 June 2010) can be obtained free
of charge from the Financial Reporting Council (FRC Publications)
by emailing customerservices@cch.co.uk, by telephoning 
+44(0) 208 247 1264 or online at frcpublications.com.

The Board - Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by different individuals in order to provide segregation of roles. 

The Chairman’s role is to manage the Board of Directors,
ensure that the Non-Executives are committed to their positions
and are able to contribute to the management of the Group as
a whole. 

The Chief Executive Officer’s role is to implement strategy laid
down by the Board of Directors and to manage the Group and
its operations. The Board of Directors is collectively responsible
for the success of the Group.

Board Balance and Independence

As at 28 February 2013 the Board consisted of eight individuals
four of whom were independent Non-Executive Directors and four
(including the Chairman) were Executive Directors. Over the past
year this Board has had the appropriate balance and skill set to
advise on the Group’s growth.

On 28 June 2012 Jesper Kjaedegaard stepped down from his
position as Non-Executive Director. On 18 September 2012 Avril
Palmer-Baunack was appointed as an Executive Director and
Deputy Chief Executive Officer. Also on this date William Stobart
was re-appointed as an Executive Director. 

On 21 January 2013 David Beever resigned from his position as
Non-Executive Director. Avril Palmer-Baunack was appointed
Executive Chairman also on 21 January 2013.

Both the Executive and Non- Executive Directors in position at the
date of this report offer themselves for re-election on an annual
basis.

Senior Independent Director 

Alan Kelsey was the Senior Independent Director of the Group
for the financial period. His role was to:

� Be available to shareholders if they have concerns which
cannot be dealt with by the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer or Chief Financial Officer.

� Attend institutional and analyst briefings, in addition to the
Chief Executive Officer and his team.

� Meet with the Non-Executive members of the Board at
least once a year without the presence of the Chairman or
the Executive Directors in order to review the Chairman’s
performance in his/her role and also the Chairman’s
relationship with the Chief Executive Officer.

Post Year End

Avril Palmer-Baunack stood down from her role as Executive
Chairman on 2 April 2013 and left the Group on 15 May 2013.
Paul Orchard-Lisle has been appointed as Interim Non-
Executive Chairman on 15 May 2013. A search is underway for
a new Non-Executive Chairman.

Alan Kelsey resigned from his position on 23 April 2013 and
Stobart Group are currently working to secure a replacement
Non-Executive Director/Senior Independent Director.

Company Secretary and Independent Advice

The Company Secretary’s role is to act as advisor to the Board
on matters relating to Corporate Governance and, in conjunction
with the Chairman, to ensure good information flows between
the Board, its various committees, the Non-Executive and
Executive Directors and senior members of the Executive Team.

The Non-Executive Directors have access to his advice and
services in addition to independent, professional advice if
required (at the Group’s expense).

Matters Reserved for the Board and how it Operates

In accordance with the Code, the Board has agreed a formal
schedule of matters requiring its decision. In summary, those
matters reserved to the Board include:
� Strategy of the Group.

� Being alert to market and other prevalent conditions and their
potential consequence on the Group and the environment in
which it operates.

� Continuing review of Group performance against its forecasts.

� Consideration and approval of financial results, dividend
policy and payments.

� Capital structure and any debt funding of the Group.

� Approval of financial and other commitments above those
delegated to the Executive.

� Monitoring internal control and risk management.

� Appointment of the Executive Directors on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee.
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Above all other objectives, the Board is there to ensure that the Group
provides long term and sustainable growth for its shareholders.



The Board has met for eight scheduled meetings during the
course of the 12 months under review and attendance at such
Board Meetings by individual Directors is set out below. There
were two additional meetings to discuss the proposed share buy-
back scheme, interim management statement and verification
statement.

The agenda and relevant briefing papers are distributed by the
Company Secretary on a timely basis, usually a week in advance
of each Board meeting.

In addition, the Board met with members of the senior management
team on 3 October 2012 to discuss the Group’s vision and strategy
and review business planning and risk mechanisms.

Director No. meetings No. meetings
              attended eligible to attend

Rodney Baker-Bates 10 10

Avril Palmer-Baunack 4 4

Andrew Tinkler 9 10

Ben Whawell 10 10

Michael Kayser 9 10

Jesper Kjaedegaard 3 4

William Stobart 2 3

David Beever 9 10

Alan Kelsey 10 10

Paul Orchard-Lisle 9 10

Board meetings are an opportunity, for example, for the Non-
Executive Directors to challenge performance of the various
Divisions against targets and KPIs set, to review transactions
which have taken place since the preceding meeting and to
receive reports from the Board’s committees.

Board proceedings are recorded in comprehensive minutes
which permit any Director to record their views if they have any
concerns which the Board cannot satisfactorily resolve. No
such concerns were voiced during this period.

Appointments to the Board

The Board has established a Nomination Committee which is
required to meet at least once a year or more often, if so required,
in order to make recommendations to the Board on the
composition, balance and membership of the Board.

The Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee met once during the year. The
Nomination Committee leads the process for Board appointments
and makes recommendations to the Board on the structure, size
and composition of the Board and succession planning for
Directors and Senior Executives. 

The Committee’s members are the Non-Executive Directors. For
new potential Non-Executive Board members, the Nomination
Committee meets and agrees to appoint an external consultant
to assist with the selection of a shortlist of potential Non-
Executive Directors. 

Once this shortlist is presented, the Nomination Committee
meets and undertakes a formal, rigorous and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors to the Board.

Careful consideration is given by the Nomination Committee to
ensure that any appointees to the Board have enough time
available to devote to the role and that the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board is maintained. 

When dealing with the appointment of a successor to the
Chairman, the Senior Independent Director will Chair the
Committee instead of the Chairman. When the Committee has
found a suitable candidate, the Chairman of the Committee will
make the proposal to the whole Board and the appointment is the
responsibility of the whole Board following recommendation from
the Committee. 

Information, Induction and Professional Development

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring all Directors receive
comprehensive information on a regular basis to enable them to
perform their duties properly.

New Directors receive appropriate induction on joining the Board,
typically including meeting members of the senior management
team and visits to operational sites. All Directors have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures are
complied with.

Board and Governance Evaluation

An internal Board and Governance Evaluation of Stobart Group
was conducted in 2011/12. At the outset of this process, the
Board stated their commitment to delivering improved
performance as a result of any findings. 

The evaluation process commenced in September 2011 and
reported back to the Board in May 2012 with a summary of
actions, all of which have now been satisfactorily concluded.

In line with UK best practice as outlined in the UK Governance
Code, the Board will be conducting an independent external
audit during 2013. This year Stobart Group Board Governance
Evaluation will be conducted by external consultants who have
already been appointed. We are confident that this exercise will
help us to build on our existing strengths and to optimise the
contribution of the Board to the future success of our business. 

The Chief Executive Officer conducts annual appraisals with
Executive Directors and has regular one-to-one discussions
about their performance with them, as does the Chairman with
the Chief Executive Officer. The Board undertakes a regular
cycle of training on Corporate Governance Matters.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Chief Financial Officer, Ben Whawell takes Board level
responsibility for developing and implementing the Group’s
policy and approach for Corporate Social Responsibility. 

This includes its arrangements for matters relating to people,
society and the environment. 

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is mandated to establish formal and
transparent arrangements for considering how to apply the
financial reporting and internal control principles and to maintain
an appropriate relationship with the external auditors. 

The Audit Committee monitors the integrity of the financial
statements, internal financial controls and internal audit functions.
The Committee also makes recommendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment of the Group’s external auditors. 

The objectivity and independence of the auditors is reviewed
and considered to be safeguarded. The non-audit fees paid to
the auditors are expected to be less than the Group audit fees.
Excluded work includes lead advisory mergers and acquisitions
transaction type work.
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Audit Committee Membership

The Audit Committee is chaired by Michael Kayser and its other
member was Alan Kelsey, both of whom were fully independent
Non-Executive Directors. David Beever was a member of the
Audit Committee until 21 January 2013. Following Alan Kelsey’s
resignation from the Board, Rodney Baker-Bates has joined the
Audit Committee until another Non-Executive Director is recruited
and to ensure the quorum is present at meetings. The Company
Secretary acts as its secretary.

Michael Kayser is considered by the Board and the Nomination
Committee to hold the requisite recent and relevant financial
experience.

The quorum for an Audit Committee meeting is any two
members. The Chief Financial Officer and the Group’s external
auditors will normally be invited to attend meetings. 

At least once a year, the Audit Committee will meet with the
external auditors without the Chief Financial Officer or any other
Executive Directors present.

Attendance at Audit Committee meetings

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee from December
2011 (which are available on the Group’s website) require it to
meet at least three times per year. During the period under
review, the Audit Committee met on nine occasions, with
attendance as set out in the table below:

Number of Audit Committee meetings in the period 9

Director No. meetings No. meetings
              attended eligible to attend

Michael Kayser 9 9

David Beever 7 9

Alan Kelsey 8 9

A summary of issues dealt with by the Audit Committee during the
year is set out below:
� Findings from the external audit for the year ended 29
February 2012.

� Findings from the external review of the interims by the Auditors.
� Presentation by the Auditors of the planning documents in
respect of the Audit for the year ended 28 February 2013.

� Review of the internal audit procedures and consideration of
their adequacy.

� Review of related party transactions.
� Audit tender process and appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as
auditors.

� Review of the feedback of external shareholder representatives
regarding the disclosures in the Annual Report 2012.

� Considered and approved the external auditor’s independence.
� Approval of other non-audit services by the external auditors.
� Approval of policy regarding non-audit services performed by
the auditors and related fees.

� Appropriateness of the level of dividend payment.

Shareholder Relations

The Company is committed to maintaining good communications
with shareholders. Senior executives, including the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have ongoing
dialogue with individual institutional shareholders in order to 

develop an understanding of their views which are periodically fed
back to the Board. 

Twice a year general presentations are given to analysts and
investors covering the annual and half year results. In addition
members of the Board meet with institutional investors and
analysts on a periodic basis.

The Company Secretary generally deals with enquiries from
individual shareholders. The website www.stobartgroup.com
contains published information and press releases. 

Whistleblowing Policy

The Board has prepared and approved a whistleblowing policy
which has been circulated within the Group. This policy includes
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial or other matters. Arrangements include
independent investigation of such matters and appropriate
follow-up action.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Directors’ responsibilities in connection with the financial
statements are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 44. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for the Group’s
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board considers risk assessment, implementation of
mitigating actions and internal control to be fundamental to
achieving the Group’s strategy. Internal control gives the Board
reasonable but not absolute assurance. The Board has an
ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks faced by the Group and maintains a risk register.
The system of internal control is based upon:
� The Board’s overall responsibility.
� The Group’s organisational structure, with established lines of
accountability, as well as clearly defined levels of authority.

� Regular, and at least annual, review by the Board and the
Audit Committee.

� Compliance with the Turnbull Guidance 2005.
� Support by company policies in other areas such as finance.
� Management rather than elimination of the risk of failure to
achieve strategic objectives. It can also only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the
effectiveness of internal control (including financial, operational
and compliance controls together with risk management in
accordance with the Code) over the period of this report, and
to the date of its publication and confirm that no significant
failings or weaknesses have been identified. If they had been,
the Board confirms that the necessary actions would have been
taken to remedy them.

The Audit Committee reviews the independence of the auditors
at the interims and at year end. The Audit Committee has a
policy of reviewing the status of the auditors after five years and
each year thereafter.

The Group has a business systems internal audit function which
reviews performance against the agreed policies and
procedures. The Board has considered extending this to all
aspects of financial controls and procedures and concluded
that it is not necessary.

Michael Kayser I Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Report Year ended 28 February 2013

Executive Directors’ Emoluments and Pension Contributions

For the period 1 March 2012 to 28 February 2013

Executive Director Base salary Supplement in Performance Benefits Total Pension Total Pension
              lieu of pensions payments contributions contributions
              /car allowance
              /holiday

              2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012
              £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Andrew Tinkler 200.0 50.0 - 9.9 259.9 - 253.6 -

Avril Palmer-Baunack 177.3 - - 11.4 188.7 22.5 - -
(appointed 18 September 2012)

Ben Whawell 200.0 16.2 - 1.1 217.3 30.0 203.3 28.0

William Stobart 90.8 22.7 - 0.8 114.3 - - -
(appointed 18 September 2012)

Total       668.1 88.9 - 23.2 780.2 52.5 456.9 28.0

No compensation payments were made to Directors in the year (2012: £nil)

The Remuneration Committee (the Committee) makes recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s framework for Executive remuneration
and its cost. It approves on the Board’s behalf the general recruitment
terms, remuneration benefits, employment conditions and severance
terms for Executive Management. 

The Remuneration Committee

On 28 June 2012, Jesper Kjaedegaard retired from the Board
and was replaced by Paul Orchard-Lisle as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. During the year the Remuneration
Committee’s other members were Rodney Baker-Bates and
Michael Kayser. Michael Kayser was appointed to the
Remuneration Committee on 01 July 2012. All Non-Executive
Directors are determined by the Board to be independent in
accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code.

The Remuneration Committee met five times during the period
ended 28 February 2013. 

Number of Remuneration Committee 
meetings in the period 5

Member No. meetings No. meetings
              attended eligible to attend

Paul Orchard-Lisle 5 5

Rodney Baker-Bates 5 5

Michael Kayser 2 3

Jesper Kjaedegaard 2 2

1. Policy Statement on Directors’ Remuneration 

Executive Directors: The Board’s policy for Executive
Directors and key Executives’ remuneration is to:

� Keep salaries at below market levels and to reward
performance through variable pay arrangements.

� Use short and long term incentives to encourage Executives
to out-perform targets, thereby linking their rewards to the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders and giving
them the opportunity to increase their earnings.

� Encourage Executives to hold shares in the Group.

� Overall, reward Executives fairly and responsibly for their
contribution to the Group’s short and long-term
performance and avoid paying more than is necessary for
achieving this objective.

The Company repays reasonable expenses to Executive and
Non-Executive Directors which are incurred to carry out their
duties as Directors. 

The Executive Directors’ total remuneration consists of salary,
annual bonus, long term incentives, pensions and other benefits
such as company car allowance and health care. These are
determined by the independent Remuneration Committee.



Directors’ Remuneration Report 

Salary: The Board agreed to pay all its Executive Directors a
base salary of £200,000 except for Avril Palmer-Baunack. This
rate will remain in place until May 2014. The salary is lower than
that of executives paid in companies of comparable size and
complexity. The Board agreed to pay Avril Palmer-Baunack a
base salary of £394,504. These terms are the same as those
previously at Autologic Holdings plc and which the Board
agreed to honour as part of the acquisition. In determining
salaries, the pay and employment conditions of employees of
the Company and of other undertakings within the same Group
were taken in to account.

Annual Bonus: The Board agreed that there will be no
entitlement to bonuses during the period to May 2014 except
in the event of exceptional performance, and which would be
determined by the Remuneration Committee. During the year
under review no bonuses were paid to Executive Directors. The
Executive Directors (other than Avril Palmer-Baunack) have not
received a bonus since April 2010.

Long-Term Incentives: The LTIP is a one-off arrangement, and
therefore the Committee does not intend to make any further
awards to the current executive directors under this plan. The
Committee will review the long-term incentive arrangements at
an appropriate time. 

Pension and Benefits: The Executive Directors received a
contribution to a personal pension scheme of 15% of annual
salary, death in service benefits of eight times annual salary,
together with standard executive medical benefits. Andrew
Tinkler and William Stobart opted to take an additional salary
supplement of the same value rather than pension contributions.
The Directors are also entitled to a company car of a size and
type deemed appropriate for the proper performance of their
duties, or at their discretion, a company car allowance of
£20,000 per annum for Andrew Tinkler, £10,000 per annum for
Ben Whawell and £20,000 per annum for William Stobart.

Non-Executive Directors: The Group’s policy is to pay annual
fees that reflect the responsibilities placed upon Non-Executive
Directors. Fees are reviewed each year when account is taken
of the level of fees paid in companies of similar size and
complexity. Additional fees will be paid to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Property Operating Board. The Non-Executive
Directors are encouraged to hold shares in the Group.

The Non-Executive Chairman and Non-Executive Directors will
not participate in any annual bonus or incentive plans, pension
scheme, healthcare arrangements or the Company LTIP.
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Executive Directors’ Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Exercise At 1 March Granted Exercised Lapsed At 28 Exercise Lapse
price 2012 during the during the during the February date date

year year year 2013
No. No. No. No. No.

Andrew Tinkler £nil 16,335,008 - - - 16,335,088 From 7 Dec 2014 7 Dec 2021

Ben Whawell £nil 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 From 7 Dec 2014 7 Dec 2021

William Stobart £nil 5,717,149 - - - 5,747,149 From 7 Dec 2014 7 Dec 2021

Stobart Executive Equity Incentive Plan (SEEIP)

Ben Whawell £nil 125,000 - 53,802 71,198 - 20 Aug 2012 No lapse date

Non-Executive Directors’ Share Scheme

Alan Kelsey £nil 54,375 - - - 54,375 From 6 Jun 2014 No lapse date

David Beever £nil 41,061 - - - 41,061 From 25 Jan 2015 No lapse date

Michael Kayser £nil 62,500 - - - 62,500 From 3 Nov 2014 No lapse date

Paul Orchard-Lisle £nil 39,771 - - - 39,771 From 23 May 2014 No lapse date

Jesper Kjaedegaard £nil 40,000 - - - 40,000 From 27 Oct 2014 No lapse date

Jesper Kjaedegaard £nil 21,661 - - - 21,661 From 20 Jan 2015 No lapse date



2. Explanation of Directors’ Remuneration for the 
year to 28 February 2013

Executive Directors’ elements of remuneration during the
year: The Executive Directors’ total remuneration consists of
salary, annual bonus, long term incentives, pensions and other
benefits such as company car allowance and health care.

Share options awarded to Executive Directors 

The Committee believes that TSR is the best measure of long-
term success of Stobart Group, and that the FTSE250 total return
index is a robust and relevant benchmark for Stobart’s TSR.
While the Committee recognises that the potential opportunity
available under the plan is significant, it believes this is
appropriate for a number of reasons.  

Firstly the targets attached to awards are extremely stretching.
The threshold of 40% TSR outperformance (equivalent to 12%
p.a. over 3 years) is roughly equivalent to upper quartile
performance, and even at this level of performance only 25% of
the shares would vest.  A minimum of 120% outperformance of
the FTSE250 (equating to 30% p.a. outperformance over 3 years)
is required for full vesting; historically less than 5% of FTSE250
companies have achieved this.  Secondly, the salaries (and
therefore the salary-linked bonus opportunities and pension
contributions) for Stobart’s senior executives are currently
significantly below market.  Rather than pay market levels of fixed
remuneration, the Committee felt that increasing the variable
equity component would be more aligned with shareholder
interests.

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP): During the prior year the
Group received shareholder approval for a Long Term Incentive
Plan to grant up to 38m shares to incentivise Executive
Directors and senior management over a three to four year
performance period. There have been no changes to the terms
of this plan during the year.

The LTIP is designed to provide exceptional reward for
exceptional performance. It is intended to operate on a one-off
basis to align with the Company’s strategic plan and enable
executives to share in the value created for shareholders. On 7
December 2011, Andrew Tinkler, Ben Whawell and William
Stobart were granted nil-cost options under the Long Term
Incentive Plan as set out in the table opposite.

The options will vest based on the percentage by which the
Group TSR exceeds the FTSE 250 Index TSR according to the
performance percentages set out in the table below and will be
measured at the end of each month in the fourth year after the
date of grant. The Group TSR performance is based on a
starting share price of 155p.

At the end of the year the Stobart Group share price was 92.2p.
The highest share price during the year was 137.0p and the
lowest share price during the year was 90.2p

Group TSR exceeds the FTSE 250 Proportion of
Index TSR by the following percentage options vesting

Less than 40% Nil

40% or more but less than 64% 25%

64% or more but less than 91% 50%

91% or more but less than 120% 75%

120% or more 100%

50% of any options vesting will be exercisable immediately and
50% will only be exercisable from the first anniversary of vesting.

In the event of a change in control of the Group by a general
offer to acquire shares in the Group, then the Group shall notify
the award holders that within one month the awards may be
exercised in respect of such proportion corresponding to such
proportion of the TSR performance period as had elapsed
when the change of control occurred and in relation vested
awards as determined by the Remuneration Committee based
on the extent of the satisfaction of the performance conditions.

Stobart Executive Equity Incentive Plan (SEEIP):Historically,
the Group has issued share options to Executive Directors and
management under the Stobart’s Executive Incentive Plan
(SEEIP). Further details of this plan can be found in Note 25 to
the financial statements. The interests of the Directors in share
options under the SEEIP are illustrated opposite.

Ben Whawell made a gain of £71,218 before tax (2012: £nil) on
the exercise of share options calculated by reference to the
share price on the effective vesting date of 114.4p. The share
price at the beginning of the year was 128.0p and at the end of
the year was 92.2p. The highest share price during the year
was 137.0p and the lowest price during the year was 90.2p.

No Executive Director was made an award under the SEEIP
during the year.

The rules for the SEEIP were approved by shareholders in
September 2007 and the Group made an award under the
SEEIP to Ben Whawell of 125,000 options in August 2009.
Awards under the SEEIP are also made to certain other senior
management and seek to reward performance measured over
a three year period.

The awards under the SEEIP are conditional based on
performance measured over a period to a fixed point in time.
There are two performance measures associated with the
SEEIP, chosen to align with the best interests of the Group and
its shareholders. These are an Earnings Per Share (EPS) test
and a Total Shareholder Return (TSR) test. 

For the August 2009 options, 60% are based on an EPS
measure for the year to 29 February 2012 and 40% based on
a TSR based measure for the three years from the date of grant.
In August 2012, 71.7% of the EPS based options vested and
0% of the TSR based options vested.

The TSR performance is measured against the constituents of
the FTSE small cap index (excluding investment trusts) over the
three year period from the date of the grant. No award vests for
below median performance. At median performance awards
vest in proportion to full vesting for upper quartile performance.

In the event of a change in control of the Group, the
Remuneration Committee shall determine the appropriate
level of vesting by reference the extent to which the TSR and
EPS performance targets have been satisfied as at the time
of the change of control and any appropriate time pro-rating
adjustments.

            Stobart Group Annual Report 2013 52



53     Stobart Group Annual Report 2013

30
Sep 07 Mar 07 Sep 08

Stobart Group TSR (rebased to 100)

Mar 09 Sep 09 Mar 10 Sep 10 Mar 11 Sep 11 Mar 12 Sep 12 Mar 13

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

120

130

140

FTSE 250 (excluding Investment Trusts)

FTSE Small Cap (excluding Investment Trusts)

Five Year Total Shareholder Return

Directors’ Remuneration Report 

Non-Executive Directors’ Fees For the period to 28 February 2013

Director Total Fees 2013 Total Fees 2012
        £’000 £’000

Rodney Baker-Bates 85.6 90.0

Alan Kelsey 50.0 38.9

David Beever 36.7 31.0
(retired 21 January 2013)

Michael Kayser 50.0 50.0

Paul Orchard – Lisle 58.3 41.0

Jesper Kjaedegaard 16.7 50.0
(retired 28 June 2012)

Paul Orchard-Lisle received fees in relation to his position as
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Chairman of
the Property Operating Board which are included in the
amounts above.

Rodney Baker-Bates’ fees were reduced following the
appointment of Avril Palmer-Baunack as Executive Chairman
on 21 January 2013.

Non-Executive Director Share Scheme: The Non-Executive
Directors were incentivised to purchase shares in the Group
under a scheme by which they were allocated one share for
each share purchased by them in the 12 month period from
1 June 2011 up to a maximum value of 150% of their annual
fees. This scheme closed on 31 May 2012. There are no
performance conditions attached to the share options and
they will vest after three years from the date of the grant.

Share Option Schemes: At the year-end 0.1% (0.0% to
Executive Directors and 0.1% to Non-Executive Directors) of
the Company’s issued share capital has been allocated and
held in trust under the SEEIP. A further 6.2% (6.2% to
Executive Directors) of the enlarged share capital has been
allocated under the Long Term Incentive Plan. 

Service Contracts: The Committee’s policy on service
contracts is that they should contain a maximum notice
period of one year. All Directors’ contracts comply with this
policy except for Avril Palmer Baunack’s contract which
contains a notice period of 24 months that was put in place
previously by Autologic Holdings plc prior to the Group
acquiring Autologic Holdings plc in August 2012. The Group
is legally obliged to abide by such contractual notice period. 

The Committee is also under a duty to ensure contractual
terms on termination, and any payments made, are fair to the
individual and to the Group, that failure is not rewarded, and
that liabilities of the Group are mitigated. Each service
contract expires at the normal retirement date or earlier if
notice is given.

The Executive Directors’ service contracts for Andrew Tinkler,
William Stobart and Ben Whawell are dated 8 May 2009 and
for Avril Palmer-Baunack is dated 1 November 2007. The
Non-Executive Directors’ service contracts are dated as
follows: Rodney Baker Bates: 1 March 2008, Michael Kayser:
1 March 2008, Alan Kelsey: 23 May 2011 and Paul Orchard-
Lisle: 23 May 2011.

There are no provisions for further compensation on early
termination.

By order of the Board.

Richard Butcher I Company Secretary I 16 May 2013

Stobart Group Limited, Stretton Green Distribution Park, Langford Way,
Appleton Thorn, Warrington WA4 4TQ.



Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Stobart Group Limited 

We have audited the Group Financial Statements of Stobart Group
Limited for the year ended 28 February 2013 which comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Consolidated Cash-flow Statement and the related Notes 1 to 30.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with section 262 of the Companies (Guernsey) Law,
2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
set out on page 44, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the Group Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express
an opinion on the Group Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Financial Statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the Financial Statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of
the Financial Statements.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited
Financial Statements. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our
report.

Opinion on Financial Statements

In our opinion the Group Financial Statements:

� Give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as 
at 28 February 2013 and of its profit for the year then ended;

� Are in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union; and

� Comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following: 

Under the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 we are required to
report to you if, in our opinion:

� Proper accounting records have not been kept by the Company;

� The Financial Statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records; or

� We have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of 
the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Group’s
compliance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review.

Other Matter

We have reported separately on the Parent Company Financial
Statements of Stobart Group Limited for the year ended 28 February
2013.

Nicola Quayle
For and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Manchester
Chartered Accountants and Recognised Auditors

16 May 2013 
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year to 28 February 2013

Notes Restated
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Continuing operations
Revenue 3 572,412 491,673

Operating expenses - underlying 6 (534,173) (463,711)

Share of post tax profits of associates and joint ventures 14 997 500

Gain in value of investment properties 15 5,173 500

Profit on sale and leaseback transaction - 5,385

Profit on disposal of/gain in value of assets held for sale 19 495 5,740

Underlying operating profit 44,904 40,087

Share-based payments 25 (1,244) (391)

Profit on disposal of business 6 8,511 -

Credit for business purchase 5 - 821

New territory and new business set up costs 6 (1,020) (3,415)

Transaction costs 6 (2,759) (1,816)

Restructuring costs 6 (793) (1,592)

Amortisation of acquired intangibles 16 (381) (222)

Profit before interest and tax 47,218 33,472

Finance costs 9 (11,963) (6,279)

Finance income 8 777 1,980

Profit before tax 36,032 29,173

Tax 10 (5,101) (1,441)

Profit from continuing operations 30,931 27,732

Discontinued operation

Loss from discontinued operation, net of tax 4 (13,409) (276)

Profit for the year 17,522 27,456

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company 17,519 27,456

Non-controlling interests 3 -

Profit for the year 17,522 27,456

Earnings per share – continuing operations
Basic 11 9.02p 8.53p
Diluted 11 8.98p 8.52p

Earnings per share
Basic 11 5.11p 8.44p
Diluted 11 5.09p 8.43p
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year to 28 February 2013

Restated
Notes 2013 2012

£’000 £’000

Profit for the year 17,522 27,456

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 559 (293)

Cash flow hedge 476 (456)

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 781 -

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains 23 649 -

Tax on items relating to components of other comprehensive income 10 (414) 114

Other comprehensive income / (expense) for the year, net of tax 2,051 (635)

Total comprehensive income for the year 19,573 26,821

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company 19,570 26,821

Non-controlling interests 3 -

Total comprehensive income for the year 19,573 26,821
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
As at 28 February 2013

57     Stobart Group Annual Report 2013

Restated 
Notes 2013 2012

£’000 £’000

Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

- Land and buildings 13 247,497 228,447

- Plant and machinery 13 32,118 20,746

- Fixtures, fittings and equipment 13 5,338 4,845

- Commercial vehicles 13 27,215 26,591

312,168 280,629

Investment in associates and joint ventures 14 16,086 1,100
Investment property 15 89,526 98,453
Intangible assets 16 286,214 281,523
Other investments 7 10
Other receivables 18 4,930 4,111

708,931 665,826

Current Assets

Inventories 17 4,251 2,494
Corporation tax 1,338 -
Trade and other receivables 18 128,869 105,648
Cash and cash equivalents 32,488 31,044
Assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale 19 10,700 7,790

177,646 146,976

Total Assets 886,577 812,802

Non-current Liabilities
Loans and borrowings 22 215,707 179,241
Defined benefit pension scheme 23 4,794 -
Other liabilities 21 21,348 16,861
Deferred tax 24 26,905 29,159

268,754 225,261

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 122,542 97,709
Loans and borrowings 22 33,194 17,852
Corporation tax - 1,020

155,736 116,581

Total Liabilities 424,490 341,842

Net Assets 462,087 470,960

Capital and reserves
Issued share capital 26 35,397 35,397
Share premium 300,788 300,788
Foreign currency exchange reserve (212) (771)
Reserve for own shares held by employee benefit trust (386) (488)
Hedge reserve (1,032) (1,423)
Revaluation reserve 781 -
Retained earnings 126,748 137,457

Group Shareholders’ Equity 462,084 470,960

Non-controlling interest 3 -

Total Equity 462,087 470,960

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 May 2013 and were signed on its behalf by:

Andrew Tinkler, Chief Executive Officer                                                                    Ben Whawell, Director



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year to 28 February 2013 Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Notes Issued Share Foreign Reserve Hedge Revaluation Retained Total Non- Total
Share Premium Currency for Own Reserve Reserve Earnings Controlling Equity
Capital Exchange Shares held Interests

Reserve by EBT
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 March 2012 
as previously reported 35,397 300,788 (771) (488) (1,423) - 139,203 472,706 - 472,706

Prior period adjustment 1 - - - - - - (1,746) (1,746) - (1,746)

Restated balance at 1 March 2012 35,397 300,788 (771) (488) (1,423) - 137,457 470,960 - 470,960

Profit for the year - - - - - - 17,519 17,519 3 17,522

Other comprehensive 
income for the year - - 559 - 391 781 320 2,051 - 2,051

Total comprehensive 
income/(expense) for the year - - 559 - 391 781 17,839 19,570 3 19,573

Employee benefit trust shares vested - - - 102 - - - 102 - 102

Share-based payment credit 25 - - - - - - 1,544 1,544 - 1,544

Tax on share-based payment - - - - - - 278 278 - 278

Purchase of treasury shares - - - - - - (9,519) (9,519) - (9,519)

Dividends 12 - - - - - - (20,851) (20,851) - (20,851)

Balance at 28 February 2013 35,397 300,788 (212) (386) (1,032) 781 126,748 462,084 3 462,087

For the year to 29 February 2012 Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Notes Restated Restated
Issued Share Foreign Reserve Hedge Retained Total
Share Premium Currency for Own Reserve Earnings
Capital Exchange Shares held

Reserve by EBT
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 March 2011 26,517 181,168 (478) (663) (1,081) 126,246 331,709

Profit for the year - - - - - 27,456 27,456

Other comprehensive 
expense for the year - - (293) - (342) - (635)

Total comprehensive 
income/(expense) for the year - - (293) - (342) 27,456 26,821

Proceeds on share issues 26 8,880 124,969 - - - - 133,849

Share issue costs - (5,349) - - - - (5,349)

Employee benefit trust shares vested - - - 175 - - 175

Share-based payment credit 25 - - - - - 886 886

Tax on share based payment credit - - - - - 447 447

Dividends 12 - - - - - (17,578) (17,578)

Balance at 29 February 2012 35,397 300,788 (771) (488) (1,423) 137,457 470,960
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
For the year to 28 February 2013

Notes Restated
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Cash generated from continuing operations 28 41,395 58,992

Cash outflow from discontinued operations (9,483) (1,354)
Income taxes paid (3,707) (2,191)

Net cash flow from operating activities 28,205 55,447

Acquisition of subsidiaries and other businesses – net of cash acquired (16,676) (9,602)

Disposal of subsidiaries – net of cash disposed 13,088 -

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (45,202) (93,400)

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 23,353 44,786

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale 11,727 -

VAT outflow in relation to sale and leaseback of property in prior year (4,583) -

Net loans advanced to associates and joint ventures (7,038) (1,925)

Interest received 673 1,980

Net cash flow from investing activities (24,658) (58,161)

Issue of ordinary shares less cost of issue 28 - 114,527

Dividend paid on ordinary shares 12 (20,851) (17,578)

Proceeds from new finance leases 18,489 14,469

Repayment of capital element of finance leases (16,173) (30,753)

Proceeds from new borrowings 38,626 2,028

Repayment of borrowings (16,852) (17,273)

Purchase of treasury shares (9,519) -

Proceeds from grant 3,000 -

Interest paid (12,936) (4,359)

Other finance costs (819) -

Net cash flow from financing activities (17,035) 61,061

(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (13,488) 58,347

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 26,401 (31,946)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 12,913 26,401

Cash (includes £12.7m restricted cash – see Note 22) 32,488 31,044

Overdraft (19,575) (4,643)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 12,913 26,401
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year to 28 February 2013

1. Accounting Policies of Stobart Group Limited

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are set out below. The policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
These Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations)
as adopted by the European Union (‘adopted IFRSs’). The financial statements
for the Company are presented after the financial statements for the Group.
The financial statements of the Group are also prepared in accordance with
the Companies (Guernsey) Law 2008.
Stobart Group Limited is a Guernsey registered company. The Company’s
ordinary shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange.
The financial statements have been prepared on a Going Concern basis.

Going Concern
The Group’s business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future
performance and position, are set out in the Chief Executive Officer’s Report
and Chief Operating Officer’s Report on pages 3 to 10 and the financial position
of the Group, its cash flows and funding are set out in the Operational and
Financial Review on pages 14 to 26.
In addition, Note 22 to the financial statements includes details of the Group’s
loans and borrowings at the year end together with the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for managing its capital, its financial risk management objectives;
details of its financial instruments and its exposure to credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group has considerable financial resources, together with contracts with a
number of customers and suppliers. The financial forecasts show that borrowing
facilities are adequate such that the Group can operate within these facilities
and meet its obligations when they fall due for the foreseeable future. As a
consequence, the Directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its
business risks successfully despite the current economic climate. 
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
forseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis. 

Restatement of 29 February 2012 Financial Information

The results of the Chilled transport business for the year to 29 February 2012
have been restated as discontinued operations. This is required by IFRS 5 to
be consistent with the treatment in the current year. See Note 4 for further details.
The accounting for the acquisition of WADI Properties Limited in the prior year
has been amended to revise the provisional assessment of fair values at
acquisition and to reflect the agreed position as set out in the completion
accounts. This is a hindsight adjustment to acquisition fair values as permitted
by IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’. See Note 5 for further details.

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial period except as follows:

(a) New standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretations to existing standards adopted by the Group:
Improvements to IFRSs (issued 2010). The IASB issued its third omnibus 
of amendments to its standards, primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional
provisions for each amendment. The adoption of the amendments has
resulted in some changes to accounting policies but did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group. 

(b) New standards and interpretations not applied:
The following standards and interpretations have an effective date after
the date of these financial statements: 

International Accounting Standards (IAS / IFRSs) Effective date* 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – 

Classification and Measurement 1 January 2015
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IAS 27

Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2014
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IAS 28 

Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures 1 January 2014

IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2014
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised) 1 January 2013

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities – Amendments to IAS 32 1 January 2014

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 
Improvements to IFRS (issued May 2010) Various Dates

* The effective dates stated above are those given in the original IFRIC
standards and interpretations. As the Group prepares its financial statements
in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union, the application
of new standards and interpretations will be subject to them having been
endorsed for use in the EU via the EU Endorsement Mechanism. In the
majority of cases this will result in an effective date consistent with that given
in the original standard or interpretation but the need for endorsement
restricts the Group’s discretion to early adopt standards. 
The change to IAS 19 means the expected return on plan assets and the
interest cost on liabilities in the income statement are replaced by interest on 
the net defined benefit liability using the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation; this changes the allocation of the total return on
plan assets between the income statement and other comprehensive income. 
Management expects this change to increase the interest charge
proportionate to the deficit in the scheme from time to time. There will be an
increase in the interest charge commensurate with the deficit in the pension
schemes as disclosed in note 23. Except for this change to IAS 19, the
Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and
interpretations will have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue
Revenue from the Stobart Transport & Distribution, Stobart Estates, Stobart Air
and Stobart Biomass business segments is recognised in the income statement
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade
discounts, volume rebates and VAT. Revenue is recognised when significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, recovery of
the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods
can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with
the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable
that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then
the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised.
Stobart Estates also recognises rental income from investment property. This
revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental
income, over the term of the lease.
Stobart Infrastructure and Civil Engineering contract revenue includes the
initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will
result in revenue and can be measured reliably. When the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the
contract. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work
performed. When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. Contract expenses
are recognised as incurred unless they create an asset related to future
contract activity. An expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
Revenue is analysed by segment in Note 3.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The Company’s functional currency is Pounds Sterling (GBP) and it has
adopted Pounds Sterling (GBP) as its presentational currency.

Basis of Consolidation
Where the Company has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operating policies of another entity or business so as to obtain
benefits from its activities, it is classified as a subsidiary. The consolidated
financial statements present the results of Stobart Group Limited and its
subsidiaries (‘the Group’) as if they formed a single entity. Intercompany
transactions and balances between Group companies are therefore
eliminated in full.

Business Combinations
Business combinations from 1 March 2010: Business combinations are
accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at
acquisition date fair value on the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree. Acquisition costs are expensed and included in transaction costs
which are reported below underlying profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year to 28 February 2013, continued

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of
the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for the non-controlling interest (and where the business
combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree) over the net identifiable
amounts of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed in exchange for the
business combination.
Identifiable intangible assets, meeting either the contractual-legal or
separability criterion are recognised separately from goodwill. Contingent
liabilities representing a present obligation are recognised if the acquisition-
date fair value can be measured reliably.
If the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration
transferred (and where the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree) is lower than the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities and the fair value of any pre-existing interest held in the business
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit and loss below underlying profit.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash generating units) that
are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. Each unit or
group of units to which goodwill is allocated shall represent the lowest level
within the entity at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not be larger than an operating segment before aggregation.
Business combinations prior to 1 March 2010: Business combinations were
accounted for using the purchase method. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs. The
minority interest is accounted for using the parent-entity extension method,
whereby the difference between the consideration paid and the book value
of the share in net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill.
Goodwill was initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of business
combination over the group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Where the net fair value of the acquired
entity’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities was greater than
the cost of investment, the difference was recognised in profit and loss.

Research and Development 
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining
new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. 
Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or
substantially improved products and processes. Development expenditure is
capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are
probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development and to use or sell the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes
the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable
to preparing the asset for its intended use, and capitalised borrowing costs.
Other development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 
Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over
the interest in the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired. Cost comprises the fair values of assets given, liabilities
incurred and equity instruments issued.
Goodwill is capitalised as an intangible asset with any impairment in carrying
value being charged to the consolidated income statement. Where the fair
value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the fair
value of consideration paid, the excess is credited in full to the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets (excluding Inventories,
Investment Properties and Deferred Tax Assets)
Impairment tests on goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are undertaken at least annually at the financial year end and also if there are

indicators of impairment. Other non-financial assets are subject to impairment
tests whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell), the asset is written down accordingly.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the impairment test is carried out on the asset’s cash-generating unit
(i.e. the lowest group of assets in which the asset belongs for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows). Goodwill is allocated on initial
recognition to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination giving rise to the goodwill. 
Impairment charges are included in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent they reverse gains previously recognised in the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income. Impairment losses
except losses relating to goodwill can be reversed in certain circumstances.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the
asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase. After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted
in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any
residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits,
and highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments
The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps
to hedge its cash flow risks associated with interest rate fluctuations. Derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value at each reporting date. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.
The fair value of interest rate swaps are determined by reference to market
values for similar instruments.
For those derivatives designated as hedges and for which hedge accounting
is desired, the hedging relationship is formally designated and documented at
its inception. This documentation identifies the risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the hedged item
or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how effectiveness will
be measured throughout its duration. Such hedges are expected at inception
to be highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows and are assessed at
the end of each reporting period to determine that they are actually effective
throughout the reporting period for which they were designated.

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly as other comprehensive income in the net
unrealised gains reserve, while the ineffective portion is recognised in the
income statement. Amounts taken to other comprehensive income are
transferred to the income statement when the hedged transaction affects the
current period income statement.

Foreign Currency
Transactions entered into by Group entities in a currency other than the
currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate (their
‘functional currency’) are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the statement of financial position date. 
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Sterling at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date.
The income statements are translated at the average rate. The exchange
differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate
component of equity.
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Financial Assets
Unless otherwise indicated, the carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

Loans and Receivables
These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to customers (e.g. trade
receivables), but also incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
They are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue and subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. 
Impairment provisions are recognised when there is objective evidence (such
as significant financial difficulties on the part of the counterparty or default or
significant delay in payment) that the Group will be unable to collect all of the
amounts due under the terms receivable, the amount of such a provision
being the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value
of the future expected cash flows associated with the impaired receivable.
For trade receivables, which are reported net, such provisions are recorded
in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised within
operating expenses in the income statement. On confirmation that the trade
receivable will not be collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset is
written off against the associated provision.

Financial Liabilities
Unless otherwise indicated, the carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of any
transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of the instrument. Such
interest bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, which ensures that any interest expense
over the period to repayment is at a constant rate on the balance of the liability
carried in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Share Capital
Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the
extent that they do not meet the definition of a financial liability. The Group’s
ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.

Own Shares Held by Employee Benefit Trust
Stobart Group shares held by the Group are designated as own shares held,
classified in shareholders’ equity and recognised at cost. Consideration received
for the sale of such shares is also recognised in equity, with any difference
between the proceeds from sale and original cost taken to retained earnings.

Treasury Shares
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the
consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs, net of any tax
effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity.

Pension Arrangements and other Post-Employment Benefits
The Group has a number of pension schemes, both of a defined benefit and
defined contribution nature. The Group’s pension liability, which is assessed
each period by actuaries, is based on key assumptions including return on
plan assets, discount rates, mortality rates, inflation, future salary and pension
costs. These assumptions, individually or collectively, may be different to actual
outcomes. Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part
on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in Note 23.
The liability in respect of defined benefit schemes is the present value of the
relevant defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date less the fair value
of scheme assets. The Trustees commission a full actuarial valuation triennially,
and the present value of the obligation is updated annually by external
professional actuaries using the projected unit method for financial reporting
purposes. The present value of the obligation is determined by the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds which
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related liability. The
current service cost, and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments,
are recognised in operating costs in the Consolidated Income Statement.
Past service costs are included in operating costs where the benefits have
vested, otherwise they are amortised on a straight line basis over the vesting
period. The expected return on assets of funded defined benefit schemes, and
the interest on pension scheme liabilities comprise the finance element of the
pension cost and are included in finance costs. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments, changes in actuarial assumptions and

amendments to pension schemes, are charged or credited to the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.
For defined contribution schemes, costs are charged to the Consolidated
Income Statement as they accrue. Overseas subsidiary undertakings provide
pensions in accordance with local law and practice.

Share-Based Payments
Where equity-settled share options are awarded to employees, the fair value
of the options at the date of grant is normally charged to the consolidated
income statement over the vesting period. If the vesting conditions are directly
related to a capital asset then the charge is debited to the cost of the related
asset. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at each statement of financial
position date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the
vesting period is based on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted. As
long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense
is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.
At each statement of financial position date before vesting, the cumulative
expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and management’s best estimate of the achievement or
otherwise of non-market conditions and of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest or, in the case of an instrument subject to a market
condition, be treated as vesting as described above. The movement in
cumulative expense since the previous statement of financial position date
is recognised in the income statement, with a corresponding entry in equity.
The Group has share-based long term incentive plans accounted for as set
out above.

Leased Assets
Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets held under
finance leases are recorded in the statement of financial position as tangible
assets, initially at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and depreciated over their estimated useful lives as detailed
in the depreciation policy below. The interest element of leasing payments
represents a constant proportion of the capital balance outstanding and is
charged to the income statement over the period of the lease.
Where substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are
not transferred to the Group (an ‘operating lease’), the total rentals payable
under the lease are charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight line basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of lease
incentives is recognised as a reduction of the rental expense over the lease
term on a straight line basis.
The land and buildings elements of property leases are considered separately
for the purposes of lease classification.

Separately Disclosed Items
The Group presents separately on the face of the income statement material
items of income and expense, which because of their nature, infrequency or
occurrence, or the events giving rise to them, merit separate presentation to
allow shareholders to better understand the financial performance of the year.
Underlying operating profit is stated before separately disclosed items and
share based payments.

Externally Acquired Intangible Assets (excluding Goodwill)
Externally acquired intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are
subsequently amortised on a straight line basis over their useful lives. The
amortisation expense is included as ‘amortisation of acquired intangibles’ and is
shown separately in the consolidated income statement below underlying profit.
Intangible assets are recognised on business combinations if they are
separable from the acquired entity or give rise to other contractual/legal rights.
The amounts ascribed to such intangibles are arrived at by using appropriate
valuation techniques (see section related to significant accounting estimates,
judgments and assumptions below).
The significant intangibles recognised by the Group and their useful
economic lives are as follows:

Intangible asset                               Useful life

Brands                                                 Indefinite

Customer contracts 
and related relationships                     Term of contract 
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Where there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which a brand is
expected to generate cash flows for the Group it will be considered to have
an indefinite life.

Current Taxation
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred Taxation
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised where the carrying amount
of an asset or liability in the statement of financial position differs to its tax
base, except for differences arising on:
� The initial recognition of goodwill.
� The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a

business combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting or taxable profit.

� Investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities where the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the difference and it is
probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Recognition of deferred tax assets is restricted to those instances where it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the difference can be utilised.
The amount of the asset or liability is determined using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position
date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are
settled/(recovered). 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Group has a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on either:
� The same taxable Group company.
� Different Group entities which intend either to settle current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government Grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with.
Where the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over
the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is
credited to deferred income and released to the income statement to match
the depreciation on the related asset. Grants of a revenue nature are credited
to income so as to match them with the expenditure to which they relate.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim
dividends to equity shareholders, this is when paid. In the case of final dividends,
this is when approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Freehold land and buildings and plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment in value. 
Depreciation is provided on items of property, plant and equipment, other
than land and assets under construction, to write off to their residual value
the carrying value of items over their expected useful lives. Useful lives and
residual values are reconsidered on an annual basis. Depreciation is applied
at the following rates:

Buildings                                      -    2% per annum straight line

Modular buildings                        -    7% per annum straight line

Long life plant and machinery      -    5% per annum reducing balance

Other plant and machinery          -    10-14% per annum straight line

Vehicles and trailers                     -    14-33% per annum straight line

Fixtures, fittings and equipment   -    20% per annum straight line

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.
Borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised.

Investment Properties
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment
property at the time that the cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met
and excludes the cost of day to day servicing of an investment property.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the date of the statement of financial position.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties
are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.
Investment properties acquired as part of a business combination are
recognised intitially at fair value and exclude transaction costs.
Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been
disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains
or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the income statement in the period of retirement or disposal.
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is
spread on a straight line basis over the period of the lease. Where an incentive
(such as a rent free period) is given to a tenant, the carrying value of the
investment property excludes any amount reported as a separate asset as a
result of recognising rental income on this basis.

Self Constructed Assets
The cost of a self-constructed asset is determined using the same principles
as for an acquired asset. Costs include any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management. Costs include
employee benefits, site preparation, delivery and handling, installation and
assembly, testing and professional fees. For assets made for sale or similar
to those made for sale then the cost is the same as the cost of constructing
an asset for sale including fixed and variable overheads which are considered
directly attributable. Internal net profits are eliminated in arriving at such costs.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion
costs, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity. 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Disposal Groups
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale when:
� They are available for immediate sale.
� Management is committed to a plan to sell.
� It is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the

plan will be withdrawn.
� An active programme to locate a buyer has been initiated.
� The asset or disposal group is being marketed at a reasonable price in

relation to its fair value.
� A sale is expected to complete within 12 months from the date of

classification (or an extended period if the delay is caused by
circumstances beyond the entity’s control but the Group remains
committed to the plan to sell the asset).

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of:
� Their carrying amount immediately prior to being classified as held for

sale in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
� Fair value less costs to sell.
Following their classification as held for sale, non-current assets (including
those in a disposal group) are not depreciated.
The results of operations disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement up to the date of disposal.

Associates
The Group’s investments in its associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting unless the investment is classified as held for sale.
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and
which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
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Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at cost plus post acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating
to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not
amortised. The income statement reflects the share of the results of operations
of the associate but the loss is limited to the equity investment made. Where
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the
Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable,
in the statement of changes in equity and the statement of other comprehensive
income. Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is
necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group’s
investment in its associates. The Group determines at each statement of
financial position date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case and there is a
resulting impairment, the amount is recognised in the income statement.
Losses of an associate are recognised only to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associate, unless the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Joint Ventures
Investments in joint ventures, which are jointly controlled entities, are included
in the financial statements using the equity method of accounting unless the
investment is classified as held for sale. 
Under the equity method, the interest in the joint venture is initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s
share of net assets of the joint venture. Goodwill relating to the joint venture
is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortised.
The income statement reflects the share of the results of operations of the
joint venture. Where there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes and
discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of other comprehensive income. Profits and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and the joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the interest in the joint venture.
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is
necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group’s
investment in its joint ventures. The Group determines at each statement of
financial position date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the joint venture is impaired. If this is the case and there is a
resulting impairment, the amount is recognised in the income statement.
Losses of a joint venture are recognised only to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint venture, unless the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Judgements, 
Estimates and Assumptions

The Group makes judgments, estimates and assumptions regarding the future.
Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual
experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The judgments,
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

(a) Impairment of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets: The Group
is required to test, on an annual basis, whether goodwill and indefinite
life intangible assets have suffered any impairment. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value in use or fair value less costs of
disposal calculations. The use of this method requires the estimation of
future cash flows and discount rates in order to calculate the present
value of the cash flows. Actual outcomes may vary. Further information
including carrying values is set out in Note 16.

(b) Useful lives of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment:
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are amortised or
depreciated over their useful lives. Useful lives are based on the Directors’
estimates of the period that the assets will generate revenue, which are
periodically reviewed for continued appropriateness. Changes to estimates
could result in significant variations in the carrying value and amounts 

charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in specific periods. More
details including carrying values are included in Notes 13 and 16.

(c) Share-Based Payment: Equity-settled transactions: The Group has
equity settled share-based remuneration schemes for employees and
Directors. Employee and Director services received, and the
corresponding increase in equity, are measured by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the date of grant, excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions. The fair value of share options  
granted without market based vesting conditions is estimated by using
a Black-Scholes model. The fair value of share options granted with
market based vesting conditions is estimated by using a Monte Carlo
model. These valuations are based on certain assumptions. Those
assumptions are described in Note 25 and include, among others, the
dividend yield, expected volatility and expected life of the options.

(d) Determination of fair values of intangible assets acquired in business
combinations and in investments in associates and joint ventures:
Determining the existence and the fair value of intangible assets on
business combinations and in investments in associates and joint
ventures involves judgments and estimates. Estimates include
determining future cash flows and discount rates.

(e) Taxation: The current and deferred taxation balances are calculated
making certain tax assumptions about the tax treatment of incomes and
costs, and the availability of certain losses for group relief. More details
are disclosed in Note 10. The recognition of deferred tax balances
requires application of judgments over the determination of the tax bases,
the levels of future profits and the likelihood of reversals of temporary
differences.

(f) Classification of certain vehicle leases: Certain vehicle leases contain
buyback arrangements at the end of the initial lease term. The classification
of the leases as finance leases or operating leases in the financial
statements requires judgment over the risk and rewards of ownership.

(g) Investment property valuations: The determined fair value of the
investment properties are in accordance with independent valuations. The
fair value is most sensitive to the estimated yield as well as long term
vacancy rate.The determination of the profit or loss on sale and leaseback
transactions includes judgement over the level of the lease payments and
overall lease package compared with the market rates available. 

(h) Sale and leaseback transactions: The determination of the profit or loss
on sale and leaseback transactions includes judgement over the level of
the lease payments and overall lease package compared with the market
rates available. 

3. Segmental Information

The operating segments within continuing operations are Stobart Transport
& Distribution, Stobart Estates, Stobart Infrastructure & Civil Engineering,
Stobart Air and Stobart Biomass.
The Stobart Transport & Distribution segment specialises in contract logistics
including road haulage, rail freight, ports handling and warehousing.
The Stobart Estates segment specialises in management, development and
realisation of land and buildings assets.
The Stobart Infrastructure & Civil Engineering segment specialises in
delivering internal and external infrastructure and development projects
including rail network operations.
The Stobart Air segment specialises in operation of commercial airports.
The Stobart Biomass segment specialises in supply of sustainable biomass
for the generation of renewable energy.

The Executive Directors are regarded as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). The Directors monitor the results of its business units separately for
the purposes of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. The main segmental profit measures are earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and also profit before tax, both
shown before separately disclosed items.

Income taxes, non-fleet finance costs and certain central costs are managed
on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments. These costs
are included in adjustments and eliminations.
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Period ended 28 February 2013 Stobart Stobart Stobart Stobart Stobart Adjustments Group
Transport & Estates Infrastructure Air Biomass and
Distribution & Civil Eng. Eliminations

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Revenue
External 514,419 15,580 11,062 14,938 16,402 11 572,412
Internal 2,753 1,234 19,800 - - (23,787) -

Total revenue 517,172 16,814 30,862 14,938 16,402 (23,776) 572,412

Depreciation (9,908) (1,448) (1,469) (921) (109) (824) (14,679)
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 126 203 - - - (441) (112)
Reversal of write downs of assets - 1,109 - - - - 1,109
Gain in value of investment properties - 5,173 - - - - 5,173
Profit on disposal of/gain on property asset held for sale - 495 - - - - 495
Share-based payments - - - - - (1,244) (1,244)

Segment EBITDA 40,923 17,084 4,876 441 4,132 (9,117) 58,339

Segment PBT 29,692 6,524 3,157 (673) 3,953 (10,179) 32,474

Profit on disposal of business 8,511
New territory and new business set-up costs (1,020)
Transaction costs written off (2,759)
Restructuring costs (793)
Amortisation of acquired Intangibles (381)

Profit before tax 36,032

Assets
Equity accounted investments 625 2,412 - - - 13,049 16,086
Additions to non-current assets 13,634 5,825 590 23,021 1,020 139 44,229
Operating assets 406,305 356,191 13,550 25,465 60,804 24,262 886,577
Operating liabilities (181,744) (171,776) (14,672) (26,846) (4,804) (24,648) (424,490)

Net assets/(liabilities) 224,561 184,415 (1,122) (1,381) 56,000 (386) 462,087

Period ended 29 February 2012 Restated Stobart Stobart Stobart Stobart Stobart Adjustments Group
Restated Transport & Estates Infrastructure Air Biomass and

Distribution & Civil Eng. Eliminations
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Revenue
External 454,604 6,708 13,128 8,792 8,404 37 491,673
Internal 4,627 - 44,048 - - (48,675) -

Total revenue 459,231 6,708 57,176 8,792 8,404 (48,638) 491,673

Depreciation (13,918) (224) (1,066) (258) (63) (178) (15,707)
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures - - - - 100 - 100
Reversal of write downs of assets - 400 - - - - 400
Gain in value of investment properties - 500 - - - - 500
Profit on disposal of sale and leaseback transaction - 5,385 - - - - 5,385
Gain on property asset held for sale - 5,740 - - - - 5,740
Share-based payment - - - - - (391) (391)

Segment EBITDA 44,312 13,605 5,641 (167) 1,297 (9,285) 55,403

Segment PBT 27,673 12,405 4,387 (436) 1,170 (9,802) 35,397

Credit for business purchase 821
New territory business set-up costs (3,415)
Transaction costs written off (1,816)
Restructuring costs (1,592)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (222)

Profit before tax 29,173

Assets
Equity accounted investments - 8,890 - - - - 8,890
Additions to non-current assets 15,410 69,333 4,260 3,289 102 318 92,712
Operating assets 417,835 307,855 15,245 11,139 54,326 6,402 812,802
Operating liabilities (164,349) (115,880) (18,703) (24,460) (2,110) (16,340) (341,842)

Net assets/(liabilities) 253,486 191,975 (3,458) (13,321) 52,216 (9,938) 470,960

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year to 28 February 2013, continued
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Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.
Included in adjustments and eliminations are central costs of £8,421,000
(2012: £5,440,000), intra-group profit of £1,758,000 (2012: £2,589,000) and
other costs attributable to internal capital developments not capitalised in the
Group accounts of £nil (2012: £1,773,000).
Also included in adjustments and eliminations are central assets and liabilities
excluding assets and liabilities where it has been deemed appropriate to
allocate to an operating segment.

Geographical Information

Revenue from Non-current
external customers assets

Restated
2013 2012 2013 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

United Kingdom 516,767 442,510 704,934 665,513

Europe and Ireland 55,645 49,163 3,997 313

572,412 491,673 708,931 665,826

The revenue from one customer amounted to more than 10% of the Group’s
total revenue. The revenue from that customer was £168.4m for the year to
28 February 2013 (2012: £159.4m) and this was reported in the Stobart
Transport & Distribution segment. 

4. Discontinued Operation

During the year, as part of a major restructuring of the Chilled pallet network,
it was decided to discontinue the Chilled transport pallet network business.

This business has been treated as a discontinued operation in the accounts
and the related results have been reported separately as a single amount
presented within discontinued operations.

This is appropriate as the operation represents a separate major line of
business which has been closed as part of a single major plan.

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Results of discontinued operation
Revenue 45,019 60,248
Expenses (62,677) (60,621)

Results from operating activities (17,658) (373)
Tax 4,249 97

Loss for the year (13,409) (276)

Basic earnings (loss) per share (3.91p) (0.08p)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (3.89p) (0.08p)

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Cash flows used in discontinued operation
Net cash used in operating activities (9,483) (1,354)
Net cash from financing activities (625) (1,330)

Net cash flows for the year (10,108) (2,684)

5. Business Combinations

Acquisitions in the year ended 28 February 2013

Acquisition of Autologic Holdings plc

On 10 August 2012 the Group acquired 100% of the voting rights of Autologic
Holdings plc (‘Autologic’), an AIM listed company based in the United
Kingdom and a leading provider of distribution and technical services to the
automotive industry. The business has now been rebranded as Stobart
Automotive and is included in the Transport & Distribution segment.

The provisional fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Autologic
as at the date of acquisition have been identified as follows:

Provisional Previous
fair value carrying

recognised on value
on acquisition

£’000 £’000

Property, plant and equipment 22,957 18,795

Goodwill - 21,934

Investments in associates and joint ventures 452 452

Intangible assets: customer relationships 1,407 121

Cash and cash equivalents 3,502 3,502

Trade and other receivables 31,878 31,795

Inventories 947 947

Trade payables (12,504) (12,504)

Other payables and deferred income (21,169) (17,628)

Loans and borrowings (15,657) (14,305)

Pension scheme liabilities (5,846) (5,102)

Deferred tax 1,101 1,705

Net assets 7,068 29,712

Goodwill arising on acquisition 5,380

Total consideration 12,448

The total cost of the combination was £12.4m and was comprised of cash
consideration. There was no contingent consideration as defined in IFRS 3
‘Business Combinations’ in connection with this acquisition.

The primary reason for the acquisition was to enter a new market for the
Group. The goodwill of £5.4m is deemed to be attributable to the acquired
significant presence in the automotive sector, the value of the existing
management structure and workforce within Autologic and the efficiencies,
costs reductions and economies of scale expected to be derived from
combining Autologic with the existing operations of the Group. None of the
goodwill generated on acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes, although £1.0m of the pre-existing goodwill in the Autologic Group
remains deductible for tax. 

The fair value of the acquired identifiable intangible assets in respect of customer
relationships of £1.4m represents management’s assessment of the value of the
existing contractual and non-contractual relationships.

Transaction costs related to the acquisition of £0.6m have been recognised as
an expense in the Consolidated Income Statement.

From the date of acquisition, Autologic has contributed £69.4m of revenue and
£1.4m to the net profit before tax and before exceptional items, or £9.6m of
profit before tax after exceptional items, including profit on disposal of business
of £8.5m. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year,
revenue would have been £74.6m higher and profit before tax would have been
unchanged.
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Acquisitions in the year ended 29 February 2012

Acquisition of Stobart Biomass Products Limited

On 19 May 2011 the Group acquired the remaining 50% of the voting rights
of Stobart Biomass Products Limited, an unlisted company based in the
United Kingdom, which was established to source and distribute biomass
fuels for renewable energy production in the UK and Europe. Following the
transaction, Stobart Biomass Products Limited became a 100% owned
subsidiary undertaking of the Group. 

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Stobart Biomass
Products Limited as at the date of acquisition were:

Fair value
recognised on
on acquisition

£’000

Intangible assets 1,794

Property, plant and equipment 212

Cash and cash equivalents 342

Trade and other receivables 1,210

Trade payables (1,052)

Other payables and deferred income (2,260)

Deferred tax (484)

Net assets (238)

Goodwill arising on acquisition 48,665

Total consideration 48,427

There have been no changes to the fair value or gross amounts since the
prior year.

The total cost of the combination was £48,427,000 and comprised the following:

£’000

Loan notes 11,000

Shares issued 7,247

Previously held equity interest at fair value 30,180

Total 48,427

In connection with the acquisition, the Group issued 5,806,452 ordinary
shares with a fair value of £1.24 each. The price was the market price at the
date of acquisition. The goodwill of £48,665,000 represented the value of the
future earning potential of the business and other intangible assets which
could not be individually separated and reliably measured due to their nature,
in excess of the fair value of net assets identified. There was no contingent
consideration as defined in IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ in connection
with this acquisition but the vendor, AW Jenkinson, remains in the business
and participates in the Long Term Incentive Plan.

The amount of goodwill that was expected to be deductible for tax purposes is
£2,000,000.

There was no resulting gain or loss taken to the income statement following
remeasurement of the existing equity interest.

Transaction costs related to the acquisition of £140,000 were recognised as an
expense in transaction costs written off in the Consolidated Income Statement. 

Acquisition of WADI Properties Limited

On 28 February 2012 the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of
WADI Properties Limited. WADI Properties Limited is an unlisted company
registered in the United Kingdom and is the holding company for a number
of companies whose principal activity is property investment. Transaction
costs related to the acquisition of £1,044,000 were recognised as an expense
in transaction costs written off in the Consolidated Income Statement.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of WADI Properties
Limited at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
recognised on
on acquisition

£’000

Investment properties 89,943

Property, plant and equipment 2,037

Trade and other receivables 1,151

Cash and cash equivalents 207

Trade payables (157)

Other payables and deferred income (2,717)

Corporation tax (153)

Loans and borrowings (87,692)

Deferred tax 11,448

Net assets acquired 14,067

Excess of fair value of net assets acquired over cost (821)

Total consideration 13,246

The net assets and the provision for deferred consideration recognised in the
provisional acquisition accounting to 29 February 2012 were both based on a
provisional assessment of fair values, due to the proximity of the acquisition to
the Group’s year end and also the incomplete status of the completion
accounts process. 

The assessment of fair values and the completion accounts process were both
concluded in the year, which resulted in the following adjustments:

� A reduction of £1,150,000 in the fair value of one of the investment properties
acquired

� A reduction in trade and other receivables acquired of £53,000
� An increase in other payables acquired of £13,000
� A reduction in the corporation tax liability of £572,000
� An increase in the deferred tax asset of £294,000
In concluding the completion accounts process, the outstanding completion
accounting issues were also resolved from the disposal of Moneypenny
Limited and Westbury Schools Limited by Stobart Group Limited (then
Westbury Property Fund) to WADI Properties Limited, in September 2007.
The outcome of this process is a reduction of £1,017,000 in the consideration
paid by WADI Properties Limited to Stobart Group Limited in September 2007.
This amount is owed to WADI Properties Limited  and has been incorporated
into the completion accounts process for the purchase of WADI Properties
Limited by Stobart Group outlined above.

As a result of the resolution of these outstanding completion accounts issues,
additional consideration of £1,396,000 has become payable. The total
consideration of £13,246,000 comprised the initial share consideration of
£6,700,000 and the cash consideration of £6,546,000. The initial share
consideration was satisfied by the issue of 5,399,742 ordinary shares at a fair
value of £1.24 each. This share price was the market price at the date of
acquisition.

The excess of the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired over the cost
of the acquisition represents a bargain purchase and has been recognised
in the income statement, presented as ‘credit for business purchase’. As a
result of the above adjustments the credit for business purchase has been
restated to £821,000.



6. Operating Expenses and Other Operating Income

             Restated
             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Employee benefits expenses, 
excluding share-based payments 175,372 156,907

Depreciation 14,679 15,707

Other purchases and external expenses 344,122 291,097

Operating expenses - underlying 534,173 463,711

             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Profit before interest and tax is stated 
after charging/(crediting) the following:

Depreciation of property, 
plant and equipment 14,679 15,707

Amortisation of acquired intangibles 381 222

Profit on disposal of property, 
plant and equipment (1,360) (7,902)

Release of government grants (120) (128)

Operating lease expense
              - Plant and machinery 
              and commercial vehicles 39,948 28,436
              - Property 21,211 16,221

Amounts receivable by the Auditor 
and associates in respect of:

- Remuneration receivable in 
respect of the audit of the Company 136 80

- The auditing of accounts of any 
associate of the company 322 164

- Taxation advisory services - 2

- All services relating to corporate 
finance transactions 38 138

             496 384

Included in 2013 are fees totalling £69,000 relating to services provided by
the Group’s previous auditors. This has been allocated as follows; £52,000
for audit fees relating to the audit of Stobart Group Limited and £17,000 for
corporate finance transactions. The 2012 fees all relate to the Group’s
previous auditor.

Profit on disposal of business

On 21 January 2013, the Group disposed of the UK Vehicle Services business
of Stobart Automotive for £11.0m. This business had been acquired in August
2012 as part of the acquisition of Autologic Holdings plc.  The profit on
disposal of £8.5m has been included in profit on disposal of business in the
income statement.

New Territory and New Business Set Up Costs

New territory and new business set up costs of £1.0m (2012: £3.4m)
comprise costs of investing in new major territories or significant areas of
business to commence or accelerate development of our business presence.
These costs include establishment costs, legal and professional fees, losses
and certain staff and training costs. The current year costs were in relation to
the development of the major new businesses at London Southend Airport.
The prior year exceptional costs were in relation to the development of
businesses in Ireland and also at London Southend Airport.

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs comprise the costs of making investments in new
businesses or costs of financing transactions that are not permitted to be
debited to the cost of investment or as issue costs. These costs include the
costs of any aborted transactions. 

Restructuring Costs

Restructuring costs comprise costs of major integration plans and other
business reorganisation and restructuring undertaken by management. Costs
include cost rationalisation, brand harmonisation, site closure costs, certain
short term duplicated costs, directly related management time, asset write
downs and other costs related to the reorganisation and integration of acquired
and new businesses. These are principally expected to be one-off in nature.

             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Reorganisation of the UK Transport business 501 1,424

Reorganisation of the Warehousing business - 168

Other      292 -

             793 1,592

7. Staff Costs

             Note Restated
             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Staff costs (including Directors) comprise:

Wages and salaries 157,276 141,812

Social security costs 15,290 12,193

Other pension costs 2,806 2,902

Share based payment 25 1,244 391

             176,616 157,298

Staff costs above relate to the underlying continuing business. Included in
staff costs above are costs which have been capitalised as assets under
construction and contract set up costs of £2,647,000 (2012: £5,139,000).

             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Average number of persons employed 
by the Group (including Directors) 
during the period 5,221 4,781

Directors’ Remuneration 2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Directors’ emoluments 780 457

Number of Directors accruing benefits 
under defined contribution pension schemes 2 1

Further details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

8. Finance Income

             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Bank interest receivable 180 1,980

Net interest on retirement benefit schemes 103 -

Other      494 -

Total finance income 777 1,980
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9. Finance Costs
             Restated
             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Bank loans, loan notes 
and overdraft 10,674 4,384

Finance charges payable under finance 
leases and hire purchase contracts 1,289 1,895

Total finance costs 11,963 6,279

During the year £2,275,000 (2012: 3,512,000) of interest was capitalised. 

10. Taxation
Tax charged in the income statement Restated
             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Current income tax:

UK Corporation tax
              - Continuing operations 5,133 2,974

Overseas tax 617 873

Adjustment in respect of prior years 596 (2,705)

Total current tax 6,346 1,142

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of 
temporary differences 1,378 1,591

Impact of change in rate (2,330) (3,119)

Adjustment in respect of prior years (293) 1,827

Total deferred tax (1,245) 299

Total charge in the income statement 5,101 1,441

Reconciliation of income taxation charge

A reconciliation of the income tax charge applicable to the results from
ordinary activities at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at
the Group’s effective income tax rate for the year is as follows:

             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Net profit before taxation from 
continuing operations 36,032 29,173

UK income tax at rate of 
24.17% (2012: 26.17%) 8,709 7,635

Effects of:

Income not taxable including interest 
receivable and share of profits of 
associates and joint ventures (2,677) (724)

Profit on disposal of non qualifying assets (149) (12)

Difference in overseas tax rate (514) (954)

Impact of change in tax rate (2,052) (3,119)

Expenses incurred not relievable 
against current tax 1,481 2,608

Adjustments in respect of prior years 303 (878)

Losses brought forward utilised 
in current period - (3,115)

             5,101 1,441

Included in the statement of other comprehensive income are credits of
£85,000 (2012: £114,000 charge) in relation to a cash flow hedge instrument;
£180,000 (2012: £nil) in relation to investment property revaluation and
£149,000 (2012: £nil) in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme.

The deferred tax charge in the income statement is analysed as follows:
             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Accelerated allowances on 
plant and machinery (1,296) (78)

Rollover relief (299) (224)

Revaluation of properties to 
fair value on acquisition 861 (1,302)

Brands recognised on acquisition (1,200) (1,200)

Other temporary differences 689 3,103

             (1,245) 299

Stobart Group Limited’s affairs are conducted such that it is considered to be
resident in the UK for tax purposes. HM Revenue & Customs has agreed this
position. As a result, the Company is liable to pay UK corporation tax on its profits.

Factors that may affect the future tax charge

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 24% to 23% (effective from 1
April 2013) was substantively enacted on 3 July 2012. The deferred tax liability
at 28 February 2013 has been calculated based on the rate of 23%
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 
The March 2013 Budget announced that the rate will further reduce to 20%
by 2015 in addition to the planned reduction to 21% by 2014 previously
announced in the December 2012 Autumn Statement. This will further reduce
the Company’s future current tax charge and reduce the Company’s deferred
tax liability accordingly.

11. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary 10p shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of shares that would have been issued on exercise of all the
dilutive options into ordinary shares.
The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and
diluted earnings per share calculations:
             Restated
             2013 2012
Numerator £’000 £’000

Continuing operations
Profit used for basic and 
diluted earnings 30,931 27,732

Discontinued operations
Profit used for basic and 
diluted earnings (13,409) (276)

Denominator Number Number

Weighted average number of 
shares used in basic EPS 342,976,555 325,115,491
Effects of employee share options 1,602,998 400,944

Weighted average number of 
shares used in diluted EPS 344,579,553 325,516,435

Own shares held and 
therefore excluded from 
weighted average number 3,911,391 4,885,411



On 21 September 2007 1,504,120 options with an exercise price of 166.2p,
were granted. These are potentially dilutive instruments but were not included
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive
for the year and prior period as the average market price of the shares was
lower than the exercise price. 
On 10 March 2008, 3 July 2008 and 20 August 2009 respectively, 2.79m,
2.25m and 2.4m share options were granted to Directors and management
under the Stobart Executive Incentive Plan with an exercise price of £nil.
974,020 of these share options vested on 20 August 2012 and are included
as dilutive instruments for the year to 28 February 2013. 979,848 and 769,577
of these share options vested on 10 March 2011 and 3 July respectively and
are included as dilutive instruments for the year to 29 February 2012.
On 5 December 2008, 1.0m share options were granted to a senior manager
under a share option agreement. On 28 December 2012 750,000 of these
options vested and on 10 August 2011, 250,000 of these options vested.
These were dilutive in the respective years.
On 7 December 2011, 35m share options were granted to Directors and
senior others under a Long Term Incentive Plan. These are potentially dilutive
instruments but were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per
share because the vesting conditions have not been met unconditionally at
the year end date.
There are 259,368 share options allocated to Non-Executive Directors. There
are no performance conditions attached to these and so they are dilutive in
the year.
During the year the company purchased 7,443,291 of its own shares. 750,000
of these were used to satisfy options and at the year end 6,693,291 shares
remain in treasury. These shares are not included in the weighted average
number of shares used to calculate earnings per share.
Own shares held in an Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from the
weighted average number of shares.

12. Dividends

Dividends Paid on Ordinary Shares
2013 2013 2012 2012
Rate Rate

p £’000 p £’000

Final dividend for 2012
paid 6 July 2012 4.0 13,921 - -

Interim dividend 
paid 7 December 2012 2.0 6,930 - -

Final dividend for 2011 
paid 7 July 2011 - - 4.0 10,607

Interim dividend paid 
9 December 2011 - - 2.0 6,971

Dividends Paid 6.0 20,851 6.0 17,578

A final dividend of 4.0p per share was declared on 16 May 2013 and subject
to approval of shareholders will be paid on 5 July 2013. This is not recognised
as a liability as at 28 February 2013.
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Year to 28 February 2013 Land and Plant and Fixtures Commercial Total
Buildings Machinery Fittings and Vehicles

Equipment
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost or Valuation
At 1 March 2012 233,586 31,501 9,823 48,919 323,829
Acquisition of business (Note 5) 22,716 4,412 4,504 11,958 43,590
Additions 27,594 3,652 2,281 10,702 44,229
Disposals (5,828) (4,144) (797) (17,821) (28,590)
Transfers (18,569) 10,934 667 - (6,968)
Foreign exchange adjustments 347 79 122 265 813

At 28 February 2013 259,846 46,434 16,600 54,023 376,903

Aggregate depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 March 2012 5,139 10,755 4,978 22,328 43,200
Acquisition of business (Note 5) 8,831 3,424 3,941 4,437 20,633
Charge for the period 3,096 3,336 2,608 6,625 15,665
Impairment 242 45 357 - 644
Disposals (5,208) (3,318) (740) (6,693) (15,959)
Foreign exchange adjustments 249 74 118 111 552

At 28 February 2013 12,349 14,316 11,262 26,808 64,735

Net book value at 28 February 2013 247,497 32,118 5,338 27,215 312,168

The total transfer relates to the reclassification of a property from land and buildings to investment properties. The other transfers, with no effect to the NBV,
relate to reclassifications between categories.

Year to 29 February 2012 Land and Plant and Fixtures Commercial Total
Buildings Machinery Fittings and Vehicles

Equipment
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost or Valuation
At 1 March 2011 172,306 23,074 8,085 79,950 283,415
Acquisition of businesses (Note 5) 1,960 4 183 102 2,249
Additions 75,307 8,454 1,559 7,392 92,712
Disposals (15,987) (31) (4) (38,525) (54,547)

At 29 February 2012 233,586 31,501 9,823 48,919 323,829

Aggregate depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 March 2011 3,508 7,975 3,503 30,744 45,730
Charge for the period 1,631 2,808 1,476 10,354 16,269
Disposals - (28) (1) (18,770) (18,799)
At 29 February 2012 5,139 10,755 4,978 22,328 43,200

Net book value at 29 February 2012 228,447 20,746 4,845 26,591 280,629

Certain land and buildings were acquired through business acquisitions and were subject to independent valuations as part of the fair value exercise, or were
acquired during the period at cost.

Bank borrowings are secured on the Group’s freehold land and buildings.

Included in land and buildings at 28 February 2013 are assets under construction of £40.2m (2012: £91.1m).

Included in plant and machinery at 28 February 2013 are assets under construction of £2.5m (2012: £nil).

The net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance leases and are secured on the
related assets:

Land and Plant and Fixtures Commercial Total
Buildings Machinery Fittings and Vehicles

Equipment
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost 5,262 10,640 240 30,828 46,970
Aggregate depreciation (237) (2,088) (13) (9,178) (11,516)

Net book value at 28 February 2013 5,025 8,552 227 21,650 35,454

Net book value at 29 February 2012 1,164 8,008 117 21,870 31,159
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14. Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Entity Year End Issued Residence Percentage of
Ordinary nominal value of
Shares issued shares or 

members’ capital held

Westbury Fitness Limited 31 December 10,000 Guernsey 50%

Westar Limited2 31 December 10,000 Guernsey 50%

Westar 2 Limited2 31 December 10,000 Guernsey 50%

Convoy Limited 5 April 2 Isle of Man 50%

Everdeal Holdings Limited 31 December 2,000 Eire 45%

Everdeal Finance Limited 31 December 1,000 United Kingdom 60%

Propius Holdings Limited 31 December 30,000 Cayman Islands 331⁄3%

Transport-Service Klingels-Willems NV 31 December 750 Belgium 50%

Vehicle Logistics Corporation BV 31 December 96,000 The Netherlands 50%

Endeavour Ware Limited 31 December 10,000 Guernsey 47.5%

Shuban Power Limited1 31 March 4,902 United Kingdom 25%

1 These entities are associates, all others are joint ventures.
2 In liquidation.

Associates

The movement on investments in associates during the year was as follows:

             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Opening balance - -

Investments acquired in period - -

Share of profits in period - -

Closing balance - -

The following information is given in respect of the Group’s 
share of all associates:

             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Non-current assets 1,188 10,866

Current assets 549 4,552

Current liabilities (742) (5,350)

Non-current liabilities (995) (10,068)

Share of net assets - -

Share of associates revenue and profit:

Revenue - 27,834

Loss after tax - -

The unrecognised share of losses in associates in the year is £12,500 (2012:
£1,150,000).

Joint Ventures

The movement on investments in joint ventures during the year was as follows:

             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Opening balance 1,100 30,780

Additions arising from 
business combination (Note 5) 452 -

Investments acquired 13,630 -

Share of underlying profits 997 500

Share of transaction costs (140) -

Foreign exchange movement 47 -

Disposal of joint venture interest (Note 5) - (30,180)

             16,086 1,100

Within investments acquired during the year, £7.1m remains payable and is
included in other payables.

The following information is given in respect of the Group’s share of all joint
ventures:

             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

Non-current assets 61,657 39,256

Current assets 16,621 416

Current liabilities (19,545) (10,598)

Non-current liabilities (42,647) (27,974)

Share of net assets (excluding goodwill) 16,086 1,100

Share of Joint Ventures revenue and profit:

Revenue 10,010 1,573

Underlying profit 997 500

Transaction costs (140) -

Profit after tax 857 500
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15. Investment Property

             Restated
             2013 2012
             £’000 £’000

At 1 March 98,453 2,000

Additions arising from business 
combination (Note 5) - 89,943

Reclassified from property, 
plant and equipment 6,968 -

Revaluation of assets transferred from 
property, plant and equipment 782 -

Transferred to assets held for sale (14,200) -

Additions 3,100 6,010

Disposals (10,750) -

Surplus on revaluation 5,173 500

At 28 February 89,526 98,453

All of the Group’s investment properties were subject to an independent
valuation as at 28 February 2013 by GVA Grimley, on the basis of open market
value, supported by market evidence. The open market value represents the
amount at which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable,
willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arms length transaction
at the date of the valuation. The valuation was performed in accordance with
the RICS Valuation Standards issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors and is based on available market evidence. 

At 28 February 2013, there were no contractual obligations to purchase
investment property (2012: nil).

16. Intangible Assets

Goodwill Brand Customer Total
names relationships

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost

At 1 March 2011 171,286 60,000 - 231,286

Acquisition of Stobart Biomass 
Products Limited 48,665 - 1,794 50,459

At 29 February 2012 219,951 60,000 1,794 281,745

Acquisition of 
Autologic Holdings plc 5,380 - 1,407 6,787
Disposal (694) - (1,143) (1,837)

At 28 February 2013 224,637 60,000 2,058 286,695

Amortisation and Impairment

At 1 March 2011 - - - -
Amortisation charge - - 222 222

At 29 February 2012 - - 222 222

Amortisation charge - - 381 381
Disposal - - (122) (122)

At 28 February 2013 - - 481 481

Net Book Value

At 1 March 2011 171,286 60,000 - 231,286
At 29 February 2012 219,951 60,000 1,572 281,523

At 28 February 2013 224,637 60,000 1,577 286,214

No internally generated intangible assets are recognised in the financial
statements.

Brand names consist of the Eddie Stobart trademark and other Stobart-
associated trademarks and designs. These are considered to have an
indefinite useful life as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which
they are expected to generate cash flows for the Group. The Group invests
significant amounts to support the brand profile and development.

Customer relationships consist of contractual relationships with customers
recognised on acquisitions.

Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

The goodwill and brands with indefinite lives from business combinations have
been allocated to five cash generating units. Carrying amounts of goodwill and
brands with indefinite lives allocated to each cash generating unit are set out
below:

Eddie Stobart Infrastructure Stobart Stobart Stobart Total
Stobart & Civil Engineering Ports Biomass Automotive

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Carrying amount of goodwill

141,642 141,642 4,375 4,375 25,269 25,269 48,665 48,665 4,686 - 224,637 219,951

Carrying amount of brands with indefinite useful lives

60,000 60,000 - - - - - - - - 60,000 60,000

A sensitivity analysis has been performed, at the individual CGU, in order to review the impact of changes in key assumptions. 
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Eddie Stobart Cash Generating Unit: The recoverable amount of the goodwill
in the Eddie Stobart cash-generating unit has been based on value in use
calculations using projections from financial forecasts approved by senior
management covering a 5 year (2012: 5 year) period. The main assumptions
on which the forecasts were based include sales volumes and profit margins.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections range between
7.4% and 10.5% (2012: 8.9%) based on the weighted average cost of capital of
the CGU, taking in to account the cost of equity and debt for the CGU, and
adjusting for risk specific to the CGU. Cash flows beyond the 5 year period are
deemed to be in perpetuity but an annual growth rate of 2.0% (2012: 2.5%) is
assumed in the calculations.
No impairment losses have been recognised in the period or the prior period.
The calculation of the value in use is most sensitive to the discount rate and
sales volumes. With regard to the assessment of value in the Eddie Stobart
unit, management believes that no reasonably possible change in the
discount rate or sales volumes would cause the carrying value of the unit to
exceed its recoverable amount.

Stobart Infrastructure & Civil Engineering Cash Generating Unit: The
recoverable amount of the goodwill in the Stobart Infrastructure & Civil Engineering
cash-generating unit has been based on value in use calculations using
projections from financial forecasts approved by senior management covering a
5 year (2012: 5 year) period. The main assumptions on which the forecasts were
based include Network Rail work volumes. The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections range between 8.3% and 12.3% (2012: 10.3%) based
on the weighted average cost of capital for the CGU, taking in to account the cost
of equity and debt for the CGU, and adjusting for risk specific to the CGU. Cash
flows beyond the 5 year period are deemed to be in perpetuity but an annual
growth rate of 2.0% (2012: 2.5%) is assumed in the calculations.
No impairment losses have been recognised in the period or the prior period.
The calculation of the value in use is most sensitive to the discount rate. With
regard to the assessment of value in the Stobart Infrastructure & Civil Engineering
unit, management believes that no reasonably possible change in the discount
rate would cause the carrying value of the unit to exceed its recoverable amount.

Stobart Ports Cash Generating Unit: The recoverable amount of the goodwill
in the Stobart Ports cash-generating unit has been based on fair value less costs
to sell calculations using estimated discounted cash flows after tax and direct
selling costs. The calculations are based on projections from financial forecasts
approved by senior management covering a 5 year (2012: 5 year) period. The
main assumptions on which the forecasts were based were the ultimate disposal
proceeds. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections range between
7.4% and 14.2% (2012: 10.9%) based on the weighted average cost of capital
of the CGU, and adjusting for risk specific to the CGU. Cash flows beyond the 5
year period are deemed to be in perpetuity but an annual growth rate of 2.0%
(2012: 2.5%) is assumed in the calculations.
No impairment losses have been recognised in the period or the prior period.
The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is most sensitive to the discount
rate, container volumes and development progress. With regard to the
assessment of value in the Stobart Ports unit, management believes that no
reasonably possible change in the discount rate would cause the carrying value
of the unit to exceed its recoverable amount. 

Stobart Biomass Cash Generating Unit: The recoverable amount of the goodwill
in the Stobart Biomass cash-generating unit has been based on value in use
calculations using projections from financial forecasts approved by senior
management covering a 5 year (2012: 5 year) period. The main assumptions on
which the forecasts were based include sales volumes and profit margins. The pre-
tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections range between 7.5% and 14.7%
(2012: 10.9%) based on the weighted average cost of capital for the CGU, taking in
to account the cost of equity and debt for the CGU, and adjusting for risk specific 
to the CGU. Cash flows beyond the 5 year period are deemed to be in perpetuity 
but an annual growth rate of 2.0% (2012: 2.5%) is assumed in the calculations.
No impairment losses have been recognised in the period. The calculation of
the value in use is most sensitive to the discount rate. With regard to the
assessment of value in the Stobart Biomass unit, management believes that no
reasonably possible change in the discount rate would cause the carrying value
of the unit to exceed its recoverable amount. 

Stobart Automotive Cash Generating Unit: The recoverable amount of the
goodwill in the Stobart Automotive cash-generating unit has been based on
value in use calculations using projections from financial forecasts approved by
senior management covering a 5 year (2012: 5 year) period. The main
assumptions on which the forecasts were based include sales volumes and
profit margins. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
range between 7.4% and 9.5% (2012: nil%) based on the weighted average cost 

of capital for the CGU, taking in to account the cost of equity and debt for the
CGU, and adjusting for risk specific to the CGU. Cash flows beyond the 5 year
period are deemed to be in perpetuity but an annual growth rate of 2.0% (2012:
2.5%) is assumed in the calculations.

No impairment losses have been recognised in the period. The calculation of
the value in use is most sensitive to the discount rate. With regard to the
assessment of value in the Stobart Automotive unit, management believes that
no reasonably possible change in the discount rate would cause the carrying
value of the unit to exceed its recoverable amount.

17. Inventories
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Consumable supplies 2,381 2,240
Goods held for resale 1,870 254

4,251 2,494

18. Trade and Other Receivables
Restated

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Non-Current
Amounts owed by associates and joint ventures 4,930 4,111

4,930 4,111

Current
Trade receivables – net 84,786 66,059
Other receivables and prepayments 44,083 39,589

128,869 105,648

Movement in the provision for doubtful debts:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

At 1 March 716 451
Movement in year 369 265

At 28 February 1,085 716

The analysis of trade receivables due was as follows:

2013 2013 2012 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Receivable Provision Receivable Provision

Current 65,787 - 43,519 (3)
1 month 15,248 - 15,281 (4)
2 months 1,376 - 3,996 (4)
3+ months 3,460 (1,085) 3,979 (705)

85,871 (1,085) 66,775 (716)

The standard periods for credit sales vary from 30 days to 60 days. The Group
assesses credit worthiness of all trade debts on an ongoing basis. New
customers are subject to stringent credit checks.

19. Assets in Disposal Groups Classified as Held for Sale

During the year, the Directors reclassified a total of six properties with a cost of
£14,200,000 from investment properties to assets held for sale. These assets,
all of which were acquired by the Group as a result of the acquisition of WADI
Properties Limited in February 2012, were targeted for short term disposal by
the Directors. Two properties, with a cost of £3,500,000, were sold during the
year, the remaining four properties are being actively marketed.

At 29 February 2012, the Group held a 20% investment in One Plantation Place
Unit Trust, which was classified as held for sale. This investment was sold on 2 May
2012 realising net proceeds of £8,177,000 and a profit on disposal of £387,000.
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The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposal groups classified
as held for sale at 28 February 2013 are as follows:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Assets

Investments in associates and joint ventures - 7,790
Investment properties 10,700 -

10,700 7,790

20. Trade and Other Payables (Current)
Restated

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Trade payables 60,264 49,714
Other taxes and social security 4,768 11,570
Other payables, accruals and deferred income 55,123 34,322
Government grants 888 128
Interest rate swap 1,499 1,975

122,542 97,709

21. Non-Current Payables
Restated

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Other payables, accruals 
and deferred income 5,748 3,021
Government grants 5,722 3,810
Deferred lease liability 9,878 10,030

21,348 16,861

22. Financial Assets and Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 2013 2012

£’000 £’000

Non-current
Fixed rate:

- Obligations under finance leases 
and hire purchase contracts 27,181 15,750

- Loan notes 3,745 7,779
- Bank loans 68,659 74,828

Variable rate:
- Obligations under finance leases 

and hire purchase contracts 379 2,402
- Bank loans 115,743 78,482

215,707 179,241

Current
Fixed rate:

- Obligations under finance 
leases and hire purchase contracts 10,353 9,293

- Bank loans 1,400 -
Variable rate:

- Obligations under finance lease 
and hire purchase contracts 1,120 1,404

- Overdrafts 3,156 4,643
- Invoice Discounting Facility 16,418 -
- Bank loans 747 2,512

33,194 17,852

Total loans and borrowings 248,901 197,093

Cash 32,488 31,044

Net Debt 216,413 166,049

The obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are taken
out with various lenders at fixed or variable interest rates prevailing at the
inception of the contracts.

The bank loans at the year end include a £100m variable rate group finance
arrangement due for repayment in the following proportions; 25% May 2018,
25% May 2019 and 50% May 2020. This facility is subject to a number of
financial and non financial covenants.  The Group currently have a committed
offer from the lender for certain amendments to these covenants, which it is
in the company’s control to accept, and which the directors are currently
considering. Also included in bank loans is a £77.3m property loan. The
property loan is due for repayment in quarterly installments ending April 2017.
This loan has fixed and variable elements of £72.3m (2012: £74.8m) and
£5.0m (2012: £12.9m) respectively at 28 February 2013. The bank loans also
include £10m drawn on a £20m variable rate committed revolving credit
facility with facility end date of February 2016.

Included in cash is £12.7m which is held in an asset proceeds account and
as at 28 February 2013 its use was restricted to reinvestment in new property
assets or repayment of the property loan.

The overdraft facility is secured on working capital and bears interest at 2.25%
above the Bank of England base rate.

The variable rate invoice discounting facility is secured on receivables.

The loan notes were issued in connection with the acquisition of Stobart
Biomass Products Limited on 19 May 2011 and are repayable on 23 May 2014.

The Group was in compliance with financial covenants throughout the year
and the previous year.

The book value and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
as follows:

Book Value Fair Value
2013 2013
£’000 £’000

Financial assets
Cash 32,488 32,488
Trade receivables 84,786 84,786

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables 60,264 60,264

Overdrafts 3,156 3,156

Loans and borrowings 206,712 206,712

Finance leases and hire purchase arrangements 39,033 39,033

Interest rate swap 1,499 1,499

Book Value Fair Value
2012 2012
£’000 £’000

Financial assets
Cash 31,044 31,044
Trade receivables 66,059 66,059

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables 49,714 49,714

Overdrafts 4,643 4,643

Loans and borrowings 163,601 163,601

Finance lease and hire purchase arrangements 28,849 28,849

Interest rate swap 1,975 1,975

For trade and other receivables/payables with a remaining life of less than one
year, the carrying amount is considered to reflect the fair value.
The fair values of loans and borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the
fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities.
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect

on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the

recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.



Liabilities measured at Fair Value 2013
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Interest rate swap 1,499 - 1,499 -

Liabilities measured at Fair Value 2012
2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Interest rate swap 1,975 - 1,975 -

During the reporting period ending 28 February 2013, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into
and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

Financial Instruments - Risk Management
The Group is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks:

� Credit risk � Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk
� Liquidity risk � Capital risk

In common with all other businesses, the Group is exposed to risks that arise
from its use of financial instruments. This Note describes the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods
used to measure them.

Principal Financial Instruments
The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial
instrument risk arises, are as follows:

� Trade receivables � Cash at bank

� Bank overdrafts � Trade and other payables

� Floating-rate bank loans � Finance leases

� Loan notes

General Objectives, Policies and Processes

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group’s risk
management objectives and policies. 
The overall objective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk
as far as possible without unduly affecting the Group’s competitiveness and
flexibility. Further details regarding these policies are set out below:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or a
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.
The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk from credit sales. It is Group policy,
implemented locally, to assess the credit risk of new customers before
entering contracts. Such credit ratings are taken into account by local
business practices. 
All credit sales are made under Group payment and delivery terms and
conditions and are mostly covered by insurance. All credit limits are formally
set and are in agreement with the bank.
The recoverability of the net trade receivables book is considered highly likely.
This is supported by the history of collection by the Group.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest risk from long-term borrowings
and cash at variable rates. There are loan facilities at variable rates as well
as amounts held on deposit. These borrowing policies are managed centrally.
The Group has one interest rate swap in place at the year end. Although the
Board accepts that this policy neither protects the Group entirely from the
risk of paying rates in excess of current market rates nor eliminates fully cash
flow risk associated with variability in interest payments, it considers that it
achieves an appropriate balance of exposure to these risks.
During 2013 and 2012, the Group’s borrowings at variable rate were denominated
in Pounds Sterling.
At 28 February 2013, if interest rates on Pounds Sterling denominated
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the annualised effect on the Group’s profit before tax from continuing
operations would be £1,059,000 (2012: £858,000). The impact on retained
earnings, reflecting the after tax impact, would not be materially different.
The Group has an interest rate swap to manage its exposure to interest rate
risk. The Group has chosen to hedge account for this swap under IAS 39.

Cash Flow Hedge

Financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges are held at fair value
in the statement of financial position.
At 28 February 2013, the Group held an interest rate swap contract which
was designated as hedged against a proportion of the interest cash flow
payable in respect of its LIBOR floating rate borrowings.
The fair value of interest rate swap contracts at 28 February 2013 is
£1,499,000 (2012: £1,975,000).
The interest rate hedges of the expected future interest cash flows was
assessed to be highly effective and an unrealised profit of £476,000 (2012:
loss £456,000), with a deferred tax debit of £85,000 (2012: credit £114,000)
was included in other comprehensive income.
The principal amount of the swap was £26,725,000 at 28 February 2013
reducing in equal quarterly installments of £175,000 to £25,500,000 by
October 2014.

Capital Management

The objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains
a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value. 
The Group monitors capital using gearing ratios. Gearing based on net debt
divided by capital was 46.8% at 28 February 2013 (2012: 35.3 %). Gearing
excluding fleet finance and financed fleet assets was 38.4% at 28 February
2013 (2012: 29.1 %). The Group includes the following within borrowings; bank
loans and overdrafts, finance leases and hire purchase contracts and loan
notes. Capital comprises equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent.
The Group uses share capital to partly fund major acquisitions where
considered appropriate.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital restraints.
Dividends are payable out of distributable profits after considering the
forecast funding requirements and headroom.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group’s management of working capital and the
finance charges and principal repayments on its debt instruments. It is the
risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations
as they fall due. See also the maturity profile of loans and borrowings below.
The Group prepares rolling weekly 12-month cash flow projections and daily
cash forecasts for the following week. Actual cash and debt positions along
with available facilities and headroom are reported weekly. Working capital
levels including analyses of receivables and payables profiles are reported
by division weekly. These are monitored by Group management. For the
largest part of the business, cash is monitored against forecast and reported
to Group management on a daily basis.
In addition, full annual 5-year forecasts are prepared including cash flow and
headroom forecasts. These are full detailed forecasts built up by division and
consolidated for the Group.
The financial statements have been prepared using the going concern basis
as the financial forecasts support the assumption that the Group will be able
to meet its obligations when they fall due.
The table below summarises the maturity analysis of financial liabilities at 28
February 2013 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

< 1 year 1 to 5 >5 years Total
years

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 28 February 2013

Loans and borrowings 32,282 122,812 107,541 262,635
Finance lease borrowings 12,978 25,350 10,871 49,199
Trade payables 60,264 - - 60,264
Interest rate swap 863 636 - 1,499

106,387 148,798 118,412 373,597

At 29 February 2012

Loans and borrowings 7,530 18,601 190,555 216,686
Finance lease borrowings 11,442 18,811 - 30,253
Trade payables 49,714 - - 49,714
Interest rate swap 1,975 - - 1,975

70,661 37,412 190,555 298,628
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23. Employee Benefits – Pension Schemes

The Autologic group, which was acquired in August 2012, contains two
defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, referred to as the Autologic
scheme and the Ansa plan.
The Autologic scheme was available for employees of the Autologic Group
and comprised a defined benefit section, which was closed in 1992, and from
1992 to 1997 a section for defined contributions with a guaranteed minimum
pension underpin. This section was closed in 1997 and since that date the
Autologic scheme has operated as a defined contribution scheme, although
members remain entitled to the defined benefits and guaranteed minimum
pension benefits earned before these sections were closed. The latest
actuarial valuation of the Autologic scheme was as at 6 April 2010 and was
carried out by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit
method. At the date of the latest actuarial valuation, the realisable value of
assets was £10.5 million, which was sufficient to cover 86% of the value of
benefits that had accrued to members, measured on the continuing basis.
Total contributions payable for the period to February 2013 amounted to
£102,000 and one month’s contribution of £17,000 was due to the scheme
at 28 February 2013.
The Ansa plan was designed for employees of a subsidiary within the
Autologic group, Ansa Logistics Limited, which remains open but significantly
reduced in size following the loss of the major customer in that subsidiary in
2007. The latest actuarial valuation of the Ansa plan was as at 31 December
2007 and was carried out by an independent qualified actuary using the
projected unit method. At the date of the latest actuarial valuation, the
realisable value of assets was £26.4 million, which was sufficient to cover
81% of the value of benefits that had accrued to members, measured on the
continuing basis. This valuation also noted as a post-valuation event the
transfer out of the scheme of a substantial proportion of members and their
pension obligations, which was estimated to have reduced the realisable
value of assets to £19.9 million, sufficient to cover 91% of the value of benefits
of the remaining members. Total contributions payable for the period to
February 2013 amounted to £184,800 and one month’s contribution of
£26,400 was due to the plan at 28 February 2013.
The Autologic Group also operates small defined benefit schemes in Benelux.
The total net liability of these schemes is £51,000 and the present value of
funded obligations under these schemes is £309,000. Total contributions
payable for the 6 months to February 2013 amounted to £19,000.
The principal assumptions for the purpose of the actuarial valuations used in
these Consolidated Financial Statements were as follows:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.30% -
Rate of inflation (RPI) 3.45% -
Rate of inflation (CPI) 2.45% -
Rate of general increase in salaries 3.45% -
Mortality table used S1PA, CMI_2010, 

1.0%pa rate of 
longevity improvement* -

Expected rate of return on assets 
for the year ended 28 February 2014 4.30% -

* +1 year age rating for the Ansa plan.

Sensitivities to Principal Assumptions

A discount rate of 4.30% has been used in evaluating the value of liabilities
of the pension schemes as at 28 February 2013. A change of 0.25% to this
rate would have changed the value of pension fund liabilities at that date by
approximately £1.7m before tax.
RPI and CPI have been assumed to be 3.45% and 2.45% respectively in
evaluating the value of liabilities of the pension schemes as at 28 February
2013. A change of 0.25% to each of these rates would have changed the value
of pension fund liabilities at that date by approximately £0.9m before tax.
The disclosures provided below are an aggregation of the Group’s defined
benefit pension schemes.

The amounts recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Present value of funded obligations (34,342) -
Fair value of scheme assets 29,548 -

Net liability recognised in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 4,794 -

The amounts recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Continuing operations:
Finance Income
Expected return on scheme assets 746 -
Interest expense (643) -

Finance income 103 -

Current service cost (included in staff costs) (4) -

Amounts recognised in the Consolidated 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 2013 2012

£’000 £’000

Actual return less expected return on 
scheme assets (analysed below) 2,632 -
Experience losses arising on the 
scheme liabilities (153) -
Changes in other assumptions underlying 
the present value of the scheme liabilities (1,830) -

Amounts recognised in the Consolidated 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 649 -
Deferred tax (149) -

Actuarial gains recognised in the year 500 -

Cumulative net gains recognised 500 -

Actual return less expected return on scheme assets
Actual return on scheme assets 3,378 -
Less expected return on scheme assets (746) -

Actual return less expected 
return on scheme assets 2,632 -

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value
of scheme assets are as follows:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Defined benefit obligation
Liabilities acquired in a business 
combination (Note 5) 32,852 -
Current service cost 4 -
Interest expense 643 -
Actuarial losses 1,983 -
Employee contributions 1 -
Benefits paid (1,169) -
Foreign exchange movement 28 -

Closing defined benefit obligation 34,342 -



Fair value of scheme assets
Assets acquired in a business 
combination (Note 5) 27,006 -
Expected return 746 -
Actuarial gains 2,632 -
Contributions made by the Group 306 -
Employee contributions 1 -
Benefits paid (1,169) -
Foreign exchange movement 26 -

Closing fair value of scheme assets 29,548 -

The fair value of the scheme assets at the Balance Sheet date is analysed 
as follows:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Equity instruments 19,825 -
Bonds 4,382 -
Other (including cash) 5,341 -

Fair value of scheme assets 29,548 -

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group’s own financial
instruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the
Group. The Group expects to contribute approximately £540,000 to its
defined benefit schemes in the year to 28 February 2014.
The Group operates a defined contribution plan. The value of contributions
outstanding at 28 February 2013 and included in other payables is £217,000
(2012: £332,000).

25. Share-Based Payments

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Expenses arising from equity-settled 
share-based payment transactions:
Stobart Executive Equity Incentive Plan 813 290
Long Term Incentive Plan 431 101

1,244 391

Included in restructuring costs 162 -
Charged to discontinued operations 84 -
Amount capitalised within 
property, plant & equipment 54 495

Total share based payment charge 1,544 886

The share-based payment plans are described below.

Share Options

On 21 September 2007 1,504,120 options over the 10p ordinary shares were
granted with an exercise price of £1.66 each. The options vested over a three
year period and there are no performance conditions attached. These options
lapse in September 2017.
On 5 December 2008 a senior manager was allocated 1m shares conditional
upon achieving a certain target with respect to the development of London
Southend Airport. 25% of these shares vested when the target was achieved
and the remaining 75% of the shares vested during the year, being two years
after the date the target was achieved. The amount charged to capital in the
year in respect of the shares in the year was £54,000 (2012: £495,000).

24. Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Liabilities Restated
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Accelerated allowances on 
plant and machinery 3,970 5,811
Rollover relief 3,440 3,740
Revaluation of properties to fair 
value on acquisition 7,289 4,823
Brands recognised on acquisition 13,800 15,000
Other temporary differences (1,594) (215)

26,905 29,159

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of certain tax losses
and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets because it
is probable that the assets will be recovered.
Deferred tax has not been recognised on trading losses of £18.3m (2012:
£17.2m) carried forward in the Group on the basis that it is not probable that
they will be relievable against chargeable profits in future.
The deferred tax balances reflected above have been calculated at 23% as
this was the rate that was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Following provisions announced in the budget on 20 March 2013, the main
rate of corporation tax reduced to 23% with effect from 1 April 2013.
The Chancellor of the Exchequer has announced plans to reduce the
corporate tax rate by 2% to a rate of 21% by 1 April 2014 and ultimately to a
rate of 20% by 1 April 2015. These changes are not enacted in legislation. As
shown above a 3% reduction in the rate would reduce deferred tax balances
by approximately £3.5m based on the current balance.
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Movement in deferred tax balances during the year

Balance at Recognised Recognised Acquired in Balance at Recognised Recognised Acquired in Recognised Discontinued Balance at
1 March in profit in other business 29 February in profit in other business in SORIE operations 28 February

2011 or loss comprehensive combination 2012 or loss comprehensive combination 2013
income income

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Provisions 2,137 (1,169) 114 (449) 633 (235) (85) 1,036 - 192 1,541
Tax losses 776 (58) - - 718 (57) - - - - 661
Share based payments 833 (293) (94) - 446 110 (82) - - - 474
Pension - - - - - (89) (149) 1,158 - - 920
Rollover relief (3,964) 225 - - (3,739) 300 - - - - (3,439)
Revaluation of properties to 
fair value on acquisition (17,573) 1,302 - 11,449 (4,822) (861) - (1,426) (180) - (7,289)
Brands recognised on acquisition (16,200) 1,200 - - (15,000) 1,200 - - - - (13,800)
Accelerated allowances on 
plant and machinery (5,889) 78 - - (5,811) 1,296 - 361 - 184 (3,970)
Capitalised interest - (1,584) - - (1,584) (419) - - - - (2,003)

(39,880) (299) 20 11,000 (29,159) 1,245 (316) 1,129 (180) 376 (26,905)
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Stobart Executive Equity Incentive Plan (SEEIP)

On 10 March 2008, 3 July 2008 and 20 August 2009 2.79m share options,
2.25m share options and 2.4m share options respectively share were granted
to Directors and management under the Stobart Executive Equity Incentive
Plan (SEEIP). The exercise price of the options is nil.
The SEEIP is designed to provide incentives to executives and key employees
of the Group who are selected to participate by the Group’s remuneration
committee. Participants will be allocated units, each of which will represent
one 10p ordinary share and will vest on the third anniversary of the date of
grant. Fifty, forty and forty percent of the units granted 10 March 2008, 3 July
2008 and 20 August 2009 respectively vest subject to the total shareholder
return (‘TSR’) of the Group measured over a three year performance period
from the date of grant relative to a comparator group. Fifty, sixty and sixty
percent of the units granted 10 March 2008, 3 July 2008 and 20 August 2009
respectively vest subject to the achievement of a specified increase in the
Company’s earnings per share (‘EPS’) over two, three and three consecutive
financial years respectively starting in the year in which the grant is made.
On 28 February 2010, 1,395,000 of the EPS related March 2008 options
vested and were exercised. On 10 March 2011, 979,848 of the TSR related
March 2008 options vested and were exercised. On 3 July 2011, 131,205 of
the EPS related July 2008 options vested and were exercised and 638,372
of the TSR related July 2008 options vested and were exercised. On 20
August 2012, 974,020 of the EPS related August 2009 options vested and
were exercised. All of the other March 2008, July 2008 and August 2009
options lapsed.

Non-Executive Directors’ Share Scheme

The Non-Executive Directors are incentivised to purchase shares in the Group
under a scheme by which they are allocated one share for each share
purchased by them in the 12 month period from 1 June 2011 up to a
maximum value of 150% of their annual fees. This scheme closed on 31 May
2012. There are no performance conditions attached to the share options
and they will vest after three years from the date of grant. 
During the prior year, 259,368 share options were granted under the scheme.
No performance targets apply but Non-Executive Directors must remain in
place for three years from the date of allocation.

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

On 7 December 2011, 35m share options were granted to Directors and
others under a Long Term Incentive Plan. These nil cost share options vest
subject to the total shareholder return (‘TSR’) of the Group measured three
years after the grant date and thereafter at the end of each month in the fourth
year after the date of grant. No share options will vest unless the TSR
performance of the Group exceeds that of the comparator group (the TSR of
the FTSE 250) by at least 40%. For all the share options to vest the TSR
performance must exceed that of the comparator group by at least 120%.
The base price for the measurement of TSR is 155p. Further details are
included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 48 to 51.

Movements in the period

The following table illustrates the number (No.) and weighted average exercise
prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the period:

2013 2013 2012 2012
No.’000 WAEP No.’000 WAEP

Outstanding at 1 March 39.901 £0.06 8,537 £0.29

Granted during the period - N/A 35,259 £nil

Exercised during the period (1,724) £nil (1,999) £nil

Lapsed during the period (1,414) £nil (1,896) £nil

Outstanding at end of year 36,763 £0.07 39,901 £0.06

Exercisable at end of year 1,504 1,504 -

No share options were granted in the year. The weighted average fair value,
at date of grant, of the share options granted in the prior year is 5p.
The weighted average share price at the date of share options exercised
during the period was 107.4p (2012: 146.2p).
The weighted average contractual life of options outstanding at year end is
26 months (2012: 36 months).

Valuation Details

The fair value of the options granted without market based performance
conditions is estimated using a Black-Scholes model taking in to account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The fair value of
the options granted with market based performance conditions are estimated
using a Monte Carlo model taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the models used for the periods ended
28 February 2013 and 29 February 2012.

2011 Share Options Long Term 
Incentive Plan

Dividend yield (%) 4.7
Expected volatility (%) 25
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.43
Expected life of options (years) 3-4
Weighted average share price (£) 1.19

Model used Monte Carlo

2009 Share Options SEEIP options SEEIP Options
subject to TSR subject to EPS

Dividend yield (%) 5.7 5.7
Expected volatility (%) 23 23
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.82 1.82
Expected life of options (years) 3 3
Weighted average share price (£) 1.13 1.13

Model Used Monte Carlo Black-Scholes

2008 Share Options SEEIP options SEEIP Options
subject to TSR subject to EPS

Dividend yield (%) 6.0 6.0
Expected volatility (%) 35 35
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4.0 4.0
Expected life of options (years) 3 3
Weighted average share price (£) 1.21 1.17

Model Used Monte Carlo Black-Scholes

2007 Share Options Share Options

Dividend yield (%) 5.4
Expected volatility (%) 30
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4.9
Expected life of options (years) 3
Weighted average share price (£) 1.66

Model used Black-Scholes

The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not
necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

26. Issued Share Capital and Reserves

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Authorised share capital – Ordinary Shares

Authorised – 505,272,670 (2012: 505,272,670) 
shares of 10p each 50,527 50,527

£ £

Authorised share capital – Deferred Shares

Authorised – 1,000 shares of 0.1p each 1 1
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27. Lease Commitments

Group as Lessee

The Group has operating lease agreements for land and buildings, used
primarily for the provision of warehousing facilities to customers and as
vehicle depot locations for the Group’s transport vehicle and trailer fleet.
These leases typically have terms of renewal but do not contain purchase
options. Property leases typically include rent review clauses which allow for
upward revision to the rental charge on a periodic basis, according to
prevailing market conditions. Where escalation clauses are present that
stipulate specific increases to the rental amount the operating lease expense
is recorded on a straight-line basis. Similarly, lease incentives are recorded
on a straight-line basis.
At the statement of financial position date, the Group had outstanding
commitments for future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows:

Property Vehicles Property Vehicles
plant and plant and

equipment equipment
2013 2013 2012 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Within one year 23,724 37,130 18,294 24,763

After one year but not 
more than five years 56,579 46,337 83,796 40,141

More than five years 130,785 627 95,290 606

211,088 84,094 197,380 65,510

Group as Lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on some of its
properties. These non-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between
1 and 30 years. Certain leases include a clause to enable upward revision of
the rental charge on annual periodic basis according to prevailing market
conditions. Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Within one year 13,176 6,841

After one year but not more than five years 45,600 39,389

More than five years 27,012 25,011

85,788 71,241

Number of Share Number of Share
shares Capital shares Capital
2013 2012
000 £’000 000 £’000

Ordinary Shares of 10p each issued and fully paid

At beginning of period 353,961 35,397 265,165 26,517

Issued during the period - - 88,796 8,880

Total share capital 353,961 35,397 353,961 35,397

On 19 May 2011, 5,806,452 ordinary shares were issued upon the investment
in Stobart Biomass Products Limited. These shares had a fair value of 124p
each.

On 19 May 2011, 77,339,766 ordinary shares were issued following a share
placement at a price of 155p each.

On 10 August 2011, 250,000 ordinary shares were issued in relation to vesting
of share options.

On 29 February 2012, 5,399,742 ordinary shares were issued upon the
acquisition of WADI Properties Limited. These shares had a fair value of 124p
each.

Voting Rights

Ordinary shareholders are entitled to vote at all general meetings.
The Deferred Shares have no voting rights.

Capital Entitlement

The deferred shareholders are entitled to the repayment of the amounts paid
up on the Deferred Shares after payment in respect of each Ordinary Share
and £1m.

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves

Own shares held by employee benefit trust: This comprises the weighted
average cost of own shares held by the employee benefit trust.

Foreign currency exchange reserve: Gains/losses arising on retranslating
the net assets of overseas operations into Sterling.

Hedge reserve: The hedge reserve is used to record the effect of a cashflow
hedge.

Revaluation reserve: Increases in carrying amount when an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property.

Finance Lease and Hire Purchase Commitments:

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as
follows:

Min. lease Interest Principal Min. lease Interest Principal
payments payments

2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Within one year 12,979 (1,506) 11,473 11,442 (745) 10,697
After one year but not more than five years 25,349 (2,789) 22,560 18,811 (659) 18,152
More than five years 10,871 (5,871) 5,000 - - -

49,199 (10,166) 39,033 30,253 (1,404) 28,849

Capital commitments:

At 28 February 2013, the Group had commitments of £1,994,000 (2012: £11,612,000).



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year to 28 February 2013, continued
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28. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Cash generated from continuing operations Notes Restated
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Profit before tax on continuing operations 36,032 29,173

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Non-Cash:

Movement in unrealised gain on revaluation of investment properties (5,173) (500)

Realised profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (866) (7,902)

Share of post tax profits of associates 
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method (997) (100)

Profit on disposal of business (8,511) -

Profit on disposal of assets held for sale (495) (5,740)

Reversal of writedown of loan to joint venture - (400)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6 14,679 15,707

Finance income 8 (777) (1,980)

Interest expense 9 11,963 6,279

Release of grant income (199) -

Non-operating transaction costs 2,759 -

Amortisation of intangible assets 16 381 222

Credit for business purchase - (821)

Share option charge 25 1,406 391

Working capital adjustments:

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,909) 151

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (1,535) 2,197

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (5,363) 22,315

Cash generated from continuing operations 41,395 58,992

Issue of ordinary shares - 119,876

Issue costs paid on issuance of ordinary shares - (5,349)

- 114,527
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29. Related Parties

Relationships of Common Control or Significant Influence

WADI Properties Limited was formerly owned by WA Developments
International Limited, a company owned by WA Tinkler and W Stobart who
are significant shareholders, Directors and key management of the Group.
On 28 February 2012, WADI Properties Limited was acquired by the Group
for a total consideration of £13.2m (see Note 5). 

WA Developments International Limited is owned by WA Tinkler and W
Stobart. The Group made purchases totalling £78,000 (2012: £72,000) from
and sales totalling £537,000 (2012: £282,000) to WA Developments
International Limited. £990,000 (2012: £789,000) was due from and £340,000
(2012: £404,000) was due to WA Developments International Limited at the
year end.

WA Developments International GMBH is a subsidiary of WA Developments
International Limited. During the year, the Group made sales of £nil (2012:
£12,000) to WA Developments International GMBH of which £nil (2012:
£20,000) was owed to the Group at the year end.

VLL Limited is part owned by WA Tinkler. During the year, the Group made
sales of £17,000 (2012: £57,000) and made purchases of £826,000 (2012:
£569,000) relating to the provision of passenger transport from VLL Limited.
£193,000 (2012: £86,000) was owed to the Group at the year end and
£100,000 (2012: £nil) was owed by the Group to VLL Limited at the year end.

STA (2006) LLP is a joint venture of WA Develoments International Limited.
During the year the Group made sales of £nil (2012: £nil) to STA (2006) LLP
of which £32,000 (2012: £32,000) was owed to the Group at the year end.

During the year the Group made purchases of £550,000 (2012: £652,000)
from Ast Signs Limited, a company in which W Stobart holds a 27%
shareholding. A balance of £61,000 (2012: £189,000) was owed by the Group
at the year end.

During the year, the Group made sales of £37,000 (2012: £nil) and purchases
of £39,000 (2012: £nil) from Mega Pink Horse Ltd, a company in which W
Stobart holds a 73% shareholding. A balance of £11,000 (2012: £nil) was
owed to the Group at year end and £17,000 (2012: £nil) was owed by the
Group at the year end.

During the year, the Group made sales of £30,000 (2012: £53,000) and
purchases of £101,000 (2012: £39,000) from Oakfield Manor Estates Limited,
a company in which W Stobart holds a 100% shareholding. A balance of
£7,000 (2012: £7,000) was owed to the Group at year end and £nil (2012:
£13,000) was owed by the Group at the year end.

Associates and Joint Ventures

The Group had loans outstanding from its joint venture interest, Convoy
Limited of £2,132,000 (2012: £2,132,000) at the year end of which £nil (2012:
£1,053,000) has been provided for.

The Group had loans outstanding from its joint venture interest, Westbury
Fitness Hull Limited of £471,000 (2012: £471,000) at the year end of which
£471,000 (2012: £471,000) has been provided for.

The Group had loans outstanding from its joint venture interest Westar Limited
of £1,995,000 (2012: £2,022,000) of which £1,995,000 (2012: £1,922,000)
has been provided for.

The Group had loans outstanding from companies within its joint venture
interest, Everdeal Holdings Limited of £3,031,000 (2012: £4,111,000) at the
year end. During the year, the Group made sales of £1,692,000 (2012:
£1,074,000) to a 100% subsidiary of Everdeal Holdings Limited. A balance of
£262,000 (2012: £43,000) was owed to the Group at the year end.

The Group had loans outstanding from its associate interest, Shuban Power
Limited of £1,570,000 (2012: £nil) at the year end.

The Group had loans outstanding from its joint venture interest, Stobart
Barristers Limited of £306,000 (2012: £nil) at the year end. During the year,
the Group made purchases of £80,000 (2012: £nil) of which £54,000 (2012:
£nil) was owed at the year end.

The Group made sales of £49,000 (2012: £nil) and purchases of £11,000
(2012: £nil) to its joint venture interest, Transport Service Klingels Willems NV
of which £154,000 (2012: £nil) was owed to and £94,000 (2012: £nil) owed
by the Group at the year end.

The Group made sales of £1,684,000 (2012: £nil) and purchases of £2,000
(2012: £nil) to its joint venture interest, Vehicle Logistics Corporation BV of
which £368,000 (2012: £nil) was owed to the Group at the year end.

The Group had loans outstanding from its joint venture interest, Transport
Service and Releasing Iberia SL of £86,000 (2012: £nil) at the year end.

There were no other balances between the Group and the joint ventures and
associates during the year ended 28 February 2013 and the year ended 29
February 2012.

Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are the Executive and non-Executive Directors
as well as William Stobart (Chief Operating Officer) and Richard Butcher
(Chief Executive of Stobart Estates and Company Secretary). William Stobart
was appointed as an Executive Director on 18 September 2012 and his
remuneration as a Director from this date is set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report. Total aggregate emoluments were £416,000 (2012:
£515,000) and consisted of:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Emoluments 315 487

Company contribution to 
money purchase pension plan 30 28

Gain before tax on the exercise of share options 71 -

416 515

30. Post Balance Sheet Events

There are no post balance sheet events that require disclosure in the
accounts.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Members of Stobart Group Limited

We have audited the Parent Company financial statements of
Stobart Group Limited for the year ended 28 February 2013 which
comprise the Company Income statement, the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Company Statement of Financial
Position, the Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Company Cash flow statement and the related Notes A to M. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with section 262 of the Companies (Guernsey) Law,
2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
on page 44, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the Parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and
express an opinion on the Parent Company financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for
Auditors.

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information
in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

Opinion on Financial Statements

In our opinion the Parent Company Financial Statements:

� Give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs
as at 28 February 2013 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

� Are in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union; and

� Comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where
the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 requires us to report to you
in our opinion:

� Proper accounting records have not been kept by the Company;

� The Financial Statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records; or

� We have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

Other Matter

We have reported separately on the Group Financial Statements of
Stobart Group Limited for the year ended 28 February 2013.

Nicola Quayle
For and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Manchester
Chartered Accountants and Recognised Auditors

16 May 2013 
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Stobart Group Limited Company Income Statement 
For the year to 28 February 2013

Notes 2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Impairment of loans to subsidiary H - (1,520)

Administrative expenses B (5,994) (5,813)

Loss before taxation and interest (5,994) (7,333)

Finance costs C (3,247) (2,152)

Finance income D 2,180 1,653

Dividends received from Group companies - 18,982

(Loss)/profit before tax (7,061) 11,150

Taxation E 71 (82)

(Loss)/profit for the year (6,990) 11,068

Stobart Group Limited Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year to 28 February 2013

The Company has no other comprehensive income to report for the year (2012: £nil).

The total comprehensive expense recognised for the year is the loss for the year of £6,990,000 (2012: profit £11,068,000).



Stobart Group Limited Company Statement of Financial Position 
As at 28 February 2013

Notes 2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Non-Current Assets

Investments in subsidiaries G 283,191 283,191

Loans to subsidiaries H 291,995 242,608

Property, plant and equipment I 1,263 1,597

Other receivables J 2,249 4,111

Total Non-Current Assets 578,698 531,507

Current Assets

Other receivables J 6,245 3,073

Cash and cash equivalents 4,398 3,901

Total Current Assets 10,643 6,974

Total Assets 589,341 538,481

Non-Current Liabilities

Loans and borrowings K 111,813 76,358

Total Non-Current Liabilities 111,813 76,358

Current Liabilities

Loans and borrowings K - -

Other payables L 84,749 32,469

Total Current Liabilities 84,749 32,469

Total Liabilities 196,562 108,827

Total Net Assets 392,779 429,654

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company

Issued share capital 35,397 35,397

Share premium 300,788 300,788

Retained earnings 56,594 93,469

Total Equity 392,779 429,654

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 May 2013 and were signed on its behalf by:

Andrew Tinkler, Chief Executive Officer                                         Ben Whawell, Director
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year to 28 February 2013

Share Share Retained Total
Capital Premium Earnings
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 March 2012 35,397 300,788 93,469 429,654

Profit attributable to equity holders - - (6,990) (6,990)

Total comprehensive income for the year - - (6,990) (6,990)

Share-based payment - - 485 485

Purchase of treasury shares - - (9,519) (9,519)

Share issue costs - - - -

Dividends on ordinary Shares - - (20,851) (20,851)

Balance at 28 February 2013 35,397 300,788 56,594 392,779

Share Share Retained Total
Capital Premium Earnings
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 March 2011 26,517 181,168 99,093 306,778

Profit attributable to equity holders - - 11,068 11,068

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 11,068 11,068

Share based payment - - 886 886

Proceeds on share issue 8,880 124,969 - 133,849

Share issue costs - (5,349) - (5,349)

Dividends on ordinary Shares - - (17,578) (17,578)

Balance at 29 February 2012 35,397 300,788 93,469 429,654

The Notes (identified alphabetically) are an integral part of these separate Financial Statements. Where the same items appear in the Group
Financial Statements, reference is made to the Notes (identified numerically).
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Company Cash Flow Statement 
For the year to 28 February 2013, continued

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

(Loss)/profit before taxation (7,061) 11,150

Adjustments for:

- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 465 541

- Interest income (2,180) (1,653)

- Interest expense 3,247 2,152

- Dividends received from Group companies - (18,982)

- Share based payment 485 120

- Impairment of investment in subsidiary - 1,520

(Increase)/decrease in other receivables (3,101) 955

(Decrease)/increase in payables (1,714) 670

Net cash flows from operating activities (9,859) (3,527)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investments - (5,000)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (131) (211)

Investments in JVs and associates 1,862 -

Loans received from subsidiaries 53,114 -

Loans advanced to subsidiaries (47,361) (72,515)

Repayments of loans advanced to subsidiaries - 2,312

Bank and other interest received 154 119

Net cash flows from investing activities 7,638 (75,295)

Financing activities

Issue of ordinary shares - 119,876

Share issue costs - (5,349)

Dividends paid on Ordinary Shares (20,851) (17,578)

Repayment of finance leases - (233)

Proceeds from new borrowings 39,269 -

Repayment of existing borrowings (4,033) (13,221)

Purchase of treasury shares (9,519) -

Interest paid (2,148) (988)

Net cash flows from financing activities 2,718 82,507

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 497 3,685

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,901 216

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,398 3,901
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements 
For the year to 28 February 2013

A. Accounting Policies of Stobart Group Limited 

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations)
as adopted by European Union (‘adopted IFRSs’).

The separate financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (GBP)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£’000) except where
otherwise stated.

The accounting policies that are used in the preparation of these separate
financials statements are consistent with accounting policies used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of Stobart Group Limited.

The following accounting policies are detailed in Note 1 of the Group financial
statements:

� Revenue � Functional and Presentational Currency

� Cash and cash equivalents � Financial instruments

� Financial Assets � Loans and receivables

� Financial Liabilities � Share Capital

� Own shares held by EBT � Retirement Benefits:
� Treasury Shares Defined Contribution Schemes

� Share-Based Payments � Current Taxation

� Deferred Taxation � Dividends

� Property, Plant and Equipment � Associates

� Joint Ventures

Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions regarding the
future. Judgements, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In
the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and
assumptions. There were no judgements, estimates or assumptions deemed
to have had a material impact upon the financial statements in the current or
prior year.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment: Plant and equipment are
amortised or depreciated over their useful lives. Useful lives are based
on the Directors’ estimates of the period that the assets will generate
revenue, which are periodically reviewed for continued appropriateness.
Changes to estimates can result in significant variations in the carrying
value and amounts charged to the Income Statement in specific periods.

(b) Share-Based Payment: Equity-Settled Transactions: The Company has
equity settled share-based remuneration schemes for employees and
Directors. Employee and Director services received, and the corresponding
increase in equity, are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date of grant, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. The fair value of share options granted without market
based vesting conditions is estimated by using a Black-Scholes model. The
fair value of share options granted with market based vesting conditions is
estimated by using a Monte Carlo model. These valuations are based on
certain assumptions.

(c) Investments in Subsidiaries and Recoverability of Loans to Subsidiaries:
The company has investments in subsidiary undertakings which are
recorded at cost less impairment. An assessment is made by the Directors
of any potential impairments by reference to underlying net assets, trading
performance and other indicators they may be aware of. In making this
assessment the Directors also assess the recoverability of loans to
subsidiary undertakings and provide against such amounts if required.

B. Administrative Expenses
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Other expenses comprise the following:

Management credit from subsidiary companies - (829)

Other Expenses 5,157 6,360

Share-Based Payment 485 120

Auditor Remuneration – 
Audit of Financial Statements 162 80

Tax Consultancy Fees 190 82

5,994 5,813

C. Finance Costs
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Bank Loans and Loan Notes
Interest Payable 3,247 2,152

3,247 2,152

D. Finance Income

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Finance Income comprises the following:
Interest receivable from Subsidiary Companies 2,026 1,534
Bank and Other Interest 154 119

2,180 1,653



E. Taxation

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Current Tax:
- UK corporation tax - -
- Guernsey tax - -

Total current tax - - 

Deferred Tax:
Impact of rate change 14 14
Adjustments in respect of prior years (30) 46
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (55) 22

Total deferred tax (71) 82

Total (credit)/charge in the income statement (71) 82

Reconciliation of Income Taxation (Credit)/Charge

A reconciliation of the income tax charge/(credit) applicable to the results
from ordinary activities at the statutory income tax rate to income tax for the
year is as follows:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

(Loss)/profit before taxation (7,061) 11,150
UK income tax rate at 24.17% (2012: 26.17%) (1,706) 2,918

Effects of:
Income not taxable including dividends 
received from group companies - (4,968)

Group relief surrendered for nil consideration 1,346 1,009

Expenses incurred not relievable 
against current tax and other differences 305 1,063

Adjustments in respect of prior years (30) 46

Impact of rate change 14 14

(71) 82

The deferred tax asset included in the Statement 
of Financial Position is as follows:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Included in other receivables 215 144

Accelerated allowances on plant and machinery 16 (44)
Other temporary differences 199 188

215 144

Factors that may affect the future tax charge

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 24% to 23% (effective from
1 April 2013) was substantively enacted on 3 July 2012.  The deferred tax
asset at 28 February 2013 has been calculated based on the rate of 23%
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.  

The March 2013 Budget announced that the rate will further reduce to 20%
by 2015 in addition to the planned reduction to 21% by 2014 previously
announced in the December 2012 Autumn Statement. This will further reduce
the company's future current tax charge and reduce the company's deferred
tax asset accordingly.

F. Dividends 

See Note 12 of the Group Financial Statements.

G. Investments in Subsidiary Companies

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Stobart Holdings Limited 283,191 283,191

283,191 283,191

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 March 2012 283,191 264,179

Additions - 18,246

Share-based payment - 766

At 28 February 2013 283,191 283,191

Amounts provided:

At 1 March 2012 and 28 February 2013 - -

Net book value 283,191 283,191

Notes to the Company Financial Statements 
For the year to 28 February 2013, continued
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The financial statements include the financial statements of Stobart Group Limited and the principal subsidiaries listed in the following table:

Name of Subsidiary Place of Proportion of Proportion of Business
Incorporation Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares Activity

held directly held indirectly

Stobart Holdings Limited England 100% Holding company

Stobart Estates Holdings Limited England 100% Holding company

Stobart Transport & Distribution Limited England 100% Holding company

Eddie Stobart Group Limited England 100% Contract logistics

Eddie Stobart Limited England 100% Contract logistics

Eddie Stobart Promotions Limited England 100% Corporate Merchandising

Eddie Stobart Belgium NV Belgium 100% Contract logistics

Stobart (Ireland) Limited Ireland 100% Contract logistics

Stobart (Ireland) Driver Services Limited Ireland 100% Contract logistics

Stobart Rail Limited England 100% Rail services

Stobart Rail Freight Limited England 100% Contract logistics

Westlink Group Limited England 100% Holding company

Westlink Holdings Limited England 100% Property investment

Westlink Storage & Shipping Company Limited England 100% Contract logistics

O’Connor Group Management Limited England 100% Holding company

O’Connor Container Transport Limited England 100% Contract logistics

O’Connor Container Storage Limited England 100% Contract logistics

Stobart Airports Limited England 100% Holding company

London Southend Airport Company Limited England 100% Commercial airport

Stobart Air Limited England 100% Commercial airport

SAI 1 Ltd England 100% Holding company

Stobart Properties Limited England 100% Trading company

Stobart Biomass Products Limited England 100% Trading company

Stobart Business Services Limited England 100% Shared services

Stobart Claims Management Limited England 100% Shares Services

WADI Properties Limited England 100% Property investment

Moneypenny Limited Guernsey 100% Property investment

Stobart Group Brands LLP England 100% Brand management

Stobart Truckstops Limited England 100% Trading company

Autologic Holdings Limited England 100% Holding company

Ansa Logistics Limited England 100% Property investment

Stobart Automotive England 100% Holding company

Walon Limited England 100% Trading company

Sensible Automotive Limited England 100% Trading company

Walon BV The Netherlands 100% Trading company

Walon CZ s.r.o Czech Republic 100% Trading company

Walon Nellessen NV Belgium 100% Trading company
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H. Non-Current Loans to Subsidiaries
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Westlink Group Limited 53,245 54,159
Westlink Holdings Limited 17,118 16,711
WPL Investments Limited 24,102 24,102
WPL Ventures Limited 520 520
Eddie Stobart Group Limited 19,724 28,735
O’Connor Transport Limited - 2
Stobart Rail Limited 8,292 6,960
Stobart Air Limited 9,248 8,776
London Southend Airport Company Limited 95,612 71,127
Stobart Biomass Products Limited 1,155 1,106
SAI1 Limited 4,352 -
Stobart Holdings Limited 48,572 33,982
Stobart Estates Holdings Limited 13,267 12,767
WADI Properties Limited 8,283 9,300
Moneypenny Limited 12,701 310
Stobart Business Services Limited 357 174
Stobart AD1 Limited 1,570 -
Less provision for impairment (26,123) (26,123)

291,995 242,608

As at 28 February 2013 and 29 February 2012 amounts impaired related to
balances that were deemed to be irrecoverable.

Movements in the provision for impairment are as follows:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

At 1 March 26,123 24,603
Amounts written off - 1,520

At 28 February 26,123 26,123

Interest charged for the year, included within the loan balances, amounted to
£2,026,000 (2012: £1,534,000). Interest is charged on the loans at base rate
plus a margin between 2% and 4% (2012: between 2% and 3%).

I. Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixtures, Fittings Commercial
and Equipment vehicles Total

£’000 £’000 £’000

Cost
At 1 March 2011 2,631 59 2,690
Additions 211 - 211

At 29 February 2012 2,842 59 2,901
Additions 131 - 131

At 28 February 2013 2,973 59 3,032

Aggregate Depreciation and Impairment Losses

At 1 March 2011 705 58 763
Charge 540 1 541

At 29 February 2012 1,245 59 1,304
Charge 465 - 465

At 28 February 2013 1,710 59 1,769

Net book value at 
28 February 2013 1,263 - 1,263

Net book value at 
29 February 2012 1,597 - 1,597

J. Other Receivables 
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Trade debtors 35 33
Amounts due from subsidiary companies 237 -
Amounts due from related parties 661 337
Deferred tax 215 144
Prepayments 399 493
Corporation tax 4,698 2,066

6,245 3,073

Amounts due from Everdeal Holdings Limited of £2,249,000 (2012: £4,111,000)
which are due after more than one year are disclosed as non-current other
receivables.

K. Loans and Borrowings 
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Non-current

Fixed rate borrowings
- Loan notes 3,745 7,778

Floating rate borrowings
- Bank loans 108,068 68,580

111,813 76,358

Current

Fixed rate borrowings
- Bank loans - -

- -

Bank Loans

Loan notes were issued on acquisition of the second 50% of Stobart Biomass
Products Limited on 19 May 2011. £3.2m, £1.2m, £1.6m and £1.2m of the
loan notes were repaid on 12 January 2012, 1 March 2012, 1 September
2012, and 3 December 2012 retrospectively. 
The bank loans at the year end include a £100m (2012: £70m) variable rate
finance arrangement. This is due for repayment in the following proportions;
25% May 2018, 25% May 2019 and 50% May 2020. Also included in bank
loans is £10m drawn on a variable rate committed revolving credit facility with
facility end date of February 2016.

Notes to the Company Financial Statements 
For the year to 28 February 2013, continued
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Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
2013 2013 2012 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets

Cash 4,398 4,398 3,901 3,901

Trade and 
other receivables 8,279 8,279 7,040 7,040

Loans to subsidiaries 291,995 291,995 242,608 242,608

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 1,527 1,527 3,241 3,241

Other liabilities 83,222 83,222 29,228 29,228

Loans and 
other borrowings 111,813 111,813 76,358 76,358

For trade and other receivables/payables with a remaining life of less than
one year, the carrying amount is considered to reflect the fair value.
The fair values have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows at prevailing interest rates.
The table below summarises the maturity analysis of financial liabilities at 28
February 2013 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

< 1 1 to 5 >5 Total
Year Years Years Years
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Period to 
28 February 2013
Loans and borrowings - 14,836 130,165 145,001

Period to 
29 February 2012
Loans and borrowings - 8,868 98,826 107,694

L. Trade and Other Payables
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Trade payables 289 533
Accruals 1,238 1,515
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 83,222 29,228
Other creditors - 1,193

84,749 32,469

M. Related Party Transactions

During the year the Company has received interest from subsidiaries of
£2,026,000 (2012: £1,534,000) and dividends from subsidiaries of £nil
(2012: £18,982,000). During the year the company paid interest to
subsidiaries of £380,000 (2012: £60,000). The following balances were
outstanding at period end.
The Company had loans outstanding from its joint venture interest, Everdeal
Holdings Limited of £2,249,000 (2012: £4,111,000) at the year end.
Year end balances with related parties are set out below:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Receivable from related parties:
Receivable from subsidiaries, 
interest bearing loans 21,056 28,735
Receivable from subsidiaries, 
non-interest bearing loans 271,176 213,873
Receivable from associates 
and joint ventures 2,910 4,448

Total receivable from related parties 295,142 247,056

Payable to related parties:
Payable to subsidiaries, 
interest bearing loans 55,735 14,394
Payable to subsidiaries, 
non-interest bearing loans 27,487 14,834

Total payable to related parties 83,222 29,228

Interest is charged on interest bearing loans at rates between 2% and 4%
over base rate.
For key management personnel see Note 29 of the Group Financial
Statements.
There were no other related party transactions.
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